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603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474

Fax:603-271-4230 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

October 12, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend an existing Sole Source contract with Southwestern Community
Services, Inc. (vendor code 177511- R001), Keene, NH for the ongoing provision of Permanent
Housing and Supportive Services to individuals and families who are experiencing homelessness
through the Federal Continuum of Care Program, by exercising a contract renewal option by
increasing the price limitation by $120,640 from $89,787 to $210,427 and extending the
completion date from March 31, 2021 to July 31, 2021 effective upon Govemor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on March 25, 2020, item
#08.

Funds are available In the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021 and are
anticipated to be available In State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
If needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICES, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING-
SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $22,448 $0 $22,448

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $67,339 $106,179 $173,518

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $0 $14,461 $14,461

Total $89,787 $120,640 $210,427

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the contract was originally approved as sole source
and MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendments to be labelled as sole source. The original
request was Sole Source because federal regulations required the Department to specify each
vendor's name during the annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal application
process, prior to the grant award being issued. Based on the application evaluation process, the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) directs the Department to provide
grant awards and the specific amounts to vendors.

The purpose of this request is to continue to provide Permanent Supportive Housing
Program that delivers rental and leasing assistance, service access and supportive services to
individuals and families who are experiencing homelessness. The program facilitates the
movement of individuals, youth, and/or families experiencing homelessness to permanent
housing and maximum self-sufficiency. Approximately thirteen (13) households will be served
from April 1, 2020 to July 31. 2021.

Using the Housing First model and the development of Stabilization and Crisis
Management plans, the vendor will facilitate the movement of each participant into sustained
permanent housing while providing connections to community and mainstream services to
maximize each participant's ability to live more independently.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following reports and
information;

• Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual
agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic information, as well as
income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

•  Data entry into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System,
v/hich is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs!

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Section 2.,
Renewal., of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Govemor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its
option to renew services for four (4) months of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and homeless outreach services available, leaving vulnerable individuals and

•families in unsafe and potentially deadly situations.-Additionallyrif data is not-eollected as required -
by the contract, the Department will be in non-compliance with federal regulations, which could
result in a loss of federal funding for homeless and permanent housing supportive services.
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Area served; Cheshire and Sullivan Counties.

Source of Funds: CFDA #14267, FAIN #NH0092L1T001904

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care. Next Steps Permanent Housing Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services Amendment #1 to the

Continuum of Care, Next Steps Permanent Housing Program Contract

This 1" Amendment to the Continuum of Care. Next Steps Permanent Housing Program Contract
(hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #1") is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department
of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Southwestern
Community Services, Inc.. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place
of business at 63 Community Way. P.O. Box 603. Keene. NH 03431-0603.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Govemor and Executive Council
on March 25, 2020 (Hem #8). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-l, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language. Section 2.. Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Govemor and Executive Council; and

parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

July 31,2021.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$210,427.

3. Remove all references to "Next Steps Permanent Housing Program" and replace with "SCS Next
Steps Permanent Housing Program" throughout the Agreement.

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit A - Amendment #1,
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Permanent Housing
Program Funding. Subsection 1.2.. Paragraph 1.2.3.. to read:

1.2.3. Grant Numbers

1.2.3.1. NH0092L1T001904 (SFY 2020; April 1. 2020-June 30. 2020)

1.2.3.2. NH0092L1T001904 (SFY 2021; July 1. 2020 - June 30. 2021)

1.2.3.3. NH0092L1T001904 (SFY 2022; July 1, 2021 - July 31. 2021)

6. Modify Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1. Permanent Housing
Program Funding. Subsection I.2.. by adding Paragraph 1.2.4.. to read:

1.2.4. Total Amount Continuum of Care;

1.2.4.2. April 1. 2020-July 31, 2021. not to exceed: $210,427

7. Modify Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1. Permanent Housing
Program Funding. Subsection 12.. by adding Paragraph 1.2.5. to read:

Southwestern Community Services. Inc. Amendment #1 ' Contractor Initials

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-15-A01 Page 1 of 4 DateiQQ



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, SCS Next Steps Permanent Housing Program

1.2.5. Funds allocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program:

April 1,2020- July 1,2020 - July 1, 2021 -
June 30. 2020 June 30. 2021 July 31, 2021

1.2.5.1. Rental Assistance: $0 $0 $0

1.2.5.2. Leasing Assistance: $0 $0 $0

1.2.5.3. Operations: $13,670 $131,982 $10,999

1.2.5.4. Supportive Services: $8,235 $37,509 $3,126

1.2.5.5. Administrative Expenses: $543 $4027 $336
1.2.5.6. Total Program Amount: $22,448 $173,518 $14,461
1.2.5.7. Vendor Match (25%): $5,747 $44,387 $3,699

Southwestern Community Services. Inc. Amendment #1 Contractor Initials

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-15-A01 Page 2 of 4 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, SCS Next Steps Permanent Housing Program

All terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in full force and
effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Govemor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

October 5, 2020 SaJitiLyucM'
Date Name; Christine Santaniello

Title: Director, DENS

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

jiV jcA^nAU/^
Dife tihIT ^ I^ A^/JI'^6

Cio

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. Amendment #1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, SCS Next Steps Permanent Housing Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

10/13/20

Date Name;
Catherine Pinos, Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. Amendment #1

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-15-A01 Page.4 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services
Continuum of Care, SCS Next Steps Permanent Housing Program

Exhibit A - Amendment #1

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Permanent Supportive Housing Program

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1:1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they will
provided to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs
and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date; submitted to:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General
Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the sen/ices described herein, the
State, through the Bureau of Housing Supports (BHS), has the right to modify service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State are
contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Continuum of Care (CoC) Grant. The State, as
the Collaborative Applicant for the Balance of State CoC, and/or, the recipient of the CoC funding,
has applied forthe CoC Grant and will continue to perform due diligence in the application process.
However, the State makes no representation that It will receive the funds. In no event shall the
State be liable for costs incurred or payment of any services performed by the Contractor prior to
the State's receipt of federal funds applied for in the CoC Grant.

1.4. For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has identified the Contractor as a
subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

1.5. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part 578.103(b), US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD Office of the Inspector General,
and the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives, must
have the right of access to all books, documents, papers, or other records of the Contractor that
are pertinent to the CoC grant, in order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts.
These rights of access are not limited to the required retention period, but last as long as the
records are retained.

1.6. - The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and state financial and confidentiality laws,
and agrees to comply with the program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, as detailed in the 2017 Notice of Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application
approved by HUD.

1.7. The Contractor shall provide services according to HUD regulations outlined in Public Law 102-
550 and 24 CFR Part 578: CoC Program and other written, appropriate HUD policies/directives.

1.8. All programs shall be licensed to provide client level data into the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs shall follow NH HMIS policy, including
specific information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data
entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information Security requirements and Exhibit I for Privacy
requirements.

1.9. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer all questions, related to this contract, of
representatives of the State or Federal agencies who may conduct a periodic review of
performance or an inspection of records.

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. Exhibit A-Amendment Hi l Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, SCS Next Steps Permanent Housing Program

Exhibit A - Amendment #1

1.10. The Contractor shall support the primary goal of this program which is to facilitate the movement
of homeless and chronicaiiy homeless individuals and families to permanent housing and
maximum self-sufficiency.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall implement a Coordinated Entry System (CES) for all projects funded by the
CoC Program, Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program, and Housing Opportunities for
Persons with AIDS (HOPWA) Program, in accordance with CoC interim rule, 24 CFR Part 578.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Supportive Housing program comprised of thirteen (13)
housing units targeted to serve individuals, youth, and/or, families experiencing homelessness
with a focus on those struggling with chronic homelessness, substance abuse, developmental
disabilities, and, or, mental health issues by providing housing assistance and supportive services,
including but not limited to;

2.2.1. Utilization of the "Housing First" model, ensuring barriers to entering housing are not imposed
beyond those required by regulation or statute, and will only terminate project participation for
the most severe reasons, once available options have been exhausted to help a participant
maintain housing.

2.2.2. The development of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan with the participant, at
intake and, at a minimum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Services is required, with the ultimate goal being assistance to the participant in obtaining the
skills necessary to live in the community independently.

2.3. The Contractor shall establish and maintain standard operating procedures to ensure CoC
program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578 and must establish and maintain sufficient
records to enable HUD and BHS to determine Coritractor requirement compliance, including:

2.3.1. Continuurh of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the following documentation related
to establishing and operating a CoC:

2.3.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable evidence of
homeless status in accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b).

2.3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status: The Contractor shall maintain records that
establish "at risk of homelessness" status of each Individual or family who receives CoC
homelessness prevention assistance, as Identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c).

2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall maintain
documentation of each program participant who moved to a different CoC due to imminent
threat of further domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as defined
in 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor shall retain documentation that includes, but is not
limited to:

2.3.1.3.1 The original incidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
only if the original violence is not already documented In the program participant's case
file. This may be written observation of the housing or service provider; a letter or other
documentation from a victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider,
pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim
has sought assistance; medical or dental records; court records or law enforcement
records; or written certification by the program participant to whom the violence
occurred or by the head of household.

Southwestam Community Services. Inc. Exhibit A - Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, SCS Next Steps Permanent Housing Program

Exhibit A - Amendment #1

2.3.1.3.2 The reasonable belief of imminent threat of further domestic violence, dating violence,
or sexual assault or stalking, which would include threats from a third-party, such as a
friend or family member of the perpetrator of the violence. This may be written
observation by the housing or service provider; a letter or other documentation from a
victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider, pastoral counselor,
mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim has sought
assistance; current restraining order; recent court order or other court records; law
enforcement report or records; communication records from the perpetrator of the
violence or family members or friends of the perpetrator of the violence, including
emails, voicemails, text messages, and social media posts; or a written certification by
the program participant to whom the violence occurred or the head of household.

2.3.1.4. Records of Annual Income. For each program, participant who receives housing assistance
where rent or an occupancy charge is paid by the program participant, the Contractor must
keep the following documentation of annual income;

2.3.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and completed by the Contractor; and

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents (e.g., most recent wage statement, unemployment compensation
statement, public benefits statement, bank statement) for the assets held by the
program participant and income received before the date of the evaluation;

2.3.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents are unobtainable, a written statement by a
relevant third party (e.g., employer, government benefits administrator) or the written
certification by the Contractor's intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of the income the program participant received over the most recent period; or

2.3.1.4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party verification are unobtainable, the
written certification by the program participant of the amount of income that the
program participant is reasonably expected to receive over the three (3) month period
following the evaluation.

2.3.1.5. Program Participant Records. In addition to evidence of homelessness status or at-risk-of-
homelessness status, as applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document:^

2.3.1.5.1. The services and assistance provided to that program participant, including evidence
that the Contractor has conducted an annual assessment of services for those program
participants that remain In the program for more than a year and adjusted the service
package accordingly, and including case management services as provided in 24 CFR
578.37(a)(1)(ii)(F); and

2.3.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of assistance requirement in 24
CFR 578.91.

2.3.1.6. Housing Standards. The Contractor must retain documentation of compliance with the
housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b), including inspection reports.

, 2.3.1.7. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of supportive services
provided under the Contractor's program and the amounts spent on those services. The
Contractor must keep documentation that these records were reviewed at least annually
and that the service package offered to program participants was adjusted as necessary.

2.4. The Contractor shall maintain records that document compliance with:

2.4.1. The Organizational conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 678.95(c).

Southwestern Community Services. Inc. Exhibit A-Amendment Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, SCS Next Steps Permanent Housing Program

Exhibit A - Amendment

2.4.2. The Continuum of Care Board conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(b).

2.4.3. The Other Conflicts requirements in 24 CFR 578.95fd).

2.5. The Contractor shall develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal conflict-of-interest policy
that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR 578.95, including records supporting any exceptions
to the personal conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contractor shall comply and retain documentation of compliance with;

2.6.1. The Homeless Participation requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.75(g).

2.6.2. The Faith-based Activities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.87(b).

2.6.3. Affirmatively Furtherinc Fair Housino bv maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and
other materials used to inform eligible persons of the program in accordance with 24 CFR
578.93(c).

2.6.4. Other Federal Reouirements in 24 CFR 578.99, as applicable.

2.6.5. Other Records Soecified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified by
HUD.

2.6.6. The Contractor must retain copies of all procurement contracts and documentation of
compliance with the Procurement Requirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

2.7. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting the specific confidentiality and security requirements for
HMIS data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor shall develop and implement written procedures to
ensure:

2.7.1. All records containing protected identifying information of any individual or family who applies
for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be kept secure and confidential as
required by this Agreement and state and federal laws and regulations;

2.7.2. The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care funds
shall not be made public, except with written authorization of the person responsible for the
operation of the project; and

2.7.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant will not be made public, except
as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the recipient or subrecipient and consistent
with State and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality;

2.8. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by
microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Continuum of Care funds are
retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date and receipt of final payment by
the Contractor unless records are otherwise required to be maintained for a period in excess of.the
five (5) year period according to state or federal law or regulation.

3. Program Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit the following reports:

3.1.1. Annual Performance Report fAPRI: Within thirty (30) days after the Contract Completion Date,
an APR shall be submitted to BHS that summarizes the aggregate results of the Project
Activities, showing in particular how the Contractor is carrying out the project in the manner
proposed in the application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year Notice of Funding
Availability (NOFA). The APR shall be in the form required or specified by the State, and
submitted to the address listed in section 1.1. Exhibit A; and

Sou^flstern Community Services, Inc. Exhibit A-Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, SCS Next Steps Permanent Housing Program

Exhibit A - Amendment #1

3.1.2. Other Reports as requested by the State in compliance with NH HMIS policy.

4. Contract Administration

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings requested
by BHS, including training in data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal laws.
To the extent possible. BHS shall notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings five (5)
working days in advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall Inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the change.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in the HUD New Project
Application, #SF-424: and

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as detailed in all applicable HUD
regulations including, but not limited to, those outlined in 24 CFR Part 578: Continuum of Care
Program and Public Law 102-550.

5.1.2. The Contractor shall be accountable to all performance measures as detailed in the Annual
Performance Report Section 3.1.1. Exhibit A.

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS, or designee, may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement.

6. Deliverables

6.1. The Contractor shall implement a Coordinated Entry System, as detailed in Section 2.1. Exhibit A,
in accordance with the CoC Program interim rule, 24 CFR Part 578 and as amended.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Supportive Housing program as outlined in Section 2.2.
Exhibit A and as outlined in.other written HUD policies and directives as appropriate.

6.2.1. Project outcomes shall include, but are not limited to:

6.2.1.1. Participants exit homelessness faster, and once housed, remain stably housed.

6.2.1.2. Participants experience increased connections to:

6.2.1.2.1. Mainstream benefit resources; employment and/or vocational rehab referrals;

6.2.1.2.2. Mental health and/or substance abuse service access and referrals; and

6.2.1.2.3. Service Coordination Partners for educational, vocational, employment and health
needs.

6.3. The Contractor shall provide accurate and timely reporting as detailed in Section 3.. Program
Reporting Requirements, Exhibit A.

Soulhwejtem Community Servicei, Inc. ExhWt A - AmondmenUU Contractor Initiali
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secrcmri* of Siatc of ihe Siaic of New Hampshire, do hereby certify ihat SOUTH WESTIiRN

CCMMUNIIT SERVICES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on May 19, 1965. I further ccnify that all fees and documents required by the Secrciar>' of State's ofiice have been

received and is in good standing as for a.s this office is concerned.

Business ID; 65514

Certificate Number: 0004822550

0&

y
o "0

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOI*.

I hereto set my-hand and cause to be affixed

the'Scal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 3rd dav of March A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Sccrctor\' of State
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Business Nante; SOUrhM'ESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.

Business Type; Domestic Nonprofit Corporation
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Pri/Kipal Office Address: 63 Community Way. Keeite. NH. 03431, USA

Citizenship / State of Incorporation: Domcstlc/New Hampshire

Duratiort: Perpetual

Business Email: NONE

Nolificalion Email: NONE

Bosirwss ID: 65514

Bininess Status: Good Stnrtding

Nairte in Stale of Itrtutiiotalion: Nut Avaitsbie

Mailing Addresv 63 Comrtxirtity Way, Keene. NH, 03431. USA
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Phone »; NONE
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Principal Purpoa
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I. Kevin Watterson , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. lama duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Southwestern Community Services Inc. .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on February 18 , 2016 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That John A. Manning (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Southwestern Community Services Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with j:he State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein. / f j \

Dated:_lUg]2^^
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Kevin Watterson

Title: Chairman of the Board

Rev. 03/24/20
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Mission Statement

Southwestern Community Services

SCS strives to empower low income people and
families. With dignity and respect, SCS will provide

direct assistance, reduce stressors and advocate for such

persons and families as they lift themselves toward

self-sufficiency.

In partnership and close collaboration with local

communities, SCS will provide leadership and support
to develop resources, programs and services to further

aid this population.
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To the Board of Directors of ciiKTii-ii;!) PUBi.ic accountants

Southwestern Community Sen/ices. Inc. woijcboro • northconv::ay
Keene, New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) and related companies,
which comprise the corisolidated statements of financial position as of May 31, 2019 and 2018!
and the related consolidated statements of cash flows, functional expenses, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements for the years then ended, and the related consolidated
statement of activities for the year ended May 31, 2019.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller Genera! of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

1





Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related
companies as of May 31, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in their net assets and their cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Report on Sumwarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Southwestern Community Services. Inc. and related companies'
2018 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited
financial statements in our report dated September 17, 2018. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative Information presented herein as of and for the year ended May 31, 2018, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the
Schedules of Functional Revenues and Expenses, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial staterhents
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required bv Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 5, 2019, on our consideration of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s intemal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on intemal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Southwestern Community
Services, Inc.'s intemal control over financial reporting and compliance.

November 5, 2019
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIF?;

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MAY 31. 2019 AND 2018

ASSETS

2019 2018

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
Notes receivable

Interest receivable

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Land and buildings
Vehicles and equipment
Fumiture and fixtures

Total property

Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Investment In related parties
Due from related parties
Cash escrow and reserve funds

Security deposits
Other assets

Total other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes
Other current liabilities

Refundable advances

Interest payable
Current portion of long term debt

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term debt, less current portion shown above

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

882,187

1,245,826
51.722
112,000
45.547

2.337.282

19,188,791
554;976
220.291

19,964,058

7.938.217

12.025.841

198,728
59,102

849,334

62,996
384

1,170.544

$  15,533,667

391,613
119,620
233,900
138,740
180,994

49,547
227,221

1,341,635

9.086.445

10,428,080

4,922,671
182,916 _

5,105,587 _

$  15.533,667 $

1.086,895
1,059,922

35,019
112,000
45.547

2.339.383

14,438,178
549,305
39.617

15,027,100

4.880.952

10.146.148

88,706
188,523
517,853
51.996

384

847,462

$  13.332.993

124,085
206,178

250.692
135,573
193,931

216,438

1,126,897

8,273,983

9.400.880

3,787,422
144,691

3,932,113

13,332,993

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED rOMPANIFR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2019
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions

2019

Total

2018

Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Govemment contracts

Program service fees
Rental Income

Developer fee Income
Support
Sponsorship
Interest Income

Forgiveness of debt
Miscellaneous

,  In-kind contributions

$ 10,672,702
2,485,405

995,380

326,558

70,893
7.153

388,849
120,697
241,499

$

125,833

$ 10,672,702
2,485,405

995,380

452,391

70,893

7,153

388,849
120,697
241,499

$ 11,055.093
1,868,188

80i:642
50,000
509,229

105,286
8,959

75,971
100,772
161,852

Total revenues and other support 15,309,136 125,833 15,434,969 14,736,992

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS 87,608 (87,608)

Total revenues, other support, and
net assets released from restrictions 15.396.744 38.225 15.434.969 14.736.99?

EXPENSES

Program services
Home energy programs
Education and nutrition

Homeless programs
Housing services
Economic development services
Other programs

5,238,483

2,659,830

1,994,872
2,319,865

721,370
894,986

•

.5,238,483

2,659,830
1,994,872
2,319,865
721,370
894.986

4,847,201

2,530,152
2,172,388
2,048,214
728,119
945.391

Total program services 13,829,406 - 13,829,406 13,271,465

Supporting activities
Management and general 1,880.406 1,880.406 1,749,700

Total expenses 15,709,812 . 15,709,812 15,021.165

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS BEFORE

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY (313,068) 38,225 (274.843) (284,173)

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY (6.481) - (6,481) (4,583)

GAIN (LOSS) ON INVESTMENT IN LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS 18,116 . 18.116 (188)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (301,433) 38,225 (263,208) (288,944)

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,787,422 144,691 3,932,113 3,397,772

NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM

LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 1,436,682 1,436,682 823.285

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $  4.922,671 $  182,916 $ 5,105,587 $ 3,932,113

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change In net assets $  (263,208) $  (288,944)
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets to
net cash from operating activities;
Depreciation and amortization 580,115 467,'929
Loss on sale of property 6,481 4,583
(Gain) loss on Investment In limited partnerships (18,116) 188

Forgiveness of debt (388,849) (75,971)
(Increase) decrease in assets:

Accounts receivable (185,904) 265,199
Prepaid expenses 5,509 (3,439)
Interest receivable - (4,480)
Due from related parties 44,240 66,149
Security deposits 5,151 (2,623)

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 145,829 (53,220)
Accrued expenses (106,905) (38,863)
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes (16,792) 9,657
Other current liabiiities 3,167 (13,125)
Refundable advances (12,937) (44,414)
Interest payable 49,547

-

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (152,672) 288,626

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(1 ncrease) decrease In escrow funds (33,568) 5,846
Proceeds from sale of property 215,000 .

Purchase of property. (139,717) (142,791)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 41,715 (136.945)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long tenm debt 40,048 76,143
Repayment of long term debt (160,029) (112,612)

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (119,981) (36.469)

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (230,938) 115,212

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,086,895 947,175

CASH TRANSFERRED FROM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 26,230 24.508

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $  882,187 $  1.086.895

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for Interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING

AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfer of assets from newly consolidated LP:
Prepaid expenses .

Land and buildings
Furniture and fixtures

Cash escrow and reserve funds

$  203,408 $ 142.467

(22,212)

(2,373,335)
(168,237)
(297,913)

(12,328)
(894.504)
(96,338)

Security deposits (16,151) (11,467)

Total transfer of assets from newly consolidated LP $ (2.877,848) $ (1,178.747)

Transfer of liabilities from newly consolidated LP:
Accounts payable $ 121,699 $ 10,810
Accrued expenses •20,347 11,199
Due to related parties 85,181
Long term debt 1,332,075 304.073

Total transfer of liabilities from newly consolidated LP $ 1,559.302 $ 326.082

Total partners' capital from newly consolidated LP $ 1,344,776 $ 877.173

Partners' capital previously recorded as Investment in related parties 91,906 (53.888)

Total transfer of partners' capital from newly consolidated LP $ 1,436,682 $ 823,285

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMllHfTY SFBVlCgS IMf.. AMD RELATgP COMPAWtFS

CONSOLDATED STATEMEKT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENPEP MAY 31 M10

Psyrofl
PsyTDll taxM
EmployM beneCts
Reltrafnent

AdvertWng
Bank charges
Bad debt e;4>ense
Computer cost
Conbactual

OepreciBtlon
Ou^regtstrslfon
Duplicating
Insurance

interest

Meeting and conference
Miscenaneous eq)en8e

Miscaflanelous taxes

Eqiipment purchases
Office eq>ectsa
Pottage

A  t ■ •- - -

I lUJOunnBi IMS

staff development and iraMng
SutMcriptions

Telephone
Travel

Vehicle

Rer«

. Space costs
Olteci cflent assistance

Iri'kind eroenses

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL ALLOCATION

Alocatlon ol martagemertt end gerteral expenses

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Education Economic Management
Home Energy and Homelesa Housing Development Other Total and 2019

Proorams Niitrllinn Proorams Services Services Proorams Proaram General Total

S  432.966 S  1224.986 $  377.595 $  775,425 S  414.730 S  432.826 S 3.658.530 5  753.068 S 4.411.598
33.521 97.919 29227 59,738 33,519 34.195 268.419 58204 346.723
106O54 415S90 142.654 289,985 97.771 180294 1232.646 111.111 1.343.759
26.200 70.406 18208 61.936 27.831 16.181 224.462 71.547 296.009

• 500 1.912 4.013 818 9.487 18.730 • 18.730
• • . 4.444 1 4.445 7.329 11.774
- 10 - 90 - - 100 • 100
• 24.540 4.759 3.027 14.926 750 46.002 116.846 164.848

629.045 32.930 230.984 38.696 2.719 116285 1.050.959 39.743 1.090.702
• 28.300 106291 281.950 - 14207 432.746 147267 580.115

5277
- 468 868 1.312 7.945 11.679 19.824

• 6.652 - • - 6.852 4.155 13.007
6,714 14.798 23.590 60.672 14.130 7.164 127.068 33.892. 160,960

• 7.775 6.022 21.956 1.610 39.363 164.045 203.408
6.673 813 2267 8.104 565 22.569 43.291 24.957 68248
181 1,695 637 34.793 3.651 2.931 43.888 19278 63,166
• - - 34.900 . 34.000 389 35289

1.292 15274 - 7287 . 23.853 1.180 25.033
24.620 8.499 6.695 11.475 6.458 807 58.754 11.656 70.410

97 268 138 53 214 . 770 24238 25.008
4.300 • 1201 36.095 . 41.696 90.968 132.664
2.128 1.580 1.678 72 1.904 • 21277 29239 10290 39.829

- - - 655 354 . 1.009 399 1.408
2.087 2256 16.479 17.817 2236 1.589 44.664 52208 96.972
7.9S1 16256 15.412 5.183 29231 608 74.941 4255 79.796
2.300 5225 1.088 37.795 44.426 6.568 09.402 13.436 112.838

• 24,800 - 150 . . 24.950 . 24.950
• 194,946 332251 512.392 1,000 378 1.041.065 106.866 1.147,931

3,947.152 214,436 668284 10.674 23,619 21.049 4.685.214 . 4.885214
- 241.469 -

-
. . 241.499 • 241.499

5.238,463 2.659.830 1.994.872 2219265 721270 894.988 13229.406 1.880.406 15.709,812

712284 361.661 271246 315.436 98.086 121.693 1280.406 (1.880.4061 .

S 5S50.787 S 3.021.491 5 2266.118 S 2.635.301 S  819.456 $  1016.679 $ 15.709.812 $ S 15.709.81?

See Notes to Consolidated Flnanetal Statements



SOUTMWESTERM COMMUWrTY SgRVICeS. IHC.

CONSOUDATEO SCHEDULE OP FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2018

Education Economic Management

Home Energy and Homeless Housing Development Other Total and 2018

Nutrition PrPflfftni Services Senrlees Proorams Program and General Total

Poyroi S  398.452 $  1.208,631 S  435,536 $  771,028 S  405,169 S  439.356 $ 3.656.196 S  774.466 S 4.432.662

Payroltaxw 31.599 99,682 34.153 56,803 30.416 36.018 289.771 60.913 350.664

Emptoyw beoofltt 122.762 453.204 146,394 278.393 67.744 167.020 1375.517 54.590 1.330.107

Ratlfemont 24.960 69,676 21.031 64.244 19360 17,448 216.821 73.148 289.969

MverOsing . 142 1.897 4.166 2.114 16.172 24.491 - 24.491

BankdWDto 15 120 3S34 - - 3369 0,079 13.048

Compiilar oo*t . 9.185 4.3O0 14.144 14.206 3300 45.427 62.052 107.479

Con»«ctual S18J40 52.463 242.935 20.362 2.716 109.718 940.536 . 14.021 961.457

Deptodatlen 26.300 106.291 167340 - 16.131 320362 147367 467.929

Duos/regisnilon . 6.036 343 9M 997 8364 10.175 18.539

Duplcstlng 1.564 6.146 - • - • 9.732 4.321 14.053

Insuranco . 5.909 13.361 23,653 52387 14.610 6346 116.066 36.380 154,446

Intsrosi • 8.656 7,759 6.997 • - 2,554 25.966 116.501 142.467

Meeting and conferenca 3.961 56 9.293 7.177 600 10.305 40.394 35,924 76.318

Mbcelaneous expense 909 971 2.303 18.696 -  4,442 18,560 45,861 13,182 59.063

Misctfaneoua taxes . . . 26.361 . • 26361 986 27.367

Eqiipnienl ptjrehases 4.670 24.320 80 12.346 • 41.416 2.305 43.723

Office expense 34.413 12.613 8.440 14.506 12.042 4376 66.090 20.402 106.492

Postage 132 274 182 31 346 50 1.017 22.918 23.935

Proleaslonal fees' 4S90 - 1S7S 15.879 -
22.644 63.766 106,410

Staff devalopmani and mining 1.430 23.724 2.624 8387 5.675 26.044 69.784 2.943 72.727

Sttosertodons - 28 87 - • 115 1329 1.444

Tetophone 2.086 15.297 19.681 14.569 2.435 3339 57307 50376 113383

Travel 5.335 20.013 20.312 5,195 29.509 2.000 62.364 3309 85373

VeNde 2.140 2S10 712 31326 45.200 9301 91389 10.981 102370

Rwit . 25,201 . . - - 25301 - 25.201

Space OMts 146 140.213 256.649 438344 • 1,009 836363 126.966 965.529

Oiraci dtant assistance 3.663.466 145^20 623.938 14.447 50.531 23,843 4,741.445 4.741.445

In-Mnd expenses . 161.852 . . - 161.852 • 16135?

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE
'

GENERAL AND MANAGEMENT ALLOCATION 4.647.201 2S30.152 2.172.386 2.046314 726,110 945391 13371.465 1.749.700 15.021.165

lUtocatlon ol management and gartefai eitoenses 639.051 333S73 286.407 270.035 05.995 124.639 1.749.700 (1.749.700) .
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (the Organization) Is a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporation formed as an umbrella corporation that offers an array of
services to the elderly, disabled, and low-income households in the Cheshire and
Sullivan counties of New Hampshire. Various programs provide assistance in the
areas of education, child development, employment, energy and its conservation,
housing, and homelessness prevention. Services are provided through
Southwestern Community Services, Inc., and Its related corporations, SCS
Management Corporation, SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation,
SCS Housing Development, Inc., and various limited partnerships, as described
beiow. The Organization is committed to providing respectful support service and
assisting Individuals and families in achieving self-sufficiency by helping them
overcome the causes of poverty. The primary source of revenues Is derived from
governmental contracts.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. and the following entities as Southwestern Community
Services, Inc. has both an economic Interest and control of the entities through a
majority voting Interest In their governing board. All significant Intercompany
Items and transactions have been eliminated from the basic consolidated
financial statements.

■  SCS Management Corporation
■  SCS Housing, inc.
■  SCS Development Corporation
■  SCS Housing Development, Inc.
■  Drewsvllle Carriage House Associates, Limited Partnership (Drewsvllle)
■  Jeffrey Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Jeffrey) - Sold 2/1/19
■  Troy Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Troy Senior)
■  Keene East Side Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Keene

East Side)
■ Winchester Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Winchester)

Consolidation began 8/16/17
■  Swanzey Township Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Swanzey)

Consolidation began 6/30/18
■  Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Associates, Limited Partnership
(Snow Brook) Consolidation began 5/01/19



Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
and related companies have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared In accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require
the Organization to report Information regarding its financial position and
activities according to the following net asset classifications. The classes of net
assets are determined by the presence or absence of donor-Imposed
restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to
donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets
may be used at the discretion of the Organization's Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations
Imposed by donors and grantors; Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature: those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby
the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained In perpetuity.

As of May 31. 2019 and 2018, the Organization had net assets without donor
restrictions and with donor restrictions.

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total but not by net asset class. Such Information does not include
sufficient detail, to constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in
conjunction with the Organization's financial statements for the year ended May
31, 2018 from which the summarized information was derived.

Refundable Advances

The Organization records grant and contract revenue as refundable advances until
it is expended for the purpose of the grant or contract, at which time it Is
recognized as revenue.

In-Kind Support

The Organization records various types of in-kind support including professional
services and materials. Contributed professional services are recognized if the
service received creates or enhances long-lived assets or requires specialized
skill, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need
to be purchased if not provided by donation. Contributions of tangible assets are
recognized at fair value when received.
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Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all liquid
investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect
from balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at May 31, 2019
and 2018. The Organization has no policy for charging interest on overdue
accounts.

Notes Receivable

The Organization has two notes receivable from an unrelated third party. The
notes receivables are stated at the amount that is expected to be collected at
year end. Interest is accrued at a rate of 4% annually. The balance of the
notes receivable and related interest receivable was $112,000 and $45,547,
respectively, at May 31, 2019 and 2018.

Current Vulnerability Due to Certain Cohcentrations

The Organization is. operated in a heavily regulated environment. The
operations of the Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules
and regulations of federal, state and local regulatory agencies. Such
administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an act
of Congress or Legislature. Such changes may occur with little notice or
inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, including the additional,
administrative burden, to comply with a change. For the years ended May 31,
2019 and 2018, approximately 68% and 75%, respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was received from government agencies. The
future nature of the organization is dependent upon continued support from the
government.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains its cash accounts in several financial institutions,
which at times may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not
experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any
significant risk with respect to these accounts.
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Property and Depreciation

Purchased property and equipment are stated at cost at the date of acquisition
or at fair value at the date of receipt in the case of donated property. The
Organization generally capitalizes and depreciates all assets with a cost greater
than $5,000 and an expected life greater than one year. Depreciation is
provided for using the straight-line method in amounts designed to amortize the
cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 10 - 40 Years
Vehicles and equipment 5-10 Years
Furniture and fixtures 7 Years

The use of certain assets is specified under the terms of grants received from
agencies of the federal government. These grants also place liens on certain
assets and impose restrictions on the use of funds received from the disposition
of the property. Depreciation expense for the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018
totaled $580,115 and $467,929, respectively.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Revenue Recognition

Amounts received from conditional grants and contracts received for specific
purposes are generally recognized as income to the extent that related expenses
and conditions are incurred or met. Conditional grants received prior to the
conditions being met are reported as refundable advances. Contributions of cash
and other assets are reported as with donor restrictions if they are received with
donor imposed stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. However, if a
restriction Is fulfilled in the same period in which the contribution is received, the
Organization reports the support as without donor restrictions.

Income Taxes

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and SCS Management Corporation
are exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the internal
Revenue Code and are not private foundations. As such, they are exempt from
income tax on their exempt function income.

SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation and SCS Housing
Development, Inc. are taxed as corporations. SCS Housing Inc. has federal net
operating loss carryforwards totaling $1,012,604 and $915,425 at May 31, 2019
and 2018, respectively. These loss carryfon/vards may be offset against future
taxable income and, if not used, will begin to expire in 2027. SCS Development
Corporation has federal net operating loss carryforwards totaling $579 and $607 at
May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be offset
against future taxable income and, if not used, will begin to expire in 2022.

12



The tax effects of the carryforwards as related to deferred tax assets is as
follows as of May 31, 2019 and 2018;

2019 2018

Tax benefit from loss carryforwards $212,768 $137,408
Valuation allowance (212.7681 (137.4081

Deferred tax asset $ - ^ .

Drewsvllle, Jaffrey, Troy Senior, Winchester. Keene East Side, Swanzey, and
Snow Brook are taxed as partnerships. Federal Income taxes are not payable by.
or provided for these entities. Earnings and losses are included in the partners'
federal income tax returns based on their share of partnership earnings.
Partnerships are required to file income tax retums with the State of New
Hampshire and pay an income tax at the state's statutory rate.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740. "Accounting for Income Taxes."
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for
measuring, the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements.
Management has analyzed the Organization's tax position taken on its income
tax returns for all open years (tax years ending May 31, 2017 - 2019), and has
concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is necessary in the
Organization's financial statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC Topic No. 820-10. Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair
value which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a
framework in generally accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value
which emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an
entity-specific measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair
value measurements. In accordance with ASC 820-10, the Organization may
use valuation techniques consistent with market, Income and cost approaches
to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements. Topic 820-10 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest
priority to Level 3 measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy
under ASC Topic 820-10 are described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.
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Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in
situations vyhere there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability
and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the

■ pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.

The carrying amount of cash, accounts receivables, prepaid expenses, accounts
payable, accrued expenses, and refundable advances approximates fair value
because of the short maturity of those instruments.

New Accounting Pronouncement

On August 18, 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic
958) Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update
addresses the complexity and understandabllity of net asset classification,
deficiencies In information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the
lack of consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and
investment return. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of these
statements accordingly. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to all periods
presented.

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
sumrnarized on a functional basis. Natural expenses are defined by their nature,
such as salaries, rent, supplies, etc. Functional expenses are classified by the
type of activity for which expenses are incurred, such as management and
general and direct program costs. Expenses are allocated by function using a
reasonable and consistent approach that is primarily based on function and use.
The costs of providing certain program and supporting services have been
directly charged.

The Organization submits an Indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
services.. The Indirect cost rate is 11.96% effective from June 1, 2017 through
May 31, 2020.

NOTE 2 BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $250,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a bank.
Interest is due monthly and is stated at the Wall Street Joumal Prime Rate. The
line is secured by all the Organization's assets. As of May 31, 2019 and 2018,
the interest rate was 5.50% and 4.75%, respectively. There was no outstanding
balance at May 31, 2019 and 2018.
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NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt at May 31, 2019 and 2018 consisted of the following:

2019 2018
1% mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing
in monthly installments for principal and interest of
$891 through August 2032. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 96
Main Street). $ 145.647 $ 154,832

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to
Community Development Finance Authority, in
quarterly principal payments based on operating
income formula applied to affordable housing
portion of the specified real estate. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (CDFA,
96 Main Street). 31.589 32,147

5.5% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $978
through March 2021. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (People's United Bank.
Ashuelot). 20,672 31,143

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to" New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through September 2031, or until project is
sold or refinanced. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (NHHFA. 17 Pearl). 244,505 244.505

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through July 2032, unless there is surplus
cash from which to make a payment, or until
project is sold or refinanced. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 41-43
Central). 376,363 376,363

4.25% mortgage payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $1,875
through December 2016, with a balloon payment
that was due January 2017. The note was
amended during the year ended May 31, 2019 and
is now due December 2026. Under the
amendment, interest rate is 4.94% and monthly
installments for principal and interest are $1,957
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (People's United Bank, Milestones). 146,515 162,223
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2019 2018

4.375% note payable to Rural Housing Service in
monthly installments for principal and Interest of
$11,050 through May 2049. The note is secured .
by real estate of the Organization (ID Bank,
Keene Office). 2,212,288 2,247,266

Non-Interest bearing note payable to Cheshire
County in New Hampshire. Payment is not
necessary unless Organization defaults on
contract. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG, Keene Office). 460,000 460.000

4% note payable to a development company, in
annual interest installments only through March
2015 at which time a final balloon payment of the
entire principal balance was due. The remaining
balance Is still outstanding at May 31, 2019 and is
classified as current. The note Is secured by real
estate of the Organization (MEDC, Keene
Office/Community Way). 63,000 63,000

4% note payable to a development company, in
annual interest installments only through March
2015 at which time a final balloon payment of the
entire principal balance was due. The remaining
balance is still outstanding at May 31, 2019 and is
classified as current. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (MEDC, Keene
Office/Community Way). 45,000 45,000

Note payable to a bank In monthly installments for
principal and interest of $2,463 including Interest
through May 2039. Interest is adjusted every five
years based on remaining principal balance and
"Classic Advantage Rate" provided by Federal
Home Loan Bank of Boston which resulted in an

interest rate of 4.67% and 4.07% at May 31, 2019
and 2018, respectively. The note is secured by
real estate of the Organization (TD Bank, Keene
Office/Community Way). 401,891 414,567

5.19% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $889
through May 2021. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (TD Bank, 45 Central
Street). 94,733 100,254
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2019 2018

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each
year providing the property is used for low Income
housing through January 2025. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
Ashuelot). 125.000 150,000

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each
year providing the property is used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD.
112 Charlestown Road). 75,000 90,000

Non-interest bearing note payable to New
Hampshire Housing in annual payments in the
amount of 50% of annual surplus cash through
July 2042 at which time the remaining balance is
due. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (NHHFA, Second Chance). 794,189 794,189

Non-interest bearing note payable to a county in
New Hampshire. No payment is due and 5% of
the balance is forgiven each year through 2032
when the remaining balance becomes due. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(ODBC, Second Chance). 344,536 363,677

6.99% note payable to a finance company In
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$652 through June 2019. The note is secured by a
vehicle (TCF, Econoline Van). 1,293 8,741

5.54% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$543 through August 2022. The note is secured by
a vehicle (Ally, Econoline Van). 19,287 ' 24,564
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2019 2018
Jaffrey - 30-year deferred note payable to the
Town of Jaffrey, New Hampshire. Payment of
prihclpal and accrued interest at 1% were deferred
until the note matures In June 2027. The note was
secured by land and buildings. The balance
Included cumulative accrued interest of $53,651
(CDBG). Jaffrey was sold during the year ended
May 31, 2019 and the balance was forgiven. - 303,651

Jaffrey - 6% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and Interest of $485
through August 2027. The note was secured by
land and buildings (TD Bank). Jaffrey was sold
during the year ended May 31, 2019 and this note
was paid in full. - 4-| 099

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
a county in New Hampshire. Payments are
deferred until the note matures in June 2029. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(CDBG). 640,000 640,000

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority to fund
energy efficiency improvements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHHFA). 140,210 140,210

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to a county In New Hampshire. Payments
are deferred until the note matures in December
2028. The note Is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG). 900,000 900,000

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Community
Development Finance Authority (CDFA) to fund
energy upgrades and capital improvements.
Beginning in 2016, 10% of the note is forgiven
each year based on the rolling balance. The
mortgage may be released after ten years in
January 2026. The note is secured by real estate
of the Organization (CDFA). 185,899 178,172
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2019 2018

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Housing to fund
energy efficiency Improvements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment Is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note Is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHHFA). 228,934 228,934

Swanzey - Non-recourse, 4.90% simple Interest
mortgage note payable to the New Hampshire
Housing (HOME), due September, 2033, principal
and interest payable at the sole discretion of the
lender from the excess cash of the borrower

determined by formula, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 282,720

Swanzey - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF). due
September 2043, payable in monthly installments
of $1,698, including Interest at 2.35% secured by
the Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 40 year
term of the mortgage. 377,110

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, mortgage note
payable to New Hampshire Housing, due July
2057, payable In monthly Installments of $2,002
including Interest at 4.35% secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 446,561

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, zero interest
mortgage note payable to New Hampshire
Housing (AHF), due June 2034, principal and
interest payable at the sole discretion of the lender
from the excess cash of the borrower detennined

by formula, secured by the Partnership's land and
buildings, subject to low income housing use
restrictions for the 30 year term of the mortgage. 237,173
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Winchester - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due May 2032,
payable In monthly Installments of $370, Including
interest at 2.00%, secured by the Partnership's
land and buildings, subject to low income housing
use restrictions for the 30 year term of the
mortgage note (NHHFA).

2019

50,436

2018

53,826

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing
mortgage note payable to New Hampshire
Housing (FAF), due May 2032, payable at the sole
discretion of the lender from the excess cash of

the borrower determined by formula, secured by
the Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30-year
term of the mortgage note (NHHFA). 92,058 92,058

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing,
direct subsidy AHP loan secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject, to low-
Income housing restrictions under the terms of the
AHP agreement. In the event of a default under
the aforementioned agreement, the loan is due
upon demand with interest accrued at a rate of
11.67% for the period the funds were outstanding
(Federal Home Loan Bank). 150.000 150.000

Total long-term debt before unamortlzed deferred
financing costs 9,332,609

(

8.490,421

Unamortlzed deferred financing costs ' M8.9431

Less current portion due within one year
9,313,666
227.221

8,490.421
216.438

$8,273,983

The schedule of maturities of long term debt at May 31, 2019 is as follows:

Year Ending
Mav 31

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Thereafter

Amount

$  227,221
121,051
115,864

115.596
118,605

8.634.272

Total $ 9.332.609
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NOTE 4 OPERATING LEASES

The Organization leases facilities, equipment and vehicles under non-
cancelable lease agreements at various financial institutions. Lease periods
range from month to month to 2024. Monthly lease payments range from $60 to
$3,625. Lease expense for the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018 totaled
$144,880 and $136,963 respectively.

Future minimum payments as of May 31, 2019 on the above leases are as
follows:

Year Ending
Mav 31

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Thereafter

Total

Amount

$  78,745
21,677
18,318
1,050

720

120

$  120.630

NOTE 5 ACCRUED COIVIPENSATED BALANCES
At May 31, 2019 and 2018, the Organization accrued a liability for future annual
leave time that its employees had eamed and vested in the amount of $131,864
and $130,140, respectively.

NOTE 6 CONTINGENCIES

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. is the 100% owner of SOS Housing,
Inc. and SOS Housing Development, Inc. SOS Housing, Inc. and SOS Housing
Development, Inc. are the general partners often limited partnerships formed to
develop low-income housing projects through the use of Low Income Housing
Tax Credits. Southwestern Community Services, Inc., SCS Housing. Inc. and
SCS Housing Development, Inc. have guaranteed repayment of liabilities of
various partnerships totaling approximately $14,151,000 and $15,553,000 at
May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Partnership real estate with a cost basis of approximately $35,831,000 and
$41,158,000 at May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, provides collateral on
these loans.
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The Organization receives funds under various state grants and from Federal
sources. Under the terms of these agreements, the Organization is required to
use the funds within a certain period and for purposes specified by the
governing laws and regulations. If costs were found not to have been incurred
in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization might be required
to repay the funds.

No provisions have been made for this contingency because specific amounts,
if any, have not been determined or assessed by government audits as of May
31, 2019 and 2018.

NOTE 7 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018, SCS Housing. Inc. managed
ten limited partnerships. Management fees charged by SCS Housing, Inc. totaled
$313,466 and $322,973, for the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. Additionally, SCS Housing, Inc. has advanced the limited
partnerships funds for cash flow purposes over several years.

The Organization has also advanced funds to a related entity for Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) sponsorship purposes.

The total amounts due and expected to be collected from the limited partnerships
and related entities totaled $59,102 and $188,523, respectively, at May 31 2019
and 2018.

NOTE 8 EQUITY INVESTMENT

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies use the equity
method to account for their financial interests in the following companies;

CItyside Housing Associates, LP
Marlborough Homes, LP
Payson Village Senior Housing Associates, LP
Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates, LP
WanA^ick Meadows Housing Associates, LP
Woodcrest Drive Housing Associates, LP
Westmill Senior Housing, LP
Swanzey Township Housing Associates, LP
Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing

Associates, LP
Keene Highland Housing Associates, LP
Pilot Health, LLC

2019 2018

(9,500) $  (9,492)
(11) 8

(12,503) (12,491)
(1,897) (1.715)

(21) (17)
222,842 222,846

78 90

- (31,190)

- (60,716)
(260) (243)

- (18.3741

198.728 $  88.706
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SCS Housing Development, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Cityside Housing
Associates, LP, Marlborough Homes, LP, Payson Village Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Warwick Meadows Housing Associates, LP, and Woodcrest
Drive Housing Associates, LP, a 0.10% partner of Railroad Square Senior
Housing Associates, LP, and a 1% partner in Westmlll Senior Housing. LP
during the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018.

SCS Housing, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Winchester Senior Housing
Associates, LP. Swanzey Township Housing Associates, LP, Snow Brook
Meadow Village Housing Associates, LP, and Keene Highland Housing
Associates, LP during the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018.

The remaining 99.99% ownership interest in Swanzey Township Housing
Associates, LP and Snow Brock Meadow Village Housing Associates, LP were
acquired by Southwestern Community Services, Inc. during the year ending
May 31, 2019 (see Note 12), and therefore the limited partnership is Included in
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended May 31, 2019. The
remaining 99.99% ownership interest in Winchester Senior Housing Associates,
LP was acquired by Southwestern Community Service, Inc. during the year
ended May 31, 2018 (see Note 12), and therefore the limited partnership is
included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended May 31,
2019 and 2018.

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. was a 14.3% member of Pilot Health,
LLC during the year ended May 31, 2018. Pilot Health was terminated during
the year ended May 31, 2019.

Summarized financial information for entities accounted for under the equity
method, as of May 31, 2019 and 2018. consists of the following:

2019 2018

Total assets $ 5.745 $ 32.782

Total liabilities 2,454 47,461

Capital/Member's equity 3.291 (14.679)

$  5.745 $ 32.782

Income $ 426 $ 84,713

Expenses 661 81.478

Net income (loss) $ (235) $ 3.235
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NOTE 9 RETIREIVIENT PLAN

The Organization maintains a tax sheltered annuity pian under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the internai Revenue Code. Ali employees who have had at
least 30 days of service to the Organization are eligible to contribute to the plan.
The Organization begins matching contributions after the employee has
reached one year of service. Employer contributions are at the Organization's
discretion and totaled $296,009 and $289,969 for the years ended May 31,
2019 and 2018, respectively.

NOTE 10 RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes:

2019 2018

NNECAC - Annual Conference Fund $ 5,973 $ 21,327
Stand Down - 4.963
GAPSA/Varm Fund 91,908 118,401
Transport 47,260 -

HS Parents Association 6,575 _

EHS 31.200 -

Total net assets with donor restrictions $ 182.916 $ 144.691

NOTE 11 FORGIVENESS OF DEBT

During the year ended May 31, 2019, the Organization realized forgiveness of
debt income in connection with notes payable to Community Development
Block Grant. HUD and Community Development Finance Authority.
Forgiveness of debt income totaled $388,849 for the year ended May 31, 2019.

During the year ended May 31, 2018, the Organization realized forgiveness of
debt income in connection with notes payable to the County of Cheshire, HUD
and New Hampshire Housing. Forgiveness of debt income totaled $75,971 for
the year ended May 31, 2018.
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NOTE 12 TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP iNTEREST

During the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018, Southwestern Community
Services, Inc. acquired a partnership interest in three low-income housing limited
partnerships: Winchester, Swanzey and Snow Brook. The amount paid for the
partnership interest in Winchester, Swanzey and Snow Brook was $1 each, and
at the time of acquisition. Southwestern Community Services, Inc. became the
general partner. The following is a summary of the assets and liabilities of the
partnership at the date of acquisition:

2018 2019

Winchester Swanzev Snow Brook

Date of Transfer 08/16/2017 06/30/2018 05/01/2019

Cash

Security deposits
Cash reserves

Property, net
Other assets

$  24,508
11,467

164,110
990.842

12.328

$ 12,856
7,330

119,061

1,330,231
6.436

$13,374
8,821

178,852

1,211,341
15.776

Total assets 1.203.255 1.475.914 1.428.164

Notes payable
Other Liabilities

304,073
22.009

666,902

87.108

665,173
140.119

Total liabilities 326.082 754.010 805.292

Partners' capital 877,173 721,904 622,872

Partners' capital previously recorded
as an investment in related parties (53.8881 31.190 60.716

Partners' capital transferred S 823.285 $ 753.094 $ 683.588
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NOTE 13 AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY

The following represents Southwestern Community Services' financial assets as
of May 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018
Financial assets at year end:

Cash and cash equivalents $  882,187 $  1,086,895
Accounts receivable 1,245,826 1,095,486
Due from related party 59,102 188,523
Notes receivable 112,000 112,000
Interest receivable 45,547 45,547
Cash escrow and reserve funds 849.334 517.853

Total financial assets 3.193.996 3.046.304

Less amounts not available to be used

within one year

Due from related party
Notes receivable

Interest receivable

Reserve funds

Total amounts not available within one year

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months

(59,102)
(112,000)
(45,547)

(729.4861

(946.1351

$ 2.247.861

(188.523)
(112,000)
(45,547)

(444.9801

(791.0501

The Organization has a goal to maintain unrestricted cash on hand to meet 30
days of normal operating expenditures, which are, on average, approximately
$1,224,000 and $1,183,000 at May 31. 2019 and 2018, respectively. The
Organization has a $250,000 line of credit available to meet cash flow needs.

NOTE 14 RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

NOTE 15 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be Issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date.
Including the estimates Inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that. provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through
November 5, 2019, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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SQUTHWESTFRN CQMMUWITY SgRVlCFS IMC. AWO BFLATFD CQMPANfgS

CONSOUDATEO SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. Mia

REVENUES

Gownmenl contracts

Program service foM
Rental kieome

Oevelcper fee Inccma
Support
Sponsorship

.  IrXerest Income

Forgiveness of debt
MlsceOaneous

IrvUftd contributlom

Total ravertues and other support

EXPENSES

Peyrol
Payrol taxes
Employee benefits
RatiremerX

Advertsing
Bank dwrges
Bad debt

Computer cost
Contractual

Depredation
Ou^registrBtion
OupUcsUng
Insurance

Interest

Meeting and conferaiKa
MIsceBarMous expense
MisceBaneous taxes'

Equipment puithases
Office e;q>arae
Postage
Professional fees

Staff developmertt artd baWng
SubecrtptlorH
Tateptwne
Travel

Vehlde

Rent —

Space costs
Direct cBert assiatarrce

Irt-ldnd er^enses

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL ALLOCATION

ABocaSon of management and general experaes

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Educatloo Eeonontlc Managemant
Home Energy artd Homeless Housing lOevelopment Other Total and 2019

Proorams Niitrftlnn Proorams Services Servlees >rt>tiranM Prvip?"! General Total

t 4.846.587 s 2.853.470 S  1407.684 5 53.038 i 734466 5 146.424 S 10443.769 S 428.933 S 10.672.702
572.421 74.144 997.150 24.700 772,976 2.441.391 44,014 2.465.405

-
-

84.704 909476
•

1.400 995.360 995.380

12.751 18.848 123.835 . 166,704 130,453 452.391 . 452.391
-

2.713 1,104 • . 66,614 70,531 262 70.893
12 - 2.183 3411 13 21 5.440 1.713 ' 7.153
• • 59.141 326,708 - . 388.849 . 388.849

2.770 10.386 4.844 66493 25,146 . 113.042 7.655 120.697
- 241.499 .

. . . 24M90 241.499

t 2.362476 S 1.120.1^ S 14.952.392 ( 482.577 S 15.434969

S  432.668 5 1.224.988 S  377.595 5 n5.425 s 414.730 $ 432,826 % 3.658430 S 753.068 5 4.411.598
33.521 97.919 29,527 59.738 33416 34.195 288.419 58.304 348.723

106.054 415.890 142.654 289485 97.771 180494 1432.648 111.111 1443.759
29.200 70.406 16.908 61.936 27431 16.181 224.482 71.547 .  296.009

500 1412 4.013 618 9.487 16.730 - 18.730
. 4,444 - 1 4.445 7429 11.774

10 - 60 - - 100 • 100
24440 4.759 3.027 14.928 750 46,002 116.848 164448

629.045 32430 230.984 36.696 2.719 116.585 1.050.959 39.743 1.090.702
28.300 108491 281.650 . 14407 432.746 147.367 580.115
5477 • 488 668 1412 7.945 11.879 19.824
B.8S2 • - . . 8.652 4.155 13.007

6.714 14.798 23.590 60,672 14.130 7.164 127.068 33.692. 160.960
7.775 6.022 21,956 . 1.610 39,363 164.045 203.408

8.673 813 2.567 8,104 565 22.569 43.291 24,957 68448
181 1.695 637 34,793 3.651 2.931 43.868 19478 63.166

• 34.900 . 34.900 389 35489
12S2 15,274 • 7.287 . 23.653 1.180 25.033

24,820 8,496 6,695 11.475 6,458 607 58.754 11.656 70.410
97 268 138 53 214 770 24438 25.008

4.300 - 1401 36,095 • 41,696 90.968 132.664
2.128 1.580 1.678 72 1404 21477 29439 10400 39429

• -
. 655 354 .  1.009 399 1.408

2M7 2,356 18.479 17417 2436 1469 44,684 52408 96.972
7.951 18456 15.412 5.183 29431 608 74441 4.855 79.796
2.300 5425 1.088 37.795 44.426 8468 99.402 13,438 112438

• 24400 • 150 - . 244S0 . 24.950
• 194448 332451 512.392 1400 378 1441465 106.886 1.147431

3.947.152 214.436 668484 10.674 23419 21.049 4485414 - 4485414
- 241.499 . . . . 241.499 . 241.499

5.236.463 2.6S9.S» 1.994472 2419465 721470 894.986 13,829.406 1.880.408 15.709.812

712.284 361.661 271446 315,436 96.086 121.693 1480.406 (1,880.406)

$ 5.650.787 5 3.021.491 S 2466.118 1 2.635.301 5 819.456 % 1.016.679 % 15.709.812 s S 15.709412

See Indepenrlent Auditors' Report
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SOUTHWPST^RW COMMUNITY SPRVICES. INC.

CONSOUDATEO SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2018

Horn* En«r0y
Proorams

REVENUES

Oovenvnent contrscts

Program service Im
Rental Income

Developer fee income
Support
Sponsorship
Interest income

Forgiveness of debt

MtsceBaneous

In-kind contrttudons

Total revenues

104.617

23

2.010

Education

and

Nutrition

4.034.242 S 2.823.698

35.405

7

126

Homeless

Proorams

S  1.920.112
76,506

117,370

99,437

80

1,051

59,141

6,485

Housing
Services

47.823

978.904

684.072

50.000

1.362

16.830

42.373

Economic

Development
Services

756.952

17.915

139.240

47.352

Other

Proorams

i  166.921

794.863

200

130.530

105,206

35

Total

Program

S 10.649.748

1.868.188

801.642

50.000

509.229

105.286

2.478
75.971

98.346

161.852

Management
and General

405.345

6,481

2.426

2018

Total

$ 11.055.093
1.868.188
801.642
50,000

509,229
105,286
6.959

75.971

100.772

161.652

S 5.040.892 S 3.021 088 6  961.459 S 1.197.755 S 14.322.740 414.252

EXPENSES

Peyrol $  396.452 %  1.206.631 $  435,538 $  771,026 5 405.189 $  439.358 $  3.658.196 S  774.466 $  4.432.662
Peyroa taxes 31,599 99.882 34,153 56,803 30.416 36.918 289.771 60.913 350.684

Employee benefits 122,762 453.204 148,394 278,393 87.744 187.020 1.275.517 54.590 1.330.107

Retirement 24,960 69.878 21,031 64544 19.260 17.448 216.821 73.148 269.969

Advertising . 142 1597 4,166 2.114 16.172 24.491 - • 24.491
Bank Charges 15 . 120 3.634 - - 3.969 9,079 13.048

Computer cost - 9.185 4.300 14,144 14.296 3,500 45,427 62,052 107.479
Contractual 516,340 52.463 242.935 20.362 2.718 109,716 946,536 14.921 961.437

Depredation . 28.300 108.291 167.840 . 16,131 320,562 147,367 467,929
Dues/registiation . 6.030 . 343 988 997 8564 10.175 18539

Duplicating 1584 8.148 . . - - 9.732 4.321 14.053

Insurance 5,909 13.361 23.653 52.287 14.610 6548 116.068 38.380 154.448

Interest . 8.656 7.759 6,997 . 2.554 25.966 116.501 142.487

Meeting and conference 3.961 58 9593 7.177 600 19.305 40.394 35,924 76.318

MlacaRaneous eigiense 900 971 2.303 18.696 4.442 18.560 . 45.881 13.182 59.063

MisceBaneous taxes . . 26.381 . 26.381 986 27,387

Equipment purchases 4.670 24.320 80 12548 - . 41,418 2.305 43.723

Office expertse 34.413 12.613 .  8.440 14.506 12,042 4.076 86,090 20.402 106,492

Postage 132 274 182 31 346 50 1,017 22.916 . 23,935
Professional 4.690 . 1.875 15.879 .

. 22.644 83,766 106,410

Staff development and trairUng 1.430 23.724 2.624 8.287 5.675 28,044 69.764 2.943 72,727
Subscriptions - . 28 87 - - 115 1,329 1.444

Telephone 2.086 15.297 19.681 14.569 2.435 3.239 57.307 56,576 113383

Travd 5535 20.013 20.312 5.195 29,509 2,000 82.364 3.509 85.873

Vehkde 2,140 2.510 712 31.826 45.200 9,201 91.589 10.981 102.570

Rent - 25.201 . . . - 25.201 • 25501

Specs costs 148 140513 258.849 438.344 . 1,009 836.563 128.966 065.529

Direct cSent assistance 3.683,466 145.220 823.938 14.447 50.531 23,843 4.741.445 4.741.445
Itvklnd erqiettses . 161.852 . . . . 161.852 • 161.852

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

GENERAL AND MANAGEMENT ALLOCATION

Allocation of management and general expenses

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

4.647.201

639,051

2.530.152

333.574

2.172.388

266.406

2.048.214

270.035

728.119

95.995

945.391

124.639

13571,465

1.749,700

1.749.700

f1.749.700)

15.021.165

$ 5,486552 S 2.863.726 $ 2.458.794 S 2.318.249 % 824.114 S  1.070.030 S 15.021.165 $ $ 15.021.165

See Independent Auditors' Report
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8QllTHWEaT6RN COMMUNITY SERVICSS. INC. AND RgLATFD CQMPAMtRS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDFTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. M1«

FEDERAL
FEDERAL GRANTOR/ CFDA PASS-THROUGH FEDERAL

PASS-THROUOH ORAMTORffROGRAM TITLE NUMBER GRAKTGR-a NAME RRAMTOR-S MIIMBRR EitPENDmiRF

U.S. D*nirtm*rTl of Aorieoltur*

RurN Houatng Pra**rvction Grant 10.433 DIracI Funding 3403-02601-608 t 22,076
Sp*dN SupptonarU Nutrition Program for

Went*n. Infanti. vd ChOdrin (Vt^) 10,657 ' Stal* of NH Oapt. of Haalth 6 Human Sarvlcaa 01006062600000-102-600734 347,617
Chid and AduK Cm Food Program 10,658 Stata of NH. Dapt of Education Unknowin 131,268
Food DMrlbutlon Clu*t*r

Commodity Sopplamanlal Food Piogram 10.688 Stata of NH Dapt of Haalth & Human Sarvlcaa 0104)6062600000-102-600734 S  2,883
Etiwgancy Food AaaWane* Program (Admin) 10666 Cemmudly Action Prrrgtim Balknap-Marrlmack Couidlaa Unknown 1,444
Ernargatwy Food AaaWanc* Pnvii (Food Commoditi**) 10.660 Community Action Program Baiknap-Matrlmack Countfoa UnkniMn 80 048 03 373

Total U.S. OofarttTMra of Agrioultur* 6 605 4.13

11 R. 0*flirtm*rd of Houainn trtd Urban D*v*tonm*nl

Emargancy SoUier* Grard Program 14.231 StaU el NH. DHHS. Biraau of Homafoa* & Houairg 0666-66-656310-717600000-102-50731 8  155,482
Emarpancy SoUlona Grant Program 14.231 StaU of NH. DHHS, Offlc* of Human Sarvica* 010042-7627-102-0731 02.390 6 247.881
SupporUva Houdng Program 14.235 Stata of NH, DHHS, Buraau of Homalwa 8 Houaing 06-65-63-668310-717600000-102-50731 217.705
Shattar Plua Car* , 14J»a Stata of NH, DHHS, Btnau of Homaltaa 8 Houafng 0S-65-66-e68310-717a0000O-1026O731 281,485
Condnuun of Cara Program , 14J67 Stata of NH, DHHS, Bifaau of Homalaaa 8 Houatng 0665-06658310-717600000-102-60731 163.421

Total U.S. Dopartmard of Houaifxi arri Urban Oavalopmatd f onnae?

U.8. Daeartmaid of 1 ahor

WIOACiuatar

WtA AduH Program 17.258 SouOiatn NH Sarvleaa Unknown 5  42,285
WIA DWocatad Workar Formula Granta 17^76 Seulham NH Sarvica* Unkrawn 34.319 S 76 804

Total U.S. Oapartmani of Labor/WIA Cluttar ( 78.604

U.8. DaoartmanI of Tranarrortfllon Fadaral TrsnaK Admlnlatratlon fFTAI

Formula Granta lor Rural Araaa 20.609 Stata of NH, Dapartmard of Tranaportalion 04-6666-664010-2016 s 247,907
Tranail Sarvic** Programa Ctuatar

Erdwnead MohRty of Satdora and hdhrUuala vdth DtaabOtlaa 20.613 Stata of NH, Oapartmard of Trmaportdon 0466 66 664010-2916 26.360

Total U.S, Oapartmard of Tranaportatlon Fadarai Trsait Admbdatratlon (FTA) s 274.326

U.S. Daoartmant of Vafarana Affair*

VA Supportlva Sarvlcaa for Vaiaran FamUlaa Program 64.033 Harbor Horn**, Inc. Unkmwn f 07.470

Total US. Oapartmard of Vatarana Alfaica 1 07 470

IIR ftenartmanlrrfPnamv

Waathartzatlon Aaalatanea tor Low Inooma Parsica 81.042 Stata of NH, Offlca of Enargy 8 Plannfog 01-02624010-7706074-500587 » lie 164

ToiN U.S. Oapartmard el Energy 5 116.164

II.*. DanartmanI of Haatth 8 Human Sarvleaa

Aging Chiatar
Spadal Progrwh* br tha Agbig; TWa III. Part e,
Orsda lor Supporthra Sarvleaa and Sanlor Cantara 03.044 StataefNH, OfTlcaofEnatyy 8 Plavdng 01-Q2-024010-770e-C74-600587 S  6,324

Spactd Programa forth* Aging, TB* III, Part 6.
Orarda for Supporthra Sarvlcaa arvl Senior Cardwa 03.044- StM of NH, DHHS, Buraau of Eldarly 8 Adult Sarvio** 05-06-48-481010-7872 37 OM 6 43,263

Grada to StMaa to SiRport Oral HaaKh Wodiforca AdhdUaa 03.236 StdaofNH, DHHS, DMafon of FamDy Aaafotanea Unknown 13,470
OrugFraa Commtaddaa Svpoft Program Orarda 83.278 DIrad Funding 6H76SP018677-08 137,670
Aflotdatd* Cart'Act (ACA) - ConaumarAaalatanea Program Grant* 03.510 Olract Furvflng HCBC/CFI 0,140
TANF Cluatar

Tampotary Aaalatanea for Naady FamBaa 63.668 Seutham NH Sarvic** Unknown 290,634
LowlncemaHorTi*EnargyAMlatarKa(Fual Aaafotanea) 03.668 Stata of NH, Ofllo* of Enargy 8 Ptanrdng 01-02-0262401677050000600687 4,303,050
Low Ineema Horn* Enargy Aaafotanea (HRRP) 03.688 Slat* of NH, Offlc* of Enargy 8 Ptanrdng 01-02-Q2-024010-77050000600587 165,602
Low Inooma Horn* Ertargy Aaaidanea (BWP) 83.668 Stataof NH,0(ncaofEn*tgy8Plar«dno 01-02-02-024010-77060000600687 216.521 4,887,172

Commurdty Sarvlcaa Bloek Grant 63.660 Slat* of NH, DHHS, Dhr. of Fandly Aadatwic* 600731 406,883
Canmunty Sarvleaa Block Grwd - OfocraUonaty 63.570 Stata of NH, DHHS, DIv. of Family AMfolanc* 22,306
HaadStwt 63.600 Olraet Fundino oiCHOoeo 2,328,266
Madlcaid Ctuatar

Madeal Aaalatanea Ptogrvn 63.778 Stata of NH, DHHS, Omca of Human Sarvic** 05-05-47-47001062010000 12.271

Total U.S. Oapartmard of Haalth 8 Human Satvlcat » 7.057.003

U.S.D*ott1m*nlofHnm*iand Haeurlf*

Emtrgahey Food and ShaRar NadonN Board Program 87.024 Stata of NH, DHHS. Offlc* Of Hianan Sarvio** Unknown 5 2.000

TolB U.S. Oapartmard of.Homaland Sacurlty } 2000

TOTAL i 10.010.620

Sm Net** to Schedul* of Ezptndltui** of F*d*r*l Award*
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2019

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
under programs of the federal government for the year ended May 31, 2019. The
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Scheduie presents only a selected portion of
the operations of Southwestern Community Services, inc., it is not intended to
and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows
of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUMIVIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

,  Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Southwestem Community Services, Inc. has elected not to use the ten percent
de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD DONATION

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.

NOTES SUBRECIPIENTS

Southwestem Community Services, Inc. had no subrecipients for the year ended
May 31, 2019.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Southwestern Community Services. Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated
financial statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as of May 31, 2019, and the related consolidated statements of activities, cash flows,
and functiohal expenses for the year then ended, and the related consolidated notes to the
financial statements; and have issued our report thereon dated November 5, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered
Southwestern Community Services. Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services,
Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southwestern Community Services.
Inc.'s consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
consolidated financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

November 5, 2019
Wolfeboro. New Hampshire
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SOUTHWESTERN COMIVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies' compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described In the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended May
31, 2019. Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Southwestern Community
Services, Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained In Government Auditing Standards, Issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States; and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and performing
such' other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Southwestern Community Services, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended May 31, 2019.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. Is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective Internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestem Community Services, Inc.'s
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compiiance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that were not identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

November 5, 2019
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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SOUTHWESTERN CQIVIIVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2019

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the consolidated financial
statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. were prepared In accordance with
GAAP.

2. No significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the consolidated financial
statements are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material
weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the consolidated financial statements of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award prograriis are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for. Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a);

7. The programs tested as major programs were: U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services: Low-Income Home Energy Assistance, 93.568, and U.S. Department of
Transportation; Formula Grants for Rural Areas, 20.509.

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Southwestern Community Services, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None

35



SOUTHWESTERN COMIVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2019

There were no findings or questioned costs that were required to be reported in the Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs for the year ended May 31, 2018.
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John A. Manning

1

Summary Over 30 years of experience with non-prom organizations, as both an
outside auditor and presently Chief Executive Officer of a large
community action agency.

Expoilence 2014-Present Southwestern Community Services Inc.

Keene, NH

Chief Executive Officer

Has overall strategic and operational responsibility for a community action
agency providing services to low and moderate income individuals.
Programs include Head Start, Fuel Assistance, and multiple affordable
housing projects. Responsit>ilities include maintaining ongoing excellence,
rigorous program evaluation and consistent quality of finance, administration,
fundraising, communications and systems; Works with the Board of Directors
and management team to implement the objectives of SCS's strategic plan.
Actively engages and energizes volunteers, board members, event
committees, partnering organizations and funders. Develops and maintains
strong relationships with the Board of Directors and serve as.ex-officio
member of the Board. Leads, coaches, devetops and retains a high-
performance management team. Ensures effective systems are in place to
measure work performance, provide regular feedback to funding sources
and community partners.

1990-2014 Southwestern Community Services Inc.

Keene, NH

Chief Financial OfRcor

Oversees all fiscal functions Supervises a staff of 7, with an agency
budget of over $ 13,000.000.' Also oversees agency property
management department, which manages over 300 units of affordable
housing.

1985-1995 • Keene State College Keene. NH
Adjunct Professor

Taught evening accounting classes for their continuing education
program.

1978-1990 John A. Manning. Keene, NH
Certified Public Accountant

Provided public accounting services to small and medium sized clients,
including multiple non-profit organizations. Performed certified audits on
several clients, including Head Start and other non-profit clients



Kostin and Co. CPA's West Hartford. Ct.1975-1978

Staff Accountant

Performed all aspects of public accounting for r^edium sized accounting
firm. Audited large number of privately field and non-profit clients.

Education 1971-1975 University of Mass.

" 6.S. Business Administration in Accounting

Amherst, Ma.

Organizations . American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

NH Society of Certified Public Accountants



Marearet Freeman

Experience

2000-Present

Southwestern Community Services Inc.
Keene, NH

. Chief Financial Officer (2014 - present)
Supervising the quality of accounting and fLnajicial reporting of SCS; a Community
Action Agency. Total funding of $18 million; federal, state and local funding sources.
Primary responsibUities include overseeing the accounting functions, implementation
and monitoring of internal controls, reporting financial position to the Board of
Directors, preparation of the annual'A-133 audit, member of agencies Senior Staff.

Fiscal Director (2000-2014)

Responsible to lead and manage the daily operations of the Fiscal Department of SCS.
Primary duties include budget preparation and analysis, financial statement preparation
and audit coordination.

1993 -2000

Emile J. Legere Managernent Corp
Keene, NH

Accountant

Provided bookkeeping for real estate management/development corp. Managed 16
affordable housing properties. Responsible for cash management, general ledger, A/P,
A/R, financial statement prep, and audit prep. Leasing Manager of large
commercial/retail property responsible for lease management and marketing of over 30
retail spaces.

Education

Leadership New Hampshire, Graduate 2011

Plymouth State University, Plymouth, NH
M.B.A., 1999

Keene State College, Keene, NH
B.S., Management 1991; concentration Mathematics and Computer Science



CRAIG A. HENDERSON

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS
•  ProficicDt In: Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Internet, Outlook, Photoshop,
•  Ability to prioritize In a fast paced environment and to learn new tasks quickly ond efTectls'ely
•  Dedicated, reliable end responsible
•  F.xtcnslve background la Social Services, Propcrt)- iVIanagcment, Finance, and Customer Service

EDUCATION '

•  Psychology with a ipeciallzation in counseling May, 1999
B-S Business Managemeat

Keooe State College
Keene, NH 03435

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

HendersoD & Bosley Property Managemeot 8/02-Prc$CDt

if Kcenc, NH

•  Adhering to NH Slate housing laws and government housing programs
• Advertising and marketing of vacant apartments. Creating leases, Performing credit checks
•  Property inspections and maintenance- including basic carpentry, landscaping etc.
•  Research and management of investment opportiuiities

Southwcstero Communit)* Services 10/07-Present
Director of Housing Stabilization Services

Designs and implements systems to provide efficient operalion of all Housing Stabilization
programs. .

Manages and leads assigned staff to ensure SCS policies and procedures are followed in a manner
consistent with the organizalioo's mission, values, and culture.

•  Paj^cipales in the hiring of new employees and oversees the orientation and training of all assigned

• Maintain compliance with State/Govemment/Agency protocols, procedures, and reporting.

Southwestern Community Services IO/07-Prcsent
Assistaut Director of Housiog Stabilization Services Keene, NH

• Monitor quality of services, operation of assigned programs, facilities, and staff.
•  Process and certify tenant/client applications for all Supportive Housing Programsi facilitate movc-

in process; track oind collect rents/subsidies utilizing Classic Real Estate Software; track and collect
• all match documentation; recertify tenants when necessary and in a timely manner.

• Maintain compliance with Staie/Govemment/Agency protocols, procedures, and reporting.

Southwcstero Community Servic^ 02/03-10/07
Long Term Transitional Mousing Program Administrator Kecuc, NH

•  Responsibilities include: Assisting the homeless of Cheshire County with budgeting and referrals to
Other needed services; Advocating on behalf of clients lb create new netu'orks and improve current
relationships; providing counsel through tougli transitions, as well as. creating and maintaining an
environment of success through programs such as Mediation Training, Consumer Credit
Counseling, Psychological Therapy, Parenting Classes, and First Time Homcbuyers programs.

•  Basic maintenance of shelter properties and invcntoiy control
•  Responsible to track data and create statistical reports based on infomiaticn collected to assist in

budget allocations for Southwestern Community Ser\'iccs
Coldwell Banker/Tattcrsal) 1/02-3/04
Real Estate Sales Associate Keene, NH

.• Assisting buyers and sellers of real estate throu^ customer/client interaction
•  Informing clients-'cuslomers of federal ond state regulations, financing options, and negotiating
•  Creating marketing plans and researching pricing through competitive market analysis



vt5ioD Appraisal lecODOiogy 3/uz-i/uj

Data Collector , . . . Keene, NH

•  Assured accurate and*consistent real-estate assessments with the efrlp^fiasls in field work

-• Position required strong attention to detail with the emphasis in property measurement and
appraisal as well as requiring strong customer skill by acting a.s a liaison between town assessors
office and the property owner

Monadnet 8/99-8/01

Customer Service Super\'lsor Kccne, NH

•  Responsibilities include maintaining oil major accounts and new account data; managing projects
and delegating respoosibililies, A/R and A/P reconciliation, Collections of delinquent accounts.

•  Financial Analysis and Trend Monitoring, Billing Systems Analyst
•  Direct mediation and resolution of customer scrN'^ice issues.

AWARDS RECEIVED

«  D«lra Mu Delta: Nadooal Ouiinen Honor Society
•  Psi Chi: National Piycholocy Honor Sodcty

CONTl^fUINC EDUCATION AND CERTIFICATIONS

04/18/2007 Certified Occupancy Specialist - National Center for Housing Management

09/23/2008 Successful completion of "Landlord and Teoant Luw" seminar - Lormun Educatiooal Services

02/23/2016 HUD Certified Rousing Quality Standards Inspector

01/21/2016 Completed 8.5 hours of Nonviolent CrIsU lntcr\'ention (raining

04/26/2013 Certification in Pair Housing Law - Granite Stale Managers Association

08/10/2016 Blood Borne Pathogen Training

08/24/2016 6 hours of comprehensive low Income housing (ox credit training - Johnson Consulting Services, Inc



SIERRA HUBBARD
Experience

Hundred Nights Inc., Case Manager (Keene, NH)
May 2020 - Present

• Arrange meetings with shelter guests and resource center visitors to determine needs
• ̂Help guests apply for public housing assistance, as well as non-cash benefits, Social

Security, health care, and employment assistance
• Track down and secure identifying documents, including birth certificates, Social Security

cards and government identification cards
•  Enter guests' information and case notes into the Hundred Nights database and HMIS

Hundred Nights Inc., Overnight Supervisor {Keene, NH)

April 2020-May 2020
•  Ensured shelter guests' comfort and safety overnight
• Woke guests each morning and ensured everyone left the building on time

The Keene Sentinel, Reporter (Keene, NH)
January 2018 - March 2020

• Wrote multiple stories per week for The Keene Sentinel, specializing in covering city
government and housing/homelessness

Cobb County Courier and other publications, Freelance Reporter (Metro Atlanta, GA)
May 2017 - December 2017

• Wrote stories for multiple publications in the Atlanta area during final semester of college
• Covered arts and entertainment events, local government and police, and breaking news

in three Georgia communities

The Kennesaw State University Sentinel, Ed/for-m-Ch/ef (Kennesaw, GA)
October 2013-July 2017
• As editor-in-chief from June 2016 to July 2017 of The KSU Sentinel (a weekly

newspaper at a metro Atlanta university with 36,000 students), oversaw the publication's

budget, distribution, advertising, content and staff of 12 student editors and designers
• As news editor from February 2015 to June 2016, edited stories and determined layout
• As a staff writer from October 2013 to February 2015, wrote stories for the news section

GameStop, Senior Game Adviser (Hiram, GA)
September 2013 - January 2016
• Worked as a store clerk for two years before being promoted to Senior Game Adviser, a

management position, in September 2015

Kirkland's, Assistant Store Manager (Hiram, GA)
August 2013 • September 2015
• Worked as a store clerk for just over a year before being promoted to assistant store

manager in the fall of 2014; duties included opening and closing the store, counting
down the drawers, and running the stock crew

•  Became the interim senior assistant store manager in the summer of 2015; duties
included overseeing the staff, ensuring the proper execution of product displays, and
scheduling shifts in the store manager's absence



Education

Kennesaw State University, Kennesaw, GA (Aug. 2013 • Dec. 2017)
•  Bachelor's in communication

• Certificate in multi-platform news reporting

Skills

Excellent interpersonal communication skills
Experienced dealing with the public in multiple capacities, including customer service,
management and journalism

Skilled writer with excellent grasp of grammar and clarity
Proficient with many computer programs, including all Word and Google suite software
and HMIS database entry
Able to learn quickly and adapt to new environments



Liza Regan

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE

Southwestern Comniunit)' Services, Keene, NH; August 2017 - Present

Supportive Housing Program Case Manager/Facilities Coordinator, Housing Stabilization Services

Responsibilities include: campus supervisor, case management, seek stable housing for clients, work with program vouchers,

build community partner connections, build landlord connections, act as landlord agent for SCS permanent housing projects,

property maintenance including managing contract bids, estimates and supervise indoor and outdoor facilities work orders

Mount Royal Academy. Sunapee, NH; September 2016 - December 2017

Drama Director/Substitute Teacher;

Responsibilities included: directing student productions for the community, advertising, fimdraising and budgeting, classroom
education, organizer and director at 2017 summer arts camp

Woodcrest Village Assisted Living, New London, NH; June 2017- August 2017

Resident Aide

Responsibilities included: assisting with personal care of residents, evaluating emergency situations, supervision of building

during night shift, clear communication between residents, their families and staff, accurate medical reporting, written and
verbal, basic house-keeping and laundry

Woodlawn Care Center, Newport, NH;

June 2019-Current

Sub-contracted painter

June 2016 - June 2017

Residential Services Aide

Responsibilities included: laundry, housekeeping, music activities

January 2010 - September 2012

Licensed Nurse's assistant, activities assistant, kitchen aide

Self- Employment; January 2004 - December 2017

Home-study tutor, personal assistant, nanny, elderly homecare

SKILLS

• Self-Motivated • Computer Knowledge
• Client-focused • Fundraising

• Maintenance Coordination • Compassionate

• Excellent communication • Professional

• Public Relations • Leadership

• Time management skills • Creative

EDUCATION AND TRAINING

Bachelor of Arts

Liberal Arts, Magdalen College, Warner NH United States 2002

Education; Classical Study, Rhetoric, Logic, Music and Arts, Student Life Leadership, Paid Work Study, Choir Assistant

High School Diploma

Our Lady of Victory, Hamilton Ontario Canada 1998

PROJECTS: Maddie's Hands founded 2013: collecting and distributing hygiene products and home goods to local outreach
projects, organized and hosted an annual day of respite for NH special needs families for four years



Contractor Name: Southwestern Community Services. Inc.

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

John Manning CEO $132,080 0 0

Meg Freeman CFO $90,854 0 0

Craig Henderson Director of Housing
Stabilization

$51,043 6.5% $3,318

Sierra Hubbard Coordinator $33,280 60% $19,968
Liza Regan Coordinator $34,410 50% $17,205



MflRll'20pti 2:04 DOS ? /

Lori A.Shibinettc

Commissioner

Christine L. Stntaniello

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 0330!

603.271-9474 1-800.852-3345 Ejit 9474

Fax:603-27M230 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

March 6. 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

.State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and 'Housing
Stability, to enter into a sole source agreement with Southwestern Community Services. Inc.. 63
Community Way, P.O. Box 603, Keene, NH 03431-0603 (vendor code 177511- ROOI), to provide a
Permanent Housing Program to individuals experiencing homelessness through the Federal Continuum
of Care Program, in an amount not to exceed $89,787. effective April 1, 2020 or upon Governor and
Executive Council approval, whichever is later, through March 31, 2021. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021. with authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,

HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $22,448

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $67,339

Total $89,787

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because federal regulations require the Department to identify
vendors with whom the Department will contract during the annual federal Continuum of Care Program
renewal application process prior to the grant award being issued. The U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development reviews the applications and subsequently awards funding based on its criteria. The
application process and timing of grant terms do not align with state or federal fiscal years. The start
date of a grant is based on tKe month in which each grant's original federal agreement was issued. This
results in Continuum of Care Program grant start dates, and subsequent renewal approval requests,
occurring in various months throughout the year.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

The purpose of this request is to provide a Permanent Housing Program that delivers permanent
housing and supportive services, as well as associated administrative services, to individuals facing
homelessness to increase the ability of participants to live more independently.

The vendor will provide permanent housing and supportive services targeted to serve five (5)
households previously experiencing chronic homelessness, at any given time, from April 1. 2020 through
March 31. 2021.

The attached agreement represents one (1) of thirty (30) total agreements, all of which have
renewal dates dispersed throughout the calendar year. The thirty (30) agreements are with vendors who
are located throughout the state to ensure statewide delivery of housing services through New
Hampshire's Continuum of Care Program.

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development established the Continuum of Care
concept to support communities in their efforts to address the problems of housing instability and
homelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive, and strategic fashion. The Continuum of Care serves
three main purposes:

(1) A strategic planning process for addressing homelessness in the community.

(2) A process to engage broad-based, community-wide involvement in addressing homelessness
on a year-round basis.

(3) An opportunity for communities to submit an application to the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development for resources targeting housing and support services for individuals
and families who face homelessness.

The Department ensures contract compliance and vendor performance in the following ways:

(1) Annual compliance reviews are performed and include the collection of data relating to
compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

(2) Statistical reports are submitted by the vendor on a semi-annual basis which include various
demographic information and income and expense reports, including match dollars.

(3) The vendor is required to maintain timely and accurate data entry in the New Hampshire
Homeless Management Information System, which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes
and activities of shelter and housing programs funded through these contracts.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, the parties have the option to extend contract
services for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Executive Council approval.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, Permanent Housing and
supportive services for homeless individuals may not be available in their communities, and there may
be an increase in demand for services placed upon the region's local welfare authorities. Lack of sen/ices
may also cause individuals to become homeless.

Area served; Cheshire County

Source of funds: 100% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development, Office of Community Planning and Development, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
Number (CFDA) #14.267. Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) # TBD.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

In the event that the Federal funds become no longer available. General funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

(^9U
Lorl A. Shibinette

Commissioner ■

The DcparLmenl of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join communilies and families
in providing opportunities for cilucns to achieve health and independence.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Subjcci: rnnilnrnim pf'Cnrg. Next Sleo^ Fermaneni Houainc Proitn'm
Notice: TTiis agrwinicnl ond all oHtj attachments shall become public upon submission to C^vchibr and

teccutivcCouncil for opprox-al. Any infomiaiipn thai is pri^c, confidemlal or prbprictoo' muin
be cleariy idcniificd to the agency and agreed lo in writing prior to siting the comraci.

" >

acref.ment

TliC State ofNew Hairipshirc and the ContrKior ho-cby mutually agree as rollow-s:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.
M estate Agency Name
NK'bcpartmcnibf Heaiih'and Human Services

1.2 Slate Agency Address
i29 Pleasant Street
Concord, Nil 0230I0857

1.3 Con^cfor Name
Southwestern Com'muhlty Services, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address,
63 Community Way
P.O. Box 603

Kccnc.NH 03431^603

1 ..5 Contractor Phone
Number

603)352-7512

1.6 Account Number

05-9.M2^230i0^7927
102-500731

1.7 Completion Oaie

Mdrah 31.2021

1.8 Price Lirhltnlion

S89.787

1.9 Conirocting Officcr for State Agency
Noihab b. WbHe, Diixctor

1. 10 Statc Agency Telephone Number
603-271-963!

or Sigriaturc1.11 C

ofStaleledge1.13 AcJ<nou me

bh of the PencfN usticc1.13.1 Sign urc

I Seal I

mc ana \il^ Ot Wtary or jusncc oi ine

-SiSP
14 State AgcncyjSignaiiirc ' ^ ~] L-'^ Namcllnd Tlllc of Stoie/gency Signatory

[ of Notary or Justice of the. Peace

^auiri: ^ LI 5 Naine'^nd Title of Slate Agency Signatory

l

1.12 Name .and Title of Cioniracior Siipviloo'

Jidoa A.VQmitx:\)CEq)
, County of

On "iTVi/Ch 5 3C^. bcforc the undersigned officcrj personally opptarad the person itlcnlified in block 1.12, or salisfocionly
proven to be the ̂ rson whose name is signed in block I. IJ. and acknowledged that s/hc c.-iccuicd thiidocumcot In the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.16 Approval by.\

>nshn>r ̂ mr\ K////)
ic\H. Dcpanrncm of AJninTsfcaiidri^vision.of Personnel Of "ppl'^ohlt)

Director, On:

I ;.l 7 Approval by the Attorney Cf^croUFcrm. Substance nnd Execution) O/opp^icablc)

By:

1.) 8 Approve W'c Oovcrnor and E.\ccuiivfCbuncil fif applicable)

By; On:

Pqgc I br4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONT^CtOR/SERVICECS TO
BE PERFORMED. :Thc!SuUco'f New Hanipshire, actinfi
ihrou^ ihc ogency identified in b|ock I. I (^State"i. engages
conlTBCtor. idcntifi^ in block r.3 (".^nlractor ') to perforn>.
and the Cotilr^ior shall pcrtoTO, ihc work or sale of goods, or
bothi identified and mo're.^rticolariy described in.ihc attached
EXHIBIT A vvhich is Inwrporaied herein by rtrcrencc
("Scrvkes").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1,'Notwilh$iandihg,ahy provision of this Agreement to the
wnlnuy, and subject to the approval of the Opvcirtor and
ivNeculive Council of the Stoic oi'Ncw Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligutions of the parties
.hcrcundcr, shall become effective on the date the (^yernor
and F^xecutive ̂ ncil approve this Agrecmcni as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is rcquiredi in which case
the Agreement shall becorhc effective oh the date the
Agreement Is signed by the State Agency as ̂ wn in block
1.14 ("Effective Dale"),

3.2 If the Contnicior commences the SeN'ices p'fior to the
EITccilvc Date, all Service's pcHbrined by the Contractor prior
•to Ihc Effective ipate shall be perforthcd in the sole risk of the
Contmctof. and In the event Ikil this Agfcemcm does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limiloiion.-any obligation to pay
Ihc Cnnimctor for any costs incurred or Scrv-iccs performed.
Cootroctof must complete oil Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CpNbmONAL NATURE OF AGRFEMKiVI'.
Nocwithsifindinig any provision'of this Agrccnieni tp.ihc
eohu-iir)'; all obligations of the Sth'tc hereiindcr, including,
without limitation, the corttinuancc of poyih'cnts here'under, ua-:
contingent uj»h the dvailnbiliiy and cohliiiucd appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be. Hablc. for any
payments hcrcundcr in excess ofsuch available appropriated
funds. In thc.cvcnt of a reduction or tennlnaiion oT
appropriate funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until suchfiinds become available, if ever, and .shall
have'the right to lehnlhaie this Agreement inimcdiutcly upon
giving the Coniraiior notice ofsuch lerihin'oiion'. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to ihc.Accdum identified in block 1.6 in the event funds In thai
Accouni are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRjCt/PRICE LIMrTATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contrnci priee. method of payment, and tcrm.s ot
payfncm arc identified and more particularly described in
EXHlBllf B which is incorporated herein by reference.

.■5.2 'Hie payment by the State of the conifTJct pricesliall be the
'bniy and the completc.reimbursenricnt to.the .Cdntro'clor for all
expense, of whatever rialiirc incurred by die Coninictor in the
.performance hereof, and sltall be the'only arid the complete
icbmpcrisalion to the Contractor for the Smhces..'l'he Stale
'shall have 06 liability ib'thc Gonlraclpr other than ihc contract
price.
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5J The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
oihenvise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or pcnnitlcd by .N.H: RS.A
80:7 ihrbugli RSA 86:7rc or any other provision.of law.
5.4 Not^s^thJtanding any provision in this Agreement to the
cunirary, and notwithstanding unc.xpcctcd circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
niade hertunder. e.xceed the Price Limilalion set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WIJH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPQRTUNm'.
6. r In connection svith the performance of iJie Services, the
Conlrucior shail comply with oil MOiutcs. laws, regulations,
and.orders of federal, slate, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon ihc Contractor,
including, but not limited in, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and seiytces.ib ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicaic with, receive infornwtibn from, aiKl convey
information to the Cpniraetor. In addition, the Contractor,
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 Lhiring the term of this Agreement, the Coritractor .shall
not dlscrirninatc against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, crccd, uge. sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
uTirmaiivc action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 if this Agreement is funded in any part by nionks of the
United Slates, ilw Contractor shall comply with oil the
provisions of Lxccutivc Order No. 11246 (~F.qual
limploymcni Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
rc"gulati6ri.^oFthc United States Departiricniof Labbrf'tl
C.F.R: Part bO). and wiili btiy roles, regulations and guidelines
AS the State of New l lampshirc or the United States issue to
implemcni these rcguiation.s. The Cohiracior fiiaher agreies to
pennit the State or United States access to any of the
Conlraclor's books, records and accounts for the punrose of
a.sccrtainiitg compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, icnits und conditions of this AgrcemenL

7. PERSONNEI.
7.1 The Conlrucior shall ai'it.s o\w expense prpyide all
personnel ncccs.i.iry to perform the Services. The Coniiiictor
warrants.lhai all personnel engaged In the Scr\ iccs shall he
qualified If) perfonn the Services, nnd shall |x; propcriy
licensed and otherwise authorized 10 do so under all fippiicablc
laws.
12 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the lerm of
this Agreement, anil forn period of.six (6) nxmillS fi flCf the

.'Completion Date in block 1 i7.1thc Controctpr shall not hire,
and sJiali npl pennit hnysubcbril'ractor or other person, firm or
cbrpbraiion'wiih Nvhptn ii is.engageil in 0 comblncd.cfTort to
'perfonn the Service's to hire, any |krson who is 0 Slate
cinployxc or official, who is materially Irivplycd in the
procurcment.administfittio.n Pr perfprmancc of this
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-Agreement.This provisioQ shaJI sun'ivu icrminoiion ofthbt
Agreement-
7.J ITic tonlraclingpfticCT.specifi^ in block 1.9, or his or
her suc'ce^r,'shall be i^'Siaic's mprcscntniiye. in the event
-pr aiiy dispute concerning the ihic^a-tetipn of (his Agnxment
the.C^m^ling Qiticer's dccislbn shall be final for the State.

,8. F.VKhrrOK pEKAllLTmEMEDIES.
,8.1 Any one or more of ,the following acts or pmissioris of the
Contractor shall cohslitutc an event of default ht^-undcr
("Evcfit of r)efaulr'.'):
' 8.1.1 failure to perform the Servicet saiisfactorily or on
schedule;

. 8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hcrcunder; and/or
8.U failure to perform any other covenanl. term or condition
of this Agreement
8.2 Upon the pccurfcnce.of any Event 6f Default the State
.rhay take any one*, or more, or all, of the .following actions:
.8.2.1^^' the Contractor a ivriReit notice specifyin}^ the Event
of Dcfauti arKl r^uiring it tp ̂  remedied vvilhin, in the
absence idf a gf^ter or lesUr spccificaiibnpf lime','thirty (30)
•day's from che'date'oflhe'npiice; ajid if the Event prbcfauli is
not timely remedied, tt^inatc this^Agreentent, effective two
(2|days bner giving the Contraaor notice of lermtnaiion;
8:2.2 give the Contractor a vvritien notice specifying the Event
ofDcfauli and suspending oil payrncnts to be made under (his
AgrCcmcnt.dnd ordering thai (he ponioii.of the contract price
which' would othenyise (iccroc to (hc.Coritmctor during ihe
'pei;i6(i froui Uic duicof siKh notice.until such tirhe as (lie State
detennincs that the .Contractor has cured the Bv-ehi ofDcfauli

'shall never be paid to the 'Cphirncto'r,
8;2..i set Off against suiy other oblig'aliohs the State may pvs-c io
the Contractor any'dahtagcs the Slate suffers' by reason of rmy
Event of befauli; nnd/or
8.2.4 treat (he Agreement as breached and pursue any uf its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9.. data/acces^con FI DENTIALmV.
prf-SekvatIon.

:9.1 As lucd livihls AgVcemcnl.'ihc^vord "data" shall mean all
irirprmaiiori'&nd ihiri^ developed or'obminc'd 'during the
pcrfoiinnncc bf. or acquired or .developed hy reason of, this
Agreement^ including, but not limited to, all studies, rcpoh.s.
riles,-formulac. sunxys, maps; charts, sourid recordings, video
recordings, pictorial rtproductiuns, drawings,-analyses,
graphic representations', computer progroins/compuler
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unTinished. ■
9.2 All data ond.ony property .which ha.s been received from
the Slate or purchase w.ih funds'provided for lhui purpose
uhdcrpiis A^ccrhchl, s.HaH he Ihe prepay of t.Hc Stale, and
shall'bc returned to the Siate u^n 'demand bf'upon
fcmintinon of ihjs Agrc^e.ht'fpf any rewn.,
,9.3 Confidentiality of duiaShall ̂ 'governed by N.H. RSA
■^'apter 91-A or other .cxistirig law. .Dis'cjbsurc'df.'d'ai'a
requires prior 'wriitCn approval bfl^ Stale.
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10. TCRAtliNATION. In'thc cvcrit of an earty Urmlriatibn of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of ihc
Sciviccs, the Contractor shall deliver to the totti'rac'iing
Officer, noilaier than fificcn (15) diays after .the date of
icrminailon, a report ("Termination RcpOfT) desciibing in
detail all Setvioes performed,-and the contract price earned, to
and including (he date of termination. -The form, subject
maaer.-conient, and numl^ of copies of the Termination
Rcpbii shall be identical to (hose of any Final Report
described inthe'attached EXKIBITA,

I

11. COjSTI^CTOR'S. RELATION 1 Q TllE-yrATE. In
the pciTo.rmancc of this Agreeineni the Contractor is in'all
respects an independent contractor,-and U'neilhcr im age.nt nor'
an employee of the Stale. Neither the (Tontracior nor any of its
otTcers. employees, agents or members shall have authority in
bind the State or receive any bcacfits, \vDrkcrs'-compen$ation.
or other emoluments provided by.lhc'Staie to its employees.

12. A^lCNMEhrr/DELEGATION/SUBCONtRACT^
The'Coniracibr sluill not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in (his A^ccmc'nl wi|h'dut the prior written nblicc anil
consent of the Stale. None of the Services shall be.
subcontracted by ihc'Gontractor wiihotit the prior >vriltcri
notice and consent tof (lie Stale.

13. indemnification. The Conlnictor shall defend,
indemhify.Qod hold harmless the Slalc. lls officers and .
empioyccs.-from and against any and.all tosses sufiWed by the
State'.' its officers and employees, aiid any and oil claims,
liahilihcs or pe.ntilties assericd ngun'st (he State,' its officers
and entployves, by or'on behalf of qny.-'per'son,'on account of.
based or resulting from, ari.singoui of(br wtuch mfty be.
cInimCd to aritt'oul oO the acts or omissions'of the'
Conlra'ctor. Nbtwithst^ding the foregoing, nothing herein
coriiaincd shail be deemed to eonslitutc a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which Immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. Tliis covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive ihe Icmiination of this Agreeinent.

14. INSURANCE
14.1 The Contractor.Shall, ol its sole'c.vpohse, obtain and
niainiaiii in fuoix, and shall require wy s'ulKOntraieMoror
assignee to obtain and mainlairt jn'foi^.,'^(hc following'
iiisurimcc:
14.1.1 comprehensive general li;ibilily insurance ogainsi all
claims of bodljy injurj-i'dcath or property damage, in amounts'
of not less than S1,000,000per occurrence S2.0()0.0p0
oggregate: and '
.I4.-Ii2 special cause of loss eovcr^c forin covering all
properly siibjcci to subparngraph' 9^2 herein, in an aniiounl not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value oTihc property.-
14.2 The policies.dcK'ribcd in isubparagra'ph M.Lhcrcihshalj
Ik qn'policy fb'rnis and endorsements approy^.ifpr use in ihe
Suite of New lia'rripshirc by the N.M.'lieparimeht 'bf
Insurance', qn'd issuc'd by insurers licensed in the State ofWew •
Hampshire. _•

3  ■ V JlWContrjctor Iniliajs ':j/H
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14.3 The Contracior Shall furfiish to the ConiQCiiufi OfTieer
idehtifi^.ih block'i.9, or his or her successor, a centricalc(s)
.oririsur^ce for dli insuroh^ required undcr.this Agreement.
Conuadorshidi alMfurhish (o the CdnirBciingOITiccr
tdcnrified in bU^k 1.?, or hii or her successor. cehiricaic<s) of
ins'uranccTor all rene^|(s) of insurance rccjulred under (his
Agreemeni no laicr'ihw.lhiny (30) days prior i6 the expiration
dale of each of the insurance policies. The c«'rtirica(e(s) of
insu.rartce and any rcncNyals.ihereof shnj) bc'atlachcd and are

-incofpooilcd herein bj- 'rcfetToce. lia^ ccrtificaic(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause n^iuinng the .insurer to'
provide the Contractin'i OfHccr' ideritiGed in block 1.9. ur his
Of her successor, "no lcs.s than thirty (30),days prior Nsiirtcn
notice of cancellation or modificaiiou of the.policy.

is. WORKER' GpMPF.NSAtlOIS.
15.'I, By signing this agreement, the Conlrocior ngrcex.
cchinos and. warrants thai the Contractor is in compliance with
•'or exempt from, the rcquirc'mcnts ofN'.H. .KSA chapter 281-A
(~iyorkrrs'Cor^nsaiioh'^).
IS.2 To the c.xterii th'e.Conlmctpr is subject to the
rcquircmeniidf N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
mainiain, and inquire any subcoittractor or assignee to secure
and m.iint8in, paynicnl of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities vvhich (he pcrson 'proposes in
.undertake pursuant.to this AgrcentcnL Contractor sb.ill
furnish the Contracting OfRccr idcntiGed in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proofof Workers* Compensation in the
manner described in N.i l. .f^A chaplcr'281 -A and any
applicable renewalfs) ihcrcof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference, lite Sluic shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Cdmpcnsalioii
prcrhiurns or'for any other,claim" or benefit 'for.Coniriictor, or

■any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which rhighi
arise under applicable Stale of New Hampshire Workers'

.'Compensmion law-s in connection with the pcrfonnancCof the
Services under this .Agreement.

16. \VAI\'ER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Ocfauli shall

.be deemed a.wnivcf of lu righL^ with regard to that Event of
Default,'or any subsequent Event of pc.fauli. Nq.cxpress
failure lo.cnforcc any Event of pcfauli shall be deemed u
waiver of (he right of (he Stale to enforce each artd all of the
provision."t hereof upon.any further or other Event of Defauli
on the port of the Coniriictor

n. iNQTICEi Any notice by a party.hereto io the other party
shall be deemed to huvc been d.uly delis'ered or given at the
lirne'of mailing by ceriified mall, postage prep.aid, in n United
States Post Office .addressed to the parlies at the addresses
giycn'i.n blocks 1.2 and .1.4,-herein.

18. AMKNpMKiNT.^rhis Agrcentcnt may be amended,
Nvaiyed or disch'aigcd only hy ah in'sihirhcnl in uriling signed
by the ptirtica hereto and dnly.oflcr opprov-al of
amciidmcnt, waiver or discharge by lite Co.vcmdr.'and
Executive Council of the l^tite ofNcwI-lampshire unless no

such approN'al is required under the etrcum.starKes pursuant ;o
State law, rule or policy.

19! CONS'fRUCTlON OF ACREfcM tNT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is bitting upon and
imires to the benefit of the parties and lltcir respcciivc
succe.s&ors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by (he parties to c.xprvss their mutual
intent, and no rule of cohsirueiion shall be applied against or
in favor of any parly.

20. THIRD PARTIES. 'I'hc parties hereto do rtot intend to
benefit any third parities arid this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such tjcncflt.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout (he Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, airtplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions ̂
forth.in the bliachcd EXl IIBf T C arc incdrpont'cd herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITT'.' In the event any of the provl.v'ions of
this Agreement are held by u court of compeiem jurisdiction to
he contrary' to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement wilj.remain in full force and
effect. ,

24. EN I'iRt AGREEMENT: This Agreement, which may
be executed in a ntimbcrofcpunt^a'rts, each of which'sliall
be deemed on original, constiluies the ctttirc Agreement and
understanding between ilic'pariies, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and undcrstanding.s relating hereto.
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Now Hampshlre Department.bf Health arid Human.Services
■Coritiriuum^^M^^ SteF« Rermar>erit Housing Program

Exhibit A .

SCOPE OF SERVICE'S

Pefin'ane'rit Housing Program
•1. Provisions ApDHcable to All Services

i .1 The .Conirartor shall .submit a detailed description.of the language assistance sefvicee theyiwill
•^bvide tb'p^rson's'^M^^^ English proficiency to ensOre meaningful access.t6.their programs'
arid/or sbrVices wrt days of the coniracl effective date; submitted to;

'NH 6HH^\
Bureau of Housirig Supports
105 Pleasant Street
■ephcordyNH 0330i'.

1.2. The Cohtractor 'agrees tha^ to Ihe extent future state or federal legislation of court orders.i^ay.
have; an irnpact'idn 'the s'efVi.ce^ descrltred hereini." the State.-th'rough the Bore.au of Housing'
Supports .(BHSj, lias theinght to modify service, prtorities and expenditure requirements under
thiVAgreemehi'sodstp'achieVecompli^

1.3. For the 'p.urppses; pf This agreement, the Depar^ent has identified the Contractor as. a
:sub'recidient;'iiri.accordance" 2CFR 200.300.

1.4. ."Klohvithstandirig "the confidentiality procedure's established under 24 GFR '578.103(0). US
Department of .Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD Office of the Inspector
General., and the COniptrplter General of the United Stales, or-any of Ijieir authorized,
representative^ rightcf access, to ail books, docuirients. paper?, or ptper records
;9r"the ..Gdritractor'.tfe :are pertinent^ to the .Continuum Of Care ,(CpG) 'grant, In, o.fder tPimake
audits; exernjnati.pn^ and trahscripls. These 'rights of acces's are riot lirrijted tp thp'
ri^uire.d retehtion p.enbcl.^^^^^^^ long .as'the records'are re.tained,.

1.,5. The;'Contract6r shall adhe'fe tp federal arid' sl^e financial' and cphndentlamy laws, and comply
vvHh the.prPgram'P'affatives, budget detail and narfaiive. and amendments"thefeld, as-detailed
in the applicabIe:N'ol"i(^ Of Funding Available (NOFA) Co'C Project Application approved by HUD.

"i .6. The Coridactof.shail provide services according to HUD regulations outlined in Public Law 102-
550 and'24GFR S78 and other written, appropriate HUD policies and directives.

1.7. The 'Contractor .shall e.nsure all programs .are licensed, to .provide client level data into the New
■Ha.mpShire Homeless Management Information System (NH. HM|,S). Program'? shall foppw NH
HMIS policy,'inciudihg spedfic inforrnation required for data entry, accura.CYpf ,data.ehtered/a

■iime 'rPquired, for' data eritry. The Coritractor SHaH comply with Exhi.bil I. '.Health' lnsurar)ce.
Ppf^bilityend Accduritability ^ Exhibit, K.pHHS.Security
Requirennefits, wHlcK are attached' hereto and incorpo.rated ,by refe.rerice herein.

1.8..- TheiCphtractor shall,Co'operate fully with and. answer all questions related tp this coritract frpM
•i-epreberitatlves of the-Staje or Federal agencies.who may conduct periodic observation'arid
review oiperformarice, activities and an'inspection of records and documents. •

•i .9. ■f he'Conlractor shall support the prirnary goal of this program, whjch is to facilitate the mpyerpent
:df' 'homele.ss and "chrdnically "homeless individuals' and families to perifia'nent -hdusing ;;and,
;.ma.ximum'sel'frsuffid^

2. Scope of Work

'2.1. ^The;,Cp'ntractpr shall Im'ple'merit a, ,Gopfdinat»^ Enpy 'SysterTi for all projects'.fund^ b"y ^e;QpQ.
■ i^ro^r^^ni'. Erriejg'ep.c^Splutipn Program,-.'and .Housing ppportunities.'.for
;AlD^S.:Pfpgram;\lri,;a CoC inlerirri rule.'24 .CFR-57,8. 'arid osiariiehclP*''''^ - ■ ■

SoottwoMwft Community Sc'Mcci.'lr^ Eihitft A CoiwoeA*
..SS:7Wd:«.S-9f-PeRfc^^



New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Continuum of Care. Next Steps Permanent Housing Program

Exhibit A

-2 2 The jContractpr shall provide a Permanent Housing program that is targeted to serve frve (5)
homeless iridivkJuals'and.twfp (i2) "homeless.families. and which includes bpt is not.limited to;
;2.2.1. Uliikin^ the Housing Rrst model, ensuring:

2.2.1.1. Barriers :t6 entering housing .are not imposed beyond those required by
Ttgqtatfoh"of^ati3te:*and-

2.2;T.2. Participatipn will only terminate for the most.severe reasons, once available
' options haye been exhausted to help a participant maintain housing.

22 2 Developing of a stabiiizaiion plan and crisis management plan with the participant at
Intake and, at a minimum, annually.. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Services is required, with the ultimate goal being assistance to the participant in obtainmg
the skills necesMry to live in the community independently.

2.3. The Contractor shall establish and maintain starxlard operaOng procedures to ensure CoC
program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578 and shall establish and maintain

-  -sufficient records to enable HUD and 0HS to determine Contractor requirement compliance,
including:'

2.3;i. Continuum of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the following docunientaiion
related to establishing arxl operating a C6C:

2.3,1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable
evidence of horhetess status in accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b);

■:> 3 1 7 Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status. The Contractor shall maintain
records that establish "at risk of hgmelessness" status of each individual or

- famity who r^eives CoC homelessness prevention assistance, as Wentified in
24 CFR 576.500(0): and

2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of imminent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall
maintain documentation of each program participant who moved to a, different
CoC due to imminent threat of further domestic vio'lence. dalirig violence, sexual
assault, or stalking, as defined in 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor shall
retain do'cumentatibn that includes, but is not limited to:

2.3.1.3.1 The original incidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual
assault, or stalking, only if the original violerice is not ^already
documented In the program participant's case file.. This may be
written otiservalion of the housing or service provider; a, letter or "other
document.atiori from a victim seivice provider, social worker, legal
assistance provider, pastoral counselor, mental health provider, of
other professional from whom'the viciim has sought/assistance:
'medical or dental records; court records or law enforcem'erit records;
of written cerlifjcation by the program participant to whom the
violence.occurred Of by the head of household; and •

2;3.1.3.2 The reasonable belief of Imrriirierit threat of further domestic violent^.
datiiSg'V'0lence/6r sexual assault or stalking, which wd.uld include-
threals from a thinipar^! such .as a friend or family member of the
perpetrator of the violence. This may be written obseryaiion by the
housing or service provider; a letter or .other-documerita^n frbm a

;$outNi**s^m Corrmti^liy Mc.

•SS^2(Kb^.HS<M-P£ft M/y \ 5.
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^ctim service provider, social worker, liegal assistance provider;
pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or other prpfessipnal from
whom the victim has sought assistant; current restrairiirig order;
recent court order or other court records; law enforcerrient report or
records;-comrnunlcaiion, records from'the perpetrator of '^e'vioierii:^,
or farriily. merhbers or friends of the perpetrator-of the violerice,
Includihg emails, voicemails, text rhes^ges, and social media posts;.'
or a ̂ Itten certifi^tion by the. prpgrarri pariiciparit to whom the
violence occurred Or the head of household.

.2.3.1.4. Records of Annual Income. For each prograrh participant who receives hbii^ng
assistance where rent or an occupancy charge is paid by the program
participant, the Contractor shall keep the foltOwihg docurrientatlori of annual
Income:

2.3.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUO and completed by the
Contractor;

2.3.1.4.2.-Source documents, which may include the most, recent wage
statement, unemployment wmpensatldn statement,: public'benerrts,
staternerit. and bank statements,for the as^ts held by the program
■participant and incOme received before Ihe'datie of the evaluation; and.

2.3.1.4.3. To the extent (hat source documents/are unobtainable, a written
statement by a relevant third party, which may include an employer
or a government benefits administrator, or the written certifi.catldn by
the Contractor's iritake.staff.bf .lhe oral verificatjon bythe feleybnt third
party of the ..income the program participant received over'the rpost
recent'perlod; or

2.3.1:4.4. To the extent that sour<^ documents and third-party yerificalion are
unobtainable, the written certrficaiion by the program "participant of
the amount .of Incorhe that the program participant- Is reasonably,
expected to receive over the three (3) month penod followirig the
evaluation.

2.3.1.6. Program Participant Records. In addition to eviderice of homelessness status
or^at-ri.sk-of-homelessne^ status, as applicable, the Contractor shall 'keep,
records for each program, participant that.document:

.2.3.1.5.1. The, services and assistance provided to that program participant,
including evidence that the Contractor conducted an annual
assessment of seryices'for those program participants that remain in
the program for more than a year and adjusted die service 'packaga.
acco'rdingiy. and including case management services as provided in •
24 CFR 578.;37{a)(1)(iiy(i=); and

'2.3.1.5:2.-where 'applicable, cprnpliatice -with the terrhinalion pf' .assistance,
repyireririent in 24 CFR 578.91!

2.^'1;6. •Hqu'sino Standards.'The Cp'ntractpr shall retain documentation of compliatice
with the housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(6), including inspection reports.

SoutrM'tMrn Comn^^ Conoftctor trMois
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;2.3.i.7; Services Provided. The Contractor shall document the types of supportrve
services provided under the Contractor's program and the amounts spent'Oh
those services. The Contractor shall keep documentation that the records were
reviewed at least annually and that the service package offered to prograrn
participants was adjusted as necessary.

"27ir fhe Contractor snaii maimain recordSTfrafaocumeni compliance with":

2:4.1. Thn'Oraanizational cbnflict-of-.lnterest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(C);

2.4 ;2. The Continuum of Care Board conflict-of-interest requirements iri 24 CFR 578..95(b); and

;2'4!3. The bther Conflicts requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(d).

2.5. The Contractor shall develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal conflict-of-interest
policy that'complies with the r^uirements in 24 CFR 578.95. Including records supporting any
exceptions to the pefsorial conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contractor shall.comply and retain documentation of compliance with:

2.6.1. The Homeless Parti'cloation requirements In accordance with 24 CFR 578.75(g);

.2,6.2. The Faith-based Activities requirements in' a.ccordance with" 24 CFR 57e.87(b);

.2.6.3. Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing by maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach,
and other rhaterials used to inform eligible persons of the program In accordance with 24
CFR 57B.93(c);

2.6.4. Other Federal Requirements in 24 CFR 578.99. as applicable;

2.6.5. Other Records Specified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep olher records as specified
by HUD; and

2.6.6. Procurement Requirements in 24 CFR 85.3.6 and 24 CFR.part 84.

2.7. -Cohfidentialitv. In addition to meeting specific confidentiality and security requirements for HMIS
data (76 FR 76917), the "Contractor shall develop and implement written procedures to ensure:

2.7.1. .All records coh'taining protected identifying Information of any individual or faniily who
applies fqr and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be kept secure, and
confidential;

2.7.-2. The address or location of any, family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care
funds are not to be "made. public, except with written authorization of the person
responsible for the operation of the project; and

2.7.3. The address or location of any housing of.a program participant v/ill not be made public,
except as provided under a preexisting privacy policy pf the recipient or subrecipienl and

■  .cbhsisteni.wlth State .and local laws regarding priva.cy and obligations Of confidentiality.

2'.8. Pnrind of" Record Retention. The Contractor-shall ensure alt records, originals or copies made
by microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Cohtlnuurn of Care funds
are refained forfrve (5) years'following the Conlract.Comp.lelion Dale and receipt.pf firial paym.ent
by .lhe Cqntractdr unless records are otherwise required to be maintained for a period in excess
of .the five (5) year period according to state or federal law of regulation.

S«o^^v^e3tcm C«nvo«nitv S«rytei>i. Inc
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3. Program Reporting Requirements

3.1. The;'.Cbhtradof shall submit'the following reports:

.3.;1.1. Annual Perfomiarice Report fAPRI: Wilhin thirty (30) days after the Coritract Cpmpletipn
Date,'\an APR ̂all be submitted to 6HS that summarizes the aggregate results of the
Prpje^ Activities, showing in particular how the Contractor is carrying blithe project In
the manner proposed In the appllcailoh submitted to HUD for the releyahl fiscal.year
NOFA. The APR shall be in the form required or.specified by the State, and submitted to
the address listed in section 1.1. atx>ve;

•3.1.2. Annually, the Cpnlraclpr shall develop and submit to the DHHS, a corrective action plan
.for any peiform'ance measure that was not achieved; and

3.T3. Other Reoorls as r^uested by the State In compliance with NH HMIS policy.

4. Contfact Admihistratibn

4.1. The Contractor shall.have appropriate levels of staff to attend all rneetings or trainings f^uested.
tjy BHS. including training in data .security and confidentiality, .according..tp "state and federal
laws, to the^exteht possible, BH.S shall noti^.the Contractor of the need to attend such mi^tlhgs
five (5) working days In advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall Inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days.of the.change.

6. Perforniance Measures

5.1. The Gohlractpr shall adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in the applicable HUD Project
Application .^F-424..

5.2. The; .dpntrsctpr shall labide.by the performance measures as detailed in all applicable HUD
regulations ificludlng. but not limited to the following:'

5.2.1. httDs://www.hudexchanae.info/DroQrams/coc/svstem-performance-
rmeasures/ftouidance:-

5.2.2. 24,CFR 578; Continuum of Care Program; and

5.2.3. Public Law 102-.550. , ■

5.3. The^Cbniractor.shall be accountable for all reporting requirements as detailed above in Section
3., Program Reporting Requirements.

5.4: Ahnyallyj the .Contractor shall develop and submit to the DHHS, a'correctlveactipn plan for any
perfb.m.arice n^ea.sur.e that'was not achieved.

'.SwIhAvUem Community Serv^t.'lnc. ErfvbHA ConU*cior.lnhlAt>.
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METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEOENT TO PAYMENT

Ji germajieblHouaihQ^Pxpgrarh Fuhdina

1.1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37. Block 1.8, Price
Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

1.2. this Agreement is funded.with federal funds made available through the U.S. Oeparlrnent of
Housing and Urban Deyelopmeni. Title XIV Housing Prograrns under the'Homeless'
Emergency Msistance' arid Rapid Transition to Housing Act {HEARTH Act). Subtitle' A-
Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550). under the Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) bnd'Federal Award Identification Number'(FAIN) as follows:

1.2.1. Federal Funds: 100%

1.2.2. CFDA#: .14.267

1.2.3. FAIN#: TBD

1.3. The Cpntractdf shall provide the services in Exhibit A. Scope of Service in cornpliance with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the Contractor's
current and/or future funding.

2. Financial Reports

2.1. As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the'following:

2.1:1. Audited Financial . Report: The Audited Financial .Report shall be prepared in
accordance with 2 CFR part 200.

2.1.2. One (1) copy of the Audited Financial Report within thirty (30) days of the completion
of said report to the State at the following address:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
105 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301 ■

2.2. Conformance \Vith 2 GFR part 200; The Contractor shall use grant funds only in accordance
vyilh prod^ures. requirements, and principles specified In 2 CFR part 200.

.2.3. If the Contractor Is not subject to the audit requirements of 2 CFR part 200. the Contractor
shall submit one (i) .copy of an audited financial report tO'the Oepartmenl utilizing the
guidelines set forth'.by the Comptroller General of the United States In "Standards .for Audit
'of Governmental Organizations, Program Activities, and Functions." within ninety (90) days
• after contract completion date.

3. Prelect Costs: Payment Schedule: Review by the State

3.1. Project ..Costs;'As used i'h this Agreemerit. ihe terrn 'Project Costs' means all expenses
.d.lrectly or indirectly incubed by the.'Conlractpr In the performance of Ihe project Activities, as
determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payrnent. in accordance with'Publip
Law 102-550,iasweil'as allowable cost standards set forth in 2 CFR part 2p.O as'revised from
lime to time-and with the rules, regulations, and guideline^ established by the..Stale. Ad
■subcontractors shall m.eel the requlrerrients of 2 CFR part 200.

Sflwbiwt'stemCofWtsuniiy B mhUt
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3.2. Cohlihuum 'pf Care funds may be ̂ d to pay for eligible costs listed in 24 CFR 578.39
through 578.63 .^en used to establish and operate proj^ts under five program (^m^nehti;
p«rfTi3rieht housjng; "transfti^^ housing; supportive services only; HMIS; and; in some,
bas^''. homeless preverition. Administrative costs are eligible for all cornpohents. ^1
components'are subject to the restrictions on combining funds for certain eligible actlvities.in
a single project found in 24 GFR 578.87(c).

3.3. Match Funds:

3.3.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD
regulations and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.2. Match requlrerrients shall be documented yvith each payrnent request.

3.^3.3.. The "Contractor shall rriatch all grarit funds except for leasing funds, wnth no less than
tvvehty-five (25) percerit of funds or in:kind.,6dhtribirtlon's from other so'urc^.

3:3.4. The Cpniractdr shall iitilizie cash match for the'cost of aictivities that are" eligible under
siibpart D of 24 CFR 578. The Conlractbr.shail:

3.3.4.'1; Maintain fecbfds of the source and of contributions made to satisfy the
match requirement in 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.4:2. Ensure records indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each matching
contribution is counted.

3;3.4,3. Ensure records include methodologies'that specify hovy the yalues of third
par^ lp-kin'd contributions werejderiyed.

3.3.4:4. Ensure records include, to the extent.feasible, voluritee.r services that are
sup^rted by the.same methods used to'suppoii the allocatioh of regular
persqrihel costs.

3.4. Payment'of Project Costs:

3!4.1. The State agrees to provide payment on .a cost reimbursement basis for actual,
eligible expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this agreement,-and shall be in
accordance wjth the approved line items as specified in Exhibit 6-X. Budget, and as
deHned by HUD under the provisions of Public Law 102-550 and other applica.ble
regulations, subject to the ayailability of sufficient funds.

3:4.2. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and
ailowabie cpsts as stated in Section 4. Expense Eligibility, bel.ow. The Contfactor must
have written iapprbyai from the Stale prior to billing for any other expensed

3.4.3. Schedule of Pavrri'ents:

3.4:3.1. Ail rbimbuf^rrient r^uests for all Projebl Costs, including the final
reirhbursement request for this Contract, shall be submltted.by the fifleerith
(15th) day of each month, for the previous month, arnl a.ccofhpanied by an
invoice from the Contractor for the amount of each requested dlsburserTieht
along jiyith a payrnent reque'st form and any other dpcurhentaii.pn r^uired,
as designated by'the State, wtiich shall.be .completed .arid slgrte^ the'.
Contractor '

jSouttwestcinConwiurAy'&oiyton.'toc. ExhlMG. CoAincter inUisli
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3.4.3.2. the Stale shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) .days of
receipt of each invoice, subs^uent to approval of the subrriilted Invoice
and if.s.ufficient funds are avallaljie.

3.4.3.3. The Contractor shall keep records of Iheir activities related to Department
prqgrams;8nd services, and shall provide such records and ariy additionai
financial iriformation if requested by the State to verify expenses.

3.4.3.4. in lieu of hard copies submitted to Ihe address listed in Paragraph 2.1.2.,
at>ove., all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed
to: housinQsuooortsinvoices@dhhs.nh.Qov

3.5. Review of the State DIsallov/ance of Costs:

3.5.1. At any time durir^g the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of the Annual
Performance Re^rt. Termination Report or Audited' Financial Report. the.Stafe may
review ail f^r'oject Costs Incurred by the Contractor and all payments rhade to date.

3.5.2. Upon such review, the Stale shall disallpw any Items of expenses that are not
determined to be allqvyable or are determined to lie in excess of actual expenditures,
and shall, by written notice, specifying the disallowed experKlltures, Inforniing the
Conlractor of any such disallowance.

3.5.3. If the Slate disallows costs for which payment has not.yet been made, it shall refuse
to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement are subject to recapture.

3.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractpf ̂ rees that funding
under*this!Agreernent may be withheld, in .whole or. in part.- in the event of rior)-
compliance with .any Federal or.State law, rule or regulation applicable 16 the services
provided, or K the.said services, products, required report submissions', ai detailed In
Exhibits A aiid B. or NH-HMIS data entry requiremerils have riot l>een satisfactorily
completed in accordance wHh the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Expcriso EliQibilitv

"4.1. Ba^ed on the continued recieipt/avaiiabiirty of federal funds, the .Conlra.ctor shall utilize
.•Continuum of Care Program funds specified in this Exhibit'8 from the HUD Continuum of
Cafe .Program, for contract services.

4.2. Qperatino Expenses:

4.2.1. Eligible operating e^enses include:

4.2..yi. Maintenance and repair of housing.

'4.2.1.2. Property taxes, and insurance (including property and car).

4.-2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major'systems of,the
housing (provided that this''payments must be based on the useful life of the
system and expected replacefneht cost).

4.2;'i.4. Building security for a structure where more than fifty (50) percent of the
units or area is paid for with grant funds.

4.2.1.5.. Utilities, including electricity, gas and water.

So'uOwt«M Commuir^ ExhtbilB
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4.2.1.6. Furniture and equipment.

4.2;2. Ineligible costs Include:

4.2.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project.

4 .2.2.2. Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service^nly facilities.

4:2.2.3. Maintenance'and repair of housing where the costs of maintaining .and
fepairirig the housing are included in the leaser

4.2.2.4. .Inelioible costs. Any cost not described as eligible under section 4.'3.3
telow is not ah eligible cost of providing supportive services using
Conlinuurn of Care program "funds. Staff training and costs, of obtaining
professlqrial licensure or certificaUons needed to provide supportive
services are not eligible costs.

4.3. SuPDOftive Services

4.'3.1, Eligible .suRportive services costs shall comply with ail HUD regulations in i24 CFR
578..53; arid are ayailab.le to individuals actively participating "in the perrhanent
hbusing program. . -

4.3.2. Special Dopu'lations. All eligible costs are eligible.to the same extent for program
participants vytio are unaccompanied horneless youlh.: persons living with Hiy/AIDS;
and victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.

•4.-3.3. Eligible costs shall iriclude:

4.3.3.1. Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs of the assessment

required.by 578.53(a) (2),

4.3.3.2. Assistance with rhovino costs. Reasonable one-lirhe" moving .'costs'are
eligible and include truck rental and hiring a moving company.

4.3.3.3. Case manaoement. The costs of assessing, arranging, coordinating, and
mohitoring the delive^ of individualized services to meet the needs of the
prograrri participant(s) are eligible costs.'

4:3.3.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care, and
providing child-care vouchers, for children from families experiencing
homeles'sness, Including providing meals and snacks, and comprehensive
and coordinated developmentaractivilies are eligible.

•4.3.3.5. Education Services. The costs of- improving knoV/leidge 'and basic
educatiprid) skills are eligible.

4.'3.3.6. Employment assistahce 'and lob tralriln'Q'. The costs of!'establishing and
operating emplpyme.nt assistance and job training, pr-og'ra'rris'are eligible.
Including clas's'roorh;. online -aiid/or', .computer .instruction, on-the-job
[nslrVction, services that assist • indrviduals In securing jemployrnent,
acquirir^ .learnirtg skills, and/or increasing .earni.rig potential.. The'qdst of
providing treaspriable stipends :to prpgfani participarils 'lri employment
assistance and job.'tr'alning'programs is also an-eiigibie cost.

4^3.3.7; Food. The cpst of providing meals or groceries to pfc^rani^articlpari^ is
eligible:

Swjthwc^crn Ccmrnur^ .£xMxt6 ConircKlO'.lnid^t
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4.3.3.8. Housing search and counseling services. Costs: of assisting eligible
program parlicipanls to locate, obtain, and retain suitable housing are,
eligible.

4.3.3.9. Legal services. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licens^ attorrieys
.and by personts) under the supervision of licensed attorneys. fo>\advice
and representation in matteris that interfere with homeless individual or
family's ability to obtain and retain housing.

4.13.10. Life Skills training. The costs of teaching critical life management skills that
may never have been learned or have been lost during course of physical
or mental illness, domestic violence, substance abuse, and homelessn^s
are eligible, These services must be necessary to a^.st the program
■participant to Unction indepehder^tly in the community. Component life
sWIIs..training are the budgeting of resources and money management,
hbu^hdld management, conflict man'agement. shopping for food .and other
need^ items, nutrition, the use of public transponation, and parent
training:.

4.3.3.11. Merita!' Healih Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatrroni of
mental health conditions that are provided by licensed professionals.
Component services are crisis interventions; counseling; individual, family,
or group therapy sessions; the pre^riplion of psychotropic medications or
exialanations about the use and managernent of medications; and
cpmbinatidn.s of therapeutic approaches to address multiple problems.

4.3.3.12. Outpatient health services. Eligible costs'are the direct outpatient treatm.ent
of medical conditions when provided by licensed medical profes.siohalsi.

4.3.3.13. Outreach Services. The costs of activities to engage persons for the
purpose of -providing immediate support and intervention, as well as
identifying potential program participants, are eligible.

4.3.3.14. Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program participant
intake and assessment, outpatient treatment, group and individual
counseling, and drug testing are eligible. Inpatient detoxification and other
Inpatient drug or alcohol treatment are ineligible.

4.3.3.15. Transportation Services, as described in 24CFR 578(e) (15).

4.'3.3.16. Utilftv Deposits. This" form of asisistance consists, of paying for utility
deposits. Utility deposits, must be one-time, paid directly to utility'
compariies.-

4:3 3.17. Direct orovisibn of services. If a service described In Items 4.3.3.1.
through .4:3.3.'16. of this sectiori is. being directly deiiyered by the
recipient or subreclpienl. eligible costs for those seryicds also include
the.fpilovyirig:

4.3.'3.17.1. The costs of labor or supplies, and materials Incurred by'.the
recipient or subrecipient In directly providing supportive
services to program participants; and

Cofimui^y SiM^^ F.imWtn ConVacJOf Waa»>



New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Continuum'of Care, Next Step^ pemianent Housing Program

Exhibit B

4:3,3.17.2. The salary and benefit packages of tKe recipieiTit and
subreclpi.ent.staff who directly deliver .the" services.

4.'3.4; Grant funds may be used for rental assiistance for homeless indivldudls and farriilies.

4.3.5. Rental assistance cannot be provide to a program participant who is already,
receiving rental .assistance, or living In a housing unit receh/irig rental assistance or
operating assistance, through other federal. State, or local sources,

4.1.6. Rental a.ssislance shall be r'administer^ In, accordance with the policies and
procedur^ establish ttie Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR 578!7(a) (9) and 24
GFR 578.5i... and rn'ay be:

4,3.6.'T Short temi. up to 3 month's .of reiit;

4;.3'6.2! f^edlum term, for 3.-24 months; or"

4.16.3. Ldng^erm, for longer than 24 months.

4.3.7. Grant funds may be usied for security deposits in an amount not to exceed Imonths
of rent.

4:3.8. An.advance payment of the las! month's rent may be provided to the iandlord, in
. addition to 'the security deposit and payment of first month's rent.

4;3.9. Rental assistance \yill only be provided for a unit if the Tenl is./easpnable. ;es
, .deteifniri^ byjtb® Gpntractor, In'-relatioh "to .rents being cha/gM'forcpmpa.raW
unassisted :'unrt&, taking ̂ the location, S;i?e; type, qUaliy. amehl,ties',
facil.liies^ ah.d managdmeni and rhaihiehance.bf each uriit.

4.3.10,.The'.Cpritractdr rh.ay use'grant fiinds lh an amouht hot to exceed o.iie month's rerit-to
pby foKany damag'e 'td housing due to the actibri of a program participant.- For
Leasing fuhds 'bnlv: "Property damages may be paid onty from funds paid to the
landlbrd from security deposits.

4.3.11. Housing .shall be In compliance with all State and local housing codes., licensing
requirements, the. .Lead-Based Paint Poisohing Prevenliph Act,'and.'any'other
requirem.enis of the' jurisdiction. in which the ho.using is,located regarding the condition
of ih.e ̂ fucture and opefation of the. housing pr service.s.

^.3,12. The Cbntrador.shall provide .one .of the fpjlosving types of rental assistance; Teniant-
b'ased; Pfdjecl-bas^d, or'Sponsor-based rental assistance;as desp'ribed by HUD In
:24'GFR.57l51,.

4.3.12.'1. ■Teh'an't-ba'Sed rental assistance Is rerital assistance In which program
part.icipahts choose housing of an appropriate size'.in which to reside.'.When
hecessaiy.tojacilitate-the'coordination o.f supportye services, recipient^
•and:subrecipients may require, prog ram par1ictparits,tonve In a specific^
for theirrehtire period pf participation, or In a spetifi.c:structure'.for|hp^^
year a'nd-lh a.specificiarea'fpr the remainder of thejr.pdripd 'pf;p.ailicip^
Short ;and medium, term, rental assistance pfpyided under jlhe Rapid.R.e-
Hpusingp'fpgra'rh c'bm be' tenanl'-ba^d 'rental assis'tariqe.

4.3.12.2. t'Sbon'sbr-based "rehtat a'ssiistarice is provided throu9h^cPhlracts between'
ihe .'recipient iahd .'^pbnsb'r brgan'tzation. -A sponsor ^mayjl^ -a priyate,
npnprofit.prgahiiratidn, or a .cbrhmurilty riienlal tieaUh

.;Sou^ii%t^Conwi«x«ty.^rfice9, Inc.. F.xWbli G C«nvtoct k-ibiM.
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as a public nonpfoFrt orgarieation. .Program participants hiust reside Iri
housing owri^ or .leas^ by the sponsor.

4.3.12.3. Prolect'based rental assistance is provided through a contract .with the
6vwer ":0( an existing structure, vyhere the owner .agrees to lease the
subsidjz^ units to program participants. Program participants virill not
retain rental assistance if they rnove.

4.3.12.4. For proiect-based. soonsor-based. or tenant-based rental assistance:
program participants must enter Into a lease agreement for a teitn of at
lea^ one year, which Is terminable' for cause, the .leases must be
automatically renewable upon expiration for terms that are a minirnum of
one month long , except on prior notice .by either party'.

4.4. Administrative Costs:

4.4.1. Eligible admiriistrative costs include:

4.4.1.1. The Co'nlractor may use funding awarded under this part.-for the payment
of'project adrhinislrative costs related to the planning and execution of
Continuum of Care activities. This does not indude staff and.overhead
costs directly related to carrying out activities eligible under 24 CFR 578.43
through 578.57, because those costs are eligible as part of those activities.

4.4.1.2, General management, oversight, and cpordinatipn. Costs of overall
program management, coordination, mofirtoring and evaluatiph. These
cPsts include, but-are not limited to. necessary expenditures for the
fplldwing:

4.4.1:2.1., :SalaiHes, wages, and related cPsts of the Gonlracloi^s staff, or other
"staff engaged in program,adminislratioh.

4.4:1.2.1.1. In charging costs to this category, the Contractor may include
the entire salary, wages, and related costs allocable .to the
program of each person whose prirnary res)x>nsibililies with
regard to the program involve prograrn administration
assignments, or the pro rata. share of the salary, virages, and
related costs of each person wbPse job includes.'ariy program
adminlstratipn .assighmehts. the.Contractor iri'ay only uSe
one of these methods for each fiscal year grant. Program
adminisiratiori assignment's include the follovrihg:

.4.4.1.2.1.1.1. Preparing program budgets and schedules, and
amendfhents to those budgets and schedules:

4.4.'1.2.i.i!2. Developing syslems for assuring .compliance with
program requirerpents;

.4.4.1.2.1.1.3. Developing mteragency lagreemenls and
agreements with ...subrecipienls and CbnlractoVs .to
idarry put program'.aPtiyilies;'

.4.4.1.2.1.1.4. Monit'Pfihg program, activities .for progress 'and
:cpmpliahce v4lK"program fequirements;

Scr<ic«'»,, !*. EKtxtoi.t B C^ntpOOf Wiiob
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4.4.1.2.1.1.5. Preparing reports and other documehts rejatekJ to.
the program for,submission to HUD;

4.4.1.2.1.1.6. Cob.rdinatjrig the solution" of audit and moriitonrig'
findings:

4.4.1.2.1.1.7: Prieparing reports-and other docurnents directly
related to the program submission to HUD;

4.4.1.2.1.1.8. Evaluating program results against stated
pljjectiyes;

4.4.1.2.1.1.9. Managirig or supervising per^ns who^ prirhary
responsiljilities'vrith regard,to the.program incfude'
such assignments as Ifwse described in . Section^
4.5.1.2.i;i.1. througti 4.5.1.2.1.i.8.,,abdve;

4.4.1.2.1.1.10. Travel costs Incurred for pfficial business in carrying
out the program;

4.4.1.2.1.1.11. Adrriiriistrative seK'ices performed under.ihird party
contracts or agreernenls. Including such services as
general legal services, accounting services, and
audit senrices;

4.4.1.2.1.1.12. Other costs for goods .and sen/ices, r^uired for
administraiioh of this'program,..including such".goods
and services as. rerital or purchase of ;^uipme1nt,
Insurance,,utilities,^office, supplies". an"d rerital arid
mairitenarice. but hot purchase, of office space;

4.4.1.2.1.1.13. Training on Continuum of Care requirerhehts.'Oosts
of providing training on Coniinuuni; of -Care
reguirements and attending HUD-Sppnsored
Continuum of Care trainings;-and

.4.4.i!2.1.1.14. Environrriental review. Costs pf cariying put the
environmental review resppnsibililies lirider 24 CFR
578.31

4.5: Leasino:

4.5.1. When the Cphtra.ctor is leasing the structure, of portions thereof, grarit'fundpmay be
used to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a structure or sti^jctufes. or pdriiohs
Ihefepf. to provide housing of supportive services to.horrieiess pefsons.for up tp three
(3) years., Leasing funds may ridi be used to lease units or structures owned by
contractor, their ^parent lorganization. any other related prganlzaiipn(s). ;pr
organizations that are members p'f a partriefshlp. where '.the; partnership o.^s the
structure, unless HUD authorized .an exception'fpr good .cause.

4.5.2. Requirements:

4.5;2'.-1. Leasing structures. When grants-are used to pay.rerit fpr';ail.-;o,'r part .pf;a
stru^^ufe pr structu^ reril paid must b"e, feasona.ble in feiatlpn .tafent's
being charged in the ;afee ̂  space.,In ,addlfieni the rent paid

,S«wWesiwnC«>^^ eVwut'e! CwiwciwWUol#.
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may not exceed rents currently being charged by the Mfne. owner for
coniparable.unassisted space.

4;5.2.2. Leasihd individual units. When the grant funds are used to pay rent for
individuarhpuslng units, the rent paid rriust reasonable in relation to rents
being charged for comparable.units, taking into account the location, size,
type,'quality,-amenities, facilities, and management services. In addition,
the rents may not exceed rents currently being charged for comparable
units, and the rent paid may not exceed HUD-determined fair market rents,

4.5.2;3. Utilities. If electricity, gas. and water are included In the rent, these utilities
may be paid from teasing funds. If utilities are not provided by the landlord,
these utility costs are operating costs; except, for supponive seryl.ee
facilities. If the structure is being used as a supportive service facility, then
th^e .utility costs .are a supportive service cost.

4.5.2.4. Security deposits and first and last month's rent. The Contractor mav use
grant funds to pay security deposits, in an amount not to exceed 2 months
of'actual rent. An advance payment of last month's rent may be provided
to the landlord in addition to security deposit and payment of the first
month's rent.

4.5.2.5. Occupancy aoreemerrts and subleases. Occuoancv agreements and
subleases are required as specified ,ln 24 CFR 578.77(a).

4.5.2.6. Calculation of bccuoancv charges and rent. Occupancy charges and rent
frdni'program participants must be calculated as provided in 24 CFR
578.77:

4.5.2.7. Pfobfam income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from program
• participants are program income and may be used as provided under 24
CFR 578.97.

4.5.2:8. Transition. Refer to 24CFR 578.49(b)(8).

4.5.2.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be reasonable in
cornparison to rents charged in the area for .similar housing units,
bocurnental.ioh of rent reasonableness must b'e kept on file .by the
Contractor.

4.5.2.10. The portion of rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HUO-determined
fair market rents.

•4.5,2.1.1. .The Contractor sha|l pay individual, landlords directly; funds nriay not be
given directly to parlicipants to pay leasing costs.

4.5.2.12. property .damages may only be paid from money paid to the landlord for
security' deposits.

4.5:2.13. The Contractor cannot lease a buildino that it already owns to itself.

•4.5.2.14., .Housing .must be in compliance with all Stale and local 'housing codes,
licensing'requirements, the Lead-Based Paint'Poisoning Prdy'ehlioh -Act,

.;and any .other requirements of .the jurisdiction in Which-the .housing" Is

SouOwvtJtCfnjCocnmuj^y C'liUiP
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.lowted T^afdirig the condition of the stojcture. and operation
housing or services.

4.6. The Contracibr may .charge prograrri participants, rent and (heat, hot water). .iHpwever,
the. amount chariged rhay not esxtbed (he maximum amounts specified in HUD regulations (24
CPR. 573 77) Other jservices such as cable, air condilioning, telephone. Internet access,
cieaning. parVing, pooi charges; etc. are at the participant's option.

4.7. The Contractor shail have any staff charg^ In full or part to ihis contract. or counted as metch.
compieie weekly or bi-y^ekty ̂ Wm^

5. Contractor Financial Manaqernent System

5.1. .. Fiscal Gdn'trol: The Gontractor shall estaliflsh fiscal cpntrbi and fund accounting procedures that
ensure'.proper disbursement of. land accouhiirig fdf; grant furids iahd any requlr^ nonfederal

■  expenditure's' This.= rb,SR6nsibiiity applies to fu'rids 'disbursed in diredt'operations "of the
Coritractpr.

5.2.- The Contr'bctor shall fnalntain a financial management system that complies With 2 CFR pari
2db.or such equivalent'system as the State may require.-

Ccnnetw Infliah
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SPFCIAI PROVISIQNS

Cofitradors pbligatjons: the Contractor covenants and agrees that ajl funds received by the Contractor
uiYder thb'.Control shall be. used on|y as payment to the Contractor for services provide to'eliglb|e'
tpdnnduals and. in the'fuHherance of the.aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
'agrii^s'.^ follpv^:

1; . Compliance'with F.edefal and. S^te Laws: If the Contractor is.permitted to determine the eligibility
of itxiividuals siKh'ellgibi.nty-deterrhinatjon shall be'ma.de in accordance with .applicable federal and
State laws^r^ulaiipnis. orde'iai-.guidelines. policies and procedures.

2. Time and .Mariner .of Determl.iSa.tioni.Eligtbirrty determinaiions shall be made ori fomis proyid.ed by
the Depatlrnent for that purpose and shall be'made, and remade at such'times as aj.e p're^rlb^ by
the'Department. - • • • • • • •

'3; Oocuriieritatiori: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department.' the Coritractqr
shatl fnairitaiii'a data file 'do each' redpient of services' hereurxler, which file shall include ail
'infprm'.ation neces^ry.'tb.su delermir^atidn. and such other information as the
bepaftfne'ht requests. The C.pntracto'r s.h'ail furnish the Department vi^ih ell .forms and docunriehtation
r^'bidi.rib' eligbility idetenrnihaii.dns that the Departrinent' may request :dr require..

4. 'Fair Hearings: The Contractor urider'stands that all applicants for services.h'ereunder, as .v^ll as'
; individuals declared. Ineligible have-a right'to'a fair hearing'regarding that 'determin'alioa The'
• Coriiractor hereby cdvenanls and agre^ that ail applicants for seryfces shaii.be. perfnitt'ed id fill out
ari appli^tion form and that each'applicant or re-applicant shall be' Irifdrrned of hl^er Hght .taa toir
hearirig in'accordance with Department regulations. - '

■ 5. I'G'ra'tuities ofklckbdcks;Jhe'Cdnttoct^ agrees'that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
.'makd a payment, gratuity prdffeVof.emplpymeni on behalf of the'Cpntfador; any 'Sui>C.ontractor or
.'the $taie in'pfde'r,l6. in performahce of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit .A of this
iCdhtfeirt. The, State may 'ternrilfipie this Go'nlracl and any sut^contract pr.suti-agreem^ is! .
■determined, that pa^'enfe.igratuiiies or offers' of ernptoyimeht'of any kind, were d,ffcred or received by
.any officials, officers, employes .or agehts/of the Conlfactor.pr"SutitContractdr.;

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwilhsianding anything to' the contrary contained Iri the Contractor ihariy
.other.ddcumeni, contract or unberslandihg; It is expressly understood and agreed by the partl^.
herelp.rthai no payments will be-made hereunder to:reimburse the Contraclpr for costs incurred for
iany-purpose or'fpf any sen/ices provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
■anX no payments shall be made for ex^nses incurred .by the Contractor for a ny services provided
pri.pr.to'U^ dale'oh wtiich^jhb. individual applies for series or (except as otherwise provided by ,the
federal regulations)' pHor to a'delerrhiriatidn' that the indrvidual is eligible for such sennces.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Nptwlhslanding anything to the contrary contained in thyGpntra'^-npthihg
herein .cyntai'nfd. shall l^.'drtriii'ed to obligate pr require the Departfhe'ni to purchase.services
hereundery\ a rate.which felmb^^ (^ni/actor in excess'of the CpnlraclpfyMsty^ .
which exceeds'ithe aniounts'reasonable, and necessary to assure the'quality brsLj^^se'rvnce, or'at'a'
rate.v>rhlch exceeds the ratVcharged by the Contractor td'ihe.liglble ihdivi.duais'or olhbf'Uiito
ifu^ers for such serwce. If a.t ari/lime dui-ir^ the term of this Contract or after recelpVpf the .Final
E^efiditufe f^ppprt'-hereunder/lhe Departmehi shall deterrnioo that the.Contradpr has/.used '
peyiTients;hereui^e'f Ip. reirnb.urse iterns.pf expense other,than such costs,''bf has received payment
In^expess 'pf such cdsts pf inyxcess of such .faie^ charged by the Contractor to Ineligible individuals-
or pth.erthifd party funde'ref the departrneht may elect to:

7.-1. ' Renegotiatethb .ra hereUridef, in wfiich event hew fates shall be established;
-7,2. /li).^uc:t from bny.future' payrh.en't to the Contraclof the'.ambunt bf.any 'p'riof'reinibPrsemb^

'•^'excew .pf-.cpsfy.''
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7.3. P^and repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in whiph event failure to make
.such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Cphlractor Is
permitted to deterniiiie the eligibility of individuais for services, the Contractor agrCw lo
reimburse'the Department for.all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services

'  prided jo any Individual v^o is found by the Department to be Ineligible for such services at
any limV during the peri^ of relenlkih of r^ords established herein."

RECORpS:;MAtNTe,f^NCE,.RCTENTlON. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the; ellgiblllly records' specified above, the dontrador
' covenants ahd.isgrees to.maihlsin Ihe'foDowihg records during the Contract Period:

B.il. Fiscal Records: l^ks.Tecords. documents and other data evidencing arSd reflecli^.all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Cohir^;;and afll
income received or cdflected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records .to .1:^
maintdhed in accordance with accounting procedure and practices which sufficl^nUy and
pf(^riy refl^ i\\ such.costs and expenses, and wttich are acceptable to the Depar^ent; and
to" IndudC, without.iimltalion. all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such ̂
purchase requisil(6ns.aftd.bfdyrs. .>mu requi^ions fpr materia.ls;"inventorios. valu^loos of
Irvkind.cbntribtUioh^^ labortirhe cards., payrolls, and "other records requested or requlried by-the
Departnierit.

8.2. ,St8listicarRecprds:.StatisUMi, enrollment, attendance .or visrt.record.sTor each recipient of
'  services during the Cdntrac^^ Period, wt)lch records shall IrKlude.aii records of appjlcaliwand

eliglbilll'y (iricluding'a.ll forrins required to determine'eligibility fw each such recipient)", rwords
regarding the provision ̂ .services and ail invoices submitted to the Departrnenl td'bbtain
payment for such services.

•8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regula.tipns.lhe
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/feciplenl of services.

.9. A'udii: Cbntraclor shajl submit an annual audK to the Depiartrrienl within.^ days after the ctose ofthe
. agency fi.sCal ye'a.r..ll is riecbmmehded thai" the report be' prepared in accordance with the provision of
Offfee of Mana^ehieni and Budgct Circular A-133. 'Audits of Stat'es. Local .(Spyernrrteriiy arid Noh
Profit OrgayzaUpn'y andthy provisions of Slari'dards for Audit of Governrherital Drgahlzatibris.
Programs. ActWKies "and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAQ standards) as
they pertain to fin'ancial compllance audits.

9.1. Audit and Re.view:. Duririg the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Departrrieht, the United .States Department of Health and Hunrian Services.'and any of their
d^aigna'ted representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to

■ the Contract, for purpbsesrbf audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.
.9.2. Audit Liabilftles: In additibri lb and not in any way in liniilatlon of obligalioris of the Contract, it is

undorstbod and agreikf by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held .liabl.e.for any state"
Of federal audit exceptions, and shall re,(urn to the Department, all payment's made undy (he
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have b^'n disallowed beca.use of ."such ah
.exception,

10. ..Cohfidcntjality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained t^reunder br Collecled
in connection, with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be'coniideniial and.shallnot
be'disclosejd by.the.Contractor. provided however, thai pursuant te state laws and the rGgulalipnyof

•  .the peparfmWht.regaydihyth'e and disclosure of such infofrnallon. disclosure rhay t^'rhade to
public pffici.ais'^ ir>f6rrhation in connection with their official duties" and for purppses " '
.direcily'.cprinepiyj'ip.ih^^^ of the seryices arW the Cbnlract: and provided further.-ihat
'th.yuse or disclosure by shy party,of any'ihfprmatiori conce'rning a" recipient for any purpose not
:direCtly .cbnriTOledyrith ih^ admiriiistration of the Department or Ihe 'Conlracto'r's responsibilities wth
reject to purchased se^^ hereunder is prohibited except bnwritten coriSerit of the, fbcipieiil. his
altpmey .or guardian*
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No^thstanding anythii^ lo the .contrary contained herein the covenants and condlti^s cbritari.i^ in
Niragraph shall survive the termination of the Qoritraci fOr any reason wha^oeyer.!

11. Reports: Fiscal arid Stati^icai: The'Contractor agrees to submit the following reports/at thefoibv^ng
times if r^uwied by the pe^

.  1 i .i. interim Finaricial Reports: Written Inierim financial reports containing a detailed description of
ail (^'ts ari^ r^n-allo^^le expenses incurr^ by the Contr^tor to the date of the report and
containif>g such ̂ her. information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
Justify the r^e of payment hereunddr. Such Fiiiancial Reporis shaD be submitted on the form
desjgnaled.by the'pepartmeni or deenied satisfactpry by the De^itmenl.

11.2. Final Rejjort: ATiMi report shiall be submitted wHhln thirty (30) days.after the-^;d of Ih'e term
of this Contract. The Fitial Report shall be'In a form satisfactory to the Department and.sKaU
contatri a summ'arystatement of progress tovrard goals and objectives stated In.lhiePro^sal.
.and other iriformatiofi required by the Department.

12. CoriipieUon of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
inaximurh nurnber of units .provided for In the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder/theContract.'arid 'all theobiigailons.of the'parties hereunder (except such obl'igaiions as.
.by the terms.of the'lCoritract'are to be performed after the er>d of the term of this Contract and/or.
surylye.l.he terrnihation ,of Ihe'Cqntract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, Ufidn re.vi'ew ofthe
Final Exi)endlture Repprt the DeparVrient,shall disali^'any'experises clalm'ed by'the Coritfactor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the ri^hi.'tf its.discretion; to deduct th.e ampurit of ..such
expenses as are disallow^ or lo recover such sums from the'Cpritraclor.

13. Credits: All documents, .notices, press releases, research reports and.other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the senrices of the ConUact shall include thefolldwirig
•.statc'meni: . .
13.1. The preparatipn of .this (report, document etc.) was financed under.a Contract with the State

,qf. New Hampshire. pefTailmerit of Health and Human Soryices, with funds provided in part
by theiSlaie oF New Hampshire and/or such pther funding sources as vyere available or
r.equu;^.;e.g.. the Un)t^ States Departrrierrt of Health'and Humari Services.

14. Prior Approval end Copyrtgiht Ownership: All materials (written, wd.eo, audio) prod.uci^ of
purchas^ under the contract shall have prior .approval from DHHS before printing, production',
distributtori or use.' The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for .any and all original fnateriajs'
produced, iirxHuding. but not limited lo; brochures, resource directories, prptocols.or 'guideiif^es,
posters,- of reports! Coniractor.shall not reproduce any materials produced under the cbnlraclwlthout

'prior.vvfitlen approval frorh DHHS. . - ■ ,

15. Ope'ratiph of Facilities.: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
•for prbyldif^ services, the Cdnlrdctof.sh'all comply with all laws, orders and r^ulations of federal,
stete. .county and muriidpal aulhonlies and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers'-
•pursuanl lolaws',which .shall Im'pps'e an order or duty upon the cgntr^tbr'with respect to the
'Operatic of.the fa'cility of the provrs.iori of the services at such facility. If any goyerrimerital licerise or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance .of the said seryii»s,
the Cqnlraclpr wiirprocure said license or perfn'it, and vrill at all iirries .comply with Ihe t'erms ̂ d
co.ndrtions of each such license or permit! In conneciipn with (hbiforegbing requirements, the.
C^li^pr hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Conlrad.the'facllitios shall,
c^pjy writh'all.mles.^ arid requirerrients of the Stale Office oHhe Fire'Marshaland
,tb'e ipcaj.fife protectlbri agency,' and shall be in conformance with local buiWihg arid zoning 'codes;-!:>/•
Jaws'.'efib f^ulaiiori^

16. ;Equal Efnplpy'meril pppohurilty.P^ (EEQP): The Cpntracidr will provide on Equal Employment
Oppof^riHy Pia'h (EEOP) to the OfficeTor Ciyii Rights, .Office of Justice Pfograrhs (OCR), if It' has •
.received a single'awiar^ lithe r^lplerit receives.525,000 or rfiore'bod l&M .or

Exriibli C - Special Provi^^ Contfpcior inliiols/i
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mc^e.employees, il will maintain a current EEOP. on file and stAmit an EEOP Cetlrfication Form to the
OCR. certi^ng.that ItiEEOP is on file. For recipients receivihg less than $25,000. or pubiic^nlees
with fewer than.SO employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient v^d provide an

.".EEOP.Cehifcfitkin Form'to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an £601^. Non
profit o^ahizations. Indian Trib^. and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the -
EEOP r^uirement, but are required to.submit a certification form to the OCR to clairn the exemption.
EEOP CeHificatlori Fomis are'avajfable at: http:/A(vww!ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proflclehcy (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166. Imprpylng Acxess to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency gujdarKe. natior^alongin
discrimination Includes discrimmalion on the basis of limlt^ EngUsh'proncler>cy (LEP). To ensure
cornpliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title vj of the.'Clvil
Rights Act of 1964. Contracted must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
mear\lngful ̂ ess.to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhahccrnent of Contractor Employee Whistleblowcr Protections: The
follovving shall apply to all contracts thai exceed the Simplified Acquislilbn Threshold as defined ih48
CFR 2.101 (currently, si W,6()0j

CONTR^TOR Employee Whistleblov^'er Rights and Reouirement Tp Inform Empioyks of
WHISTLEBLOWCR Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
arid remedies in the pilol program on Contractor employee whlstlet>lower prptecUons 'established at
•'41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of (he National Defense Authorization Ad for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L
112-239) and'FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its emptoyees In writing, in the predominant language of Ihe workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights.and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712," as de^ribed in section
i^8 of the Federal Acquisition .Regulation.

(c) The.Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, includir^g this paragraph (c)..in all
subcohtrscts b^r the simplified acquisilion threshold.

H9. .Subcontractors: pHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise'to perform certain health care se.rvices or.functions for efficiency or convenience,
bill the Contractor'shall relairi the responsibility arvd accouhlabilily for the funclion(s). Prior to
subcdritracling. the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
•function(s). ,Thls Is accomplished through a wrrlteri egreemerit that specifics activities and reporting
responsibilities of (he subcontractor ar)d provides for revoking the delegation or inhposlrig sanction's if
the subconlr^lof's.performance' is not adequate..Subc.ontractors are subject to the sarne contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor Is responsible to ensure sutK^'htreitibr.cbmpliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegales.a function to a subcontractor, the Contrador shall do the fdlov/ing:

19.1. Evaluate the.prpspective subcontractors obilityto perform the actrvilies. before'det^aling
•the'fundion

19.2. Haye a wrirteri;fig'r^mp^ su^onlraclor that specifies activities andrepprting
responsibilities'and hpw'sanctibns/rev^cation'wii) be'managed if the subcontractor's
perfprmancc is' noi';bdequ,ate

19.3. Mpflitpf the subconlfactpr's jjcrformance on'an ongoing basis

.ExhlWi C Conuonor iniil
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19.4; Provide lo QHHS'an annual schrtule Identifying all su^pntractors, delegated functidns snd
resf^slbilities;. .and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviev/ed

19.5. DHHS shall, at Ks discfetlbh. re>^w and approve all subcontracts;

If the Contractor identifies deffciencies or zreas for improvement are identified.- the Contractor shall
take cbrrectlve. act ion.

20. Contract Definitions;.

20.1. cpSTS;,ShalI mean thq^ direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department
-to M''alk^i*^ble.8hd reirnbursable m accordarico with cost and accounting principles'^tablished

,  In accdrd?h<^.^h. stale and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. ' DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Hearth and Human ̂rvices.

20.3. RRQPO.SAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contr^pr on a
• fonh'or fprrhs i^uired by the Depar^ent and containing a description of the spaces and/pr
goods to be provided, by the 'Contractor in accordartce with the ierms and coridrtlons of'the
..Contract and setting forth the 'lotal cost and sources'of revenue for each service to be provided
•u'ndertheContract." ^ .

•20.4. tJNIT: For'each.Mrvice thaf the" Contractor is to pfpvide.tb eligiWe individuals hiereunder,'shall
mean.thal p'ericd of.lime pr'thal spared activity detefmiried by the'bepartnient'and'specified
in Exhibit B of the Contract. "

'20,5. FEpE^L/STATE lAVy: Wh'ercver federal or state laws, r^ulations. rules, orders, and
ppliqiw. etc. are.referT^ to in the .Cohtract, the said reference shaH be.deemed ip mean
all such laws. f.egulptions,.etc. aVfhey may be.amended or revised from,time to'.tirrie.

20.6. '.SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL:fUnDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
•Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

UXtiibii C - Gpc'cMi Pibvtipiphs Cbttraciorihinb'is
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provlslpns

1.1. Section 4', CondHionia) Nalure'of AQreerrieht. is replaced as follows:

4: CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

No^thstanding 'any provision of this Agreement to the contrary. ;all obligations of the State
hereundef. indudihg wi'thout limilation. the conlinuance of payments, in syhble.or in part,
,ur^er this Agreement are.contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of'funds,
ir^ding any subsequent changeS'to the approp'ri^ion or availal)illty of funds.affected by
any state'or federal legislative or executive'adlon that reduces, eliminates, ,or'.oth'ewi^
rrK^ifies the appropriation or availability pf funding for this Agreement and the.Sc^'.of
Services provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no ev^nt shdil the
State be'liable for any paynaents hereunder in excess of appropriated or avaii^le'funds. ln.

.  the event-.of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State, shall have'the right to withhold payment until such funds become avaiiable. if ever.
The'Stale shall have the right to'reduce, terminate or mddlify services under, this. Agreement
.imrriediately' u^h giving the Contractor notice' Of such, reduction, 'jermination or
rnodificatioh. The State shall not be-required to transfer funds frorh any other 'source or
accouril into, the Accourit{s) identified m.:b!.ock 1.6.of the Gerierai, Pr6visi6ris; A^unt.

, Nurhber, or any other account in the event funds ore reduced or unavailable.

.1.2, Section 10, Tenmlnation. is amerided by adding the following language;

10.1 -The State may terminate the Agreement at any time fpr any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the Stale is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2'm 'the event of early tenmiriation, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
teirnlnatton, .'develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
^reenienl, .including but hot' limited to. identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreemerrt arid establishes .a pfo^ss to rneet those needs.

10.3 The Contractorishall 'fully .cooperate with'the Staie.ahd shall promptly provide detailed
informalioh l6 supjwft the TransK'ion Plan includirig. but hot limited to, any informatioh or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the'.Agreemehiand Tra'nsitid'iS Plan
and shall proNode ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the .State
as requested,

'10.4 In the event'that services under the Agreement, including ljul not limited to clients receiving
seiyices under the Agreement are t/ansitipned to having services' delivered by another
e'nti.tY including coritracted provkjere or the Stale, the Contraclor shall provide a process for
uninleritipted delivery of scr\hces in the Transition Plan.

•10.5. The .Contractor shall establish a rheihod of notifying clients and other affected individuals
aljoul the iransllidri. The Cbhlractor shall include the proposed cbmrhCinications .in its
'Transitibh Plan' is.ubmitled.to the State as descntied above.

2. Renewal

2.'1. The Department reserves the right to ejderid this agreement for up to two (2) additional years.
contingent u^n'salisfactory delivery of services, a^ilable funding, writt.en agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

pdiibii C-i - Rcvi^cMi&rEicepitois 10 SiAiiUiJid Caniraa Language Conii.actdr Initioi.s.
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CERflFICATIQN REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identlfi^ in Section i .S of ihe General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Swtions 5151:5160 of the Drug^ree Woi1(place Act of 1988 (Pub. L. title V. Sub'titte.p; 41
U.SX. 701' et seq.). and furti^r agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as'identiried in Sedions
l.'lV and 1.12 bf-the'Gehei^l Provisions execute the following.Certrficatibn:

ALTEiRNAtiyE I - FpR,GFWMTEES OTHER THAN INDlV|DUALiS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US.DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US department of AGRICpltURE • COrfTRACTORS

This^certfficatipn Is" required,by the regulafions implementing Sections .515T-^5160 of the Dajg-Free
V^ortc'place Act of 19M (Pub: L. ld6-690;'Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et.seq.). The Janua>7 31.
1989 regyl^ipns were amended.and published as Part li of the May 25,1990 Federal R^isterTpages
2lMi:216,9,ij.;a"d require certification.by grante;es(an_dby inference, sub«grantees and'sut>-
cpntrectbrs), prior to award, thai they will maintain a dmg-f''ee workplace. Section 3017-630(0) of the
^gulatipn brbvides that a gfantee (aryd by inference, sul>^rante€s>nd.sub-contraclofs) thatJs.a State"
i^ay .eie'ctT.birhake .prie certificalio'n to the. Deparimerit in each federal fiscal year'in li.eu of.certifiwi^.fbr
e.ac^.grani during .the.fed.era! fiscal, year covered by the"certificatlbri. The'certificate set o.iit belbw Is a "
rnatera) 'reb.re^ntdiori: bf fad u'j^n .which .reliance is.. plac^ when the .agency awards the grant. False
(^rtificaUb.ri or "iriplation of the codification, shall be, grpunds for suspension of payments, suspension "or
iermlnatlpn of grants, or go.yemmenl,wide,suspension or.debarinent. Coniractors using this, form .shoyW
seridcttp:

Cornrriissioner.
NH Department of Health and Human Services
'129 PIdasant Stre.et,-
Cbricbrd. NH d330'1 -6'50"5

'1. The grantee'.ceilifies that it.will or vyill continue to provide a drug-frae .workplace by:
'l.lV, Publishing .a statement rwlif^ng erriploy^s that the unlawful manufecture, distfibulion;

dispensing, possbssiori or u^ of a controlled substance is prohjbit.ed in the grantee's
v/brkplace arid specifyi.rvg the aclions.thai will.be taken against employees, for violation of such
-prphibiiipn;

1.2. ;Establishi.ng an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2,-1; " The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The. grantee's policy of mainlainirig a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. rAny aybilaWe drug counseling, rehabilitation, and erhployee.assistarvce prpgr8ms; and
1.2-A - The pe.rialijesjhalrri'ay be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

.occurring In the. wb|kplocc;
1.3. Making it.a requirement.jliat each empioyee'to be engaged In the perfpfrnance 6f:th"e graril be,

giycri a copy of the.slbtem'eni required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notif^rig.the"employ;ee in "the "statement raquired by paragraph (a) that.ras a cpnditipri of

ernplbymeni uricter tlieigranl/the employee will
'Ablde.bytKe tp^s of Ihe slaternent; arid

.1 Nptifyjhe-empibYer in .writing pf his or her conviction for a violation of 'a criminal drug
•statute.occurring in'the workplace no later than fivo calendar da;^;after such'
.conviction; '

1.5. .Nptrfying the agency in.writing, writhin ten calendar.days after receiving notice under
sybpa'ragraph '1:'4!2. frqm''ari.eiTipk)y^^ or otherwise receiving actual notice of such corivictipn.
Employers."of.convict'ed erhplbyees riotlce, iriciudirig ppsition'lil|er;lp:eye,iV grari^
Officer.priyriips^^^ tl^\cbriyitted employee vvas wpfklrig, unless the Fede'rai.agency

.'Exfiin b- CertJItoiioo'iegardiri^ 'Drug Free Vcrydor Wila
Wofl(pr.ace Requirpmcrits.
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has d^ignated a central pdnt for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
Ideniiflication ,nurhl»f(s) df.each affected grant;

16. Taking one .of Ihe'.folJoWi.ng actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1 Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up toar\d including

(errhination. consistent with.the requirerhents of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
arnended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for su^ purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
levy enforcwenl, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a' good faith effort 10 continue to maintain a drug-free .workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 11,. 12,1.3, 1.4.1.5, and 16.

2. The grantee may insert in the .space provided below the site(5) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant

Place of Performance (street addre.ss, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if.there ere workplaces on'file'that ere not identified here.

Vendor Name;

D) Q^mK^u-oi-Rj ■S^\<ss, inc
Mjm C^
Dale Nai/e: / MaOni

(£0Tl

(*xnlbhO -Ceiiiticuiionr'c^af'oino bluy Rev vcnaoriDiiiais
■ Worttp^o Rcqt^remenls

cuoNKWiiprrt Page .2.of 2. Dote
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor jdentified in Section 1,3..of ttie General Provisions agrees to, comply with the provisions pf
Section 319 of P'ubilc.La[w'101.-T2lVGovemrnenl wide Guidance for.N^ Restnctiohs on Lob^jng/and
31 U.S'C;;^ 352, arid further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as ideritrfl^ in Sections 1.11
and 1:12 df Ihe Generai Rrpvisib^ execute the following Certification:

US OEPARtMENT^F HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
•US DEPARTMENT OF EbUCATidNCOf^RACTOBS ̂
'US.pEP>y?TMElfr;OF AGRIC.UL - CONTRACTORS

Prograrns (Iridfcate 'applkiable program covered):
•X^pdra.^ ̂sistahce'tp Ne^y Familtes under Title IV-A
fCHt'ld Support Enfprcernent Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block'Grant Program under Trtle jO(
'M^icaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Develppmerit.BkXik Gt^nt under Tille lV

The undersigned certifies, ib'the bwt of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. :Np.Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will b'e'paid by or,pn,behalf of ̂ .e undersigned,'to
any persoh foV irifiuenCihg 'or attempting to influence ah ,offiC€r"dr.erriplpyee of ariy agency,'a Member
of Congress.-ari officer or lemployee of Congress.'Or an ernpldy^ of a. Memter pf Congress jn"
connccUon wilh'ihe awarding'of any Fedcral.contract, cdniinuatlpn, renewal, amendrner)!, dr .
rnodtotjon.orariy Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
•.siib-grahted or,sub<ont^actor).•

'2. !lf anyifiihds other t.hari Federal appropriated funds have been paid or,vwill be paid to^ariy person for
InfluefKing'pr attempt an offi'ceV or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
ah officer or emplpy^'pf;.C6rlgres.s',;pr an employee of a Mernber.of Congress'in dohnectidnwHhth
j^edefal .cdntraidt.-gfant/ipan.'pr 'codperative agreeme^ (and by specific rhdritlon sub-^rahtee or sub
contractor).'the unders.i^^^ shall complete aixJ s.ubrnlt St'andard Forrh'LLL, (pls.cjpsure Form tq
Report'Lobbying. in;3ccdrdance,with its instructions, attached .arid identified as Stahdard Exhibit E-l,)

' 3^ The undersigned shall requirejhat the language of this certificalion be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including sutxpntracts. 'sub^rants.' and contracts linder grants,
loans.' arid cooperative agreements) "and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disuse accordingly.

This Periificatipn'ls.^a,malerial,repfc«htatioh of fact upon which.reliance was placed when this trar»sactibn
was rhade or'entered irito. ''SObmission of.this'certiticaiipn^te prere.quts'rte.for making'or ehtering I'nto.this
.trahsaclipn.lrhpose'd by Sed'iw. 1352. THle..^ U.S.'.Cbde. perso.n who fails tb file Ih'e required
;,certific8lipn"shallb"e;s^^ civil penally .of not less than $10,000 an'd not. more than $100,000 for
each Such failure..

Vendor Name:

I
Nam

TrUej

ceo

Date

iExhlttt'E-Ceriincitioti R^aioliiy LuUUyliiy , vendor.inliiaJs
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CERTinCAtlbN REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in'Se^ldn i.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Execdiive Office bflhepresiden^^^^^ Order .12549 arxj 45,CFR Part 75 regarding Debarment,
Sii^ervsipn. ahd ̂ her Res^nslbllity Matters, and further agr^s to have the Cbntrador^s
lepresentatKfe. as identifii^ In Sections 1.11 and 1.12,of the Genera.! Provisions execute the following
Cerlifi.cadph;

INStRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATipN
1. By sigrStng and subrh.itting this.proposal (contract), .the prospecliye.primary participant is providing the

certiificdtbn set out below.' .

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certification require.d below will not necessarily result'in denial
of participation In this.covered transaction, if necessary, the prospe^ive participant shall subrriit.ari
iDxplanat.ipn of why it cannot provtde thc certification, the certification or explanation will be'

• considered in cohhec.tibh with the NH Department of Health and Human .^rvlces' (OHHS)
deterrhirialion v^elher to 'enter into this transition. However, failuro of the prosp^lrve primary
pa'rticipahl to.'furnish a'.«rtiflcallo.n or on explanation shall disqualify such person from participation In
this transabtioh.

3. The certifiMtlon In this claus.e js a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to dhlef into this transaction. If It is later del.ermin'eb that the. prospective',
primary participant knovvlngiy rendered an erroneous cerliricaliqh, in addition to other rernedies'
available to ̂ e Federal .bovemment, DHHS may tefminale this" transaction for cause.or default,

4. The pfdspect'iye primary participant shall provide immediate written t}otice to the.'DHHS agency 16
^pm.'thls "proposal (contract) is subrnilted if al ony time the prospeclive pfimary participorit le.arns
that its certificatiqn waslehonoous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
clrcurristances.

•5. The terms""cqvered transaction.' *debarred."suspended." 'indigiWe.' 'tower .tie.r cbye'red
iran^tlpn."participjanl,' ."person,* ."pri.rriary covered Iransacl.iqiS," 'principal." "propdsal.' arid
-yotuntarily excluded,' as used in this clause, have the. rneariihgs set out .in (he Definit.iqns arid
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Exec.utrve Order 12549: 45'CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions:

6. ' The'pro.s'pective primary participant agrees by submrttirig this proposal (contract) that, should the'
proposed coyered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower'tler covered
ti^risact.ipn yrith a person v/h'o is debarred, suspended,-declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from po'rticipatlon in.thiis'covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary particrpaht.fiirther agrees, by submittlrig this proposal that It will iriclude the
clause titled ■p.erjificaiipn R^arding Debarmefit. Suspens.ion, Irieligibility and Voluntary Exclusto.ri r

.  Lower Tier Covered transadkins;' provided by DHHS, Without modificaliorii in"all lower tier cqyeri^
.transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier co^red. trar^sactions.

.6. A pariiclpant In a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a. prpspectiye participant in a
lower tjer covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or invbluniarily excluded
frito^ thcpoye'red treriwc^ unless It knpv/s .that the.certificalion is errorieous. A participant may

••decide the"niethbd enb'fr^uency by which it deiermjnes the eligibility of its principals; ;EaCh
participant may, but js not.ri^uirod to, check the htonprocurement List (of excluded parlies).

.9. •Nolhing'contained In the foregoi.rig shall.be conslrued .to require establishment of, a system of records
.In Ofde'r lo'fenderin gbpd fa"rth;the .certification required, by'Jthis'clause. Theknoi-yl^ge and

•Eihbi! rrCeniRcaiioo Rcgordiiig C><i«iVi'W'''. Suspcnsfoo vei.iUwi Iniii
/y>d(XhcrRMpon5ibililyMatler5
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' information of a participant i$ nc^ required tp;exceed that which is normally possessed by a'pn^ent,
person in the ordinary course of buisiiriess dealings.

i o. Except. iPpr trahs^ohs aut horized .under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered tiransa.Sibh knw^ ini'o a lower tier covered transaction with a person who'is
;.sus^nd^. debaiTedjn.eijgi.bje.;6r vbluhlar^ from participation In ihis.lrans^loh, in
^dftjoh tobther rehi^ies'available to ihe F^eral govemhrient. DHHS may terminate this trahsaciibn
' for cause or 'default.

PRIMARY COVERED
11.. The prospective pnitiaiV.participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that .It and tte

p'rtncipdls;
"11.1: acPihot presentiy debarre.d, suspended, proposed for debamnerit, declared ineligible, or.

vblunlarily^exclu'ded frbrh covered lrar)sa.dions by any Federal department oragertcy; -
1 i.2. have not ̂ thin.a three^year period preening this proposal (conlracl) been convicted of or had

a .civil judgment rendered against .them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense'in
cbnhecUqh \^'h'pbiain>ng. a to obtain, or performing a public (Fedefdl. Slate or local)
.transadfidn or boontr^ pyblic tri'ns^lion; viplatiphof F^eral or Stateaniit'rust

•  siatuteyprcprhmrss^ .embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsificalion ,pr destru.ctidn of
fwbrds, making f^estaiements, or r^eivihg stpleh property;'

1.3. ;.are not. presently Indictdd for bthervhse criminally of ciyilly charged by o goVerrirhental entity
■(Fede^i/.Sfafo.pf'lbcai).'^ any of the offenses enume'rated in par.agraph;(l)(b)
•of this cerfificaijon;''arid

11.4. have hot.Within a'ihree-ye'ar period preceding this applicaUorypfoposal had one or mdre puplic.
trahsactiohs'(Federal, .Slate or local) terrhihatcd for cause or default.

11.

12. where the prospective primary pariicipant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this .
certificatioh, siich pfosj:^ctive participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

.LOWER TIER CpSi^REp-YRA
13. By signing and syt^mitting thte Ip^ pfppdsal ,(cbntrad). the prps'pective..tower tier participant, as

.defined iri,"45 GFR Part .76'. certifies tothe best of its khovyie^eand belief .that lt..ahd its principal^'
13.1, .yfyrtot bfesehtly.'bebafTed. suspended., proposed for detjarmeni, declared ihellgibiy of •

.voiuntarily excluded frpm "particlpalipn in this transaction by any federal departrneni or agency.
'1.l2. where the pfospecljye iower tief participant is'unable to certify to.any of the abOve, .such

prospective particip.ariV.sha!).attach an explanation to this propdsa! {cbnlfact).'

14. The prospective lower tier partlc.ipant further agrees by submitiirtg this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause .entitled 'Certificat©^ Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibiliiy. ahd ,
Vdluplary Exclusion • Lower tier CpVered Transaclions,'without modification in all lower lier covered
Irahsactiohs'ahd in all s'pliciiatibf>s for loWer tier covered Ifansaclions.

Vendor Name; Chts^suf\\-V(^ \ce$, Iryi-
Date Namei/wn

Tilio; /i:
/Ceo

ExliOfii F R^arOrng CrebafitMrt. SiSpvti^ioii yenoor int^ts
And Oihcr RMpdntWtjiy MciUeis

'.■du.OuCvi10V.V3' P«jje.2. qf2. Dat«



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

■ CERTIFICAfidN OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FATTH.BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor kJentlfi^ In Section 1.3 of the-General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
rebr_esenteliye;'aV,id,entifl^ in Sections l.'il and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute tHe'foli^ng
certificatibn'

Vendor will comply, arid will require any subgrantees or subconlracto.rs'to comply, vrith any applicable
federal nohdiscriminatioh r^uirements, which may include:
- the Omnibus Crime Coritrol and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.p. Section 3789d) which prphibrts
recipients of federal funding under Ihis slatute frorn dlscriminattng. eilhw in employment practice ipr ih
the delivei^ of services or benefts. on the basis of race! color, religion, national origin, arid sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to prbduce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

-the Juvenile Justice OejiiiquerKy Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Sectroh M72(b)),which adopts by
refererice. the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prahibited from discriminating, cither in employment practices or in the delivery of.services or
benenu. on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin,'and sex. The Acl includes Equal
Erbplpynrient Opporiunity Pla'ri requirerhents;

- the Civil Rights Acl ,of .1964, (42 U.S.C. Section"2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistarice.frOm'dlscriminating on Ih'e basis of race, color, or natiprial origin in any program or aciivlty);

■ the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Sectiori794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from di^riminating orithe basis of disability, iri regard to eniploynienl and the delivery of
•services or benefits, in any program or activity;

T the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1^0 (42 IJ.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discHmlnation and ensures equal opportunity for persons wKh disabilities iri ernploymeni. State and locai

, government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities! and transportation;

-the Educatipri Amendmentsofrt972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683.1685-86), which prohibits,
drscrlminatibri bn!the basis of sex iri federally assisted education programs;

- th'e Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 tJ.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age.ln prp'grarns or activities receiving Federal financial assislarice. It does not Include
ernptoymerildiscrlmirialiph;'

- 28 C.F.R. pt .31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations -.OJJDP Grant Programs):-28 C.F.R. pi. 42
(IJ.S. .Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimirialipn; Equal Employment Opportunliy: Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based arid .community
orgariizations); ̂ ecutive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and poiicy-making
criteria.for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations:

•:28 C.F..R..pt.-38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Tre.atment for Faith-Based
prga'nizatioris); and Whistieblbwer protections 41. U.S.C. §4712 and Ttie National Defend Aulriorization
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2.2013) the Piloi Program for
Enhari.cement of Contract Employee WHIsUeblower'Prbleclions, which protects employees against
reprisal.for certain whistle" blowing activities in cbnnectlori'with federal grants and contracts.

the certrficate set out belovy .is a'fnaleriai representation of fact upon which.retiahce.is placbd when the
agency awards the grant. False.c.ertificatiori or violatlori of the certificatipn shall be grounds.for
'suspension of payments,,susperisiori or terminatibri of grants, or government wide sus'penisiori'pr
debbrmefit.

ExhlbttG
_. . . Vendor InJtlats

C»Wiltoi d (kOfWfUlQ to MoooiutntitKlioivCQud TmurMm ft CtsanakoM
,, (fijViK'i&jUoww potortfo*

tfJTn*

Rqv ia/2>n4 'pa^eiofZ
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New Hampshire Departmo^h^^ and Human Services
Exhibit G

•In.^e eyepV? Frtefial prSta^ or Slate adm|riistratlye.agency makes a findir^ of
dis^mihatipn aitera'clue probess hea.nng on the grounds efface, color, religton, hationaj ongin.'or sex-
.^ajnst a recipien^^^^ will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for bivii.Rights, to
the a'j^li^le'cpnlia.c^ng agency divisioh'wiihin lhe Departrnenl of Health and Human Services, and
to ihe'D^fV?>^^" Human Services Office of the Ombudsman:

The Vendor Jdentrfied in S^fpri 1.3 bf the General Proyisioris.agrees'by sigriature of the Cohtractbr's,'
repre^ntajiyeas We^^ in ̂ ctipris,1.l1 and 1.12 of the .General Proyisipfis. to execiit.e the following
ceflHicatibn;

1. 6y signing and submlttir^ this'proposal (cpntraci) ihe.Vendpr agrees to comply with the.prbvisioris'
.Iridicated above.

Vendor Name; ,

Date

l/^e; Jolrtn/A. MatSoiihc^
OEO

ExHlHtO
V  Vendor InfU.
XurtteotKnoi.CAiTVUirot MniM^trnana pcrunnQlof*M(al MundljolnicutiAn, Htrrt e<

■navrf'iKrotK'adirpttMciims'
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New Hampshire Dopirtmoht of Health and Human Services
ExhibltH

CERTiFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law \0^,227, Part C • Envlfpnmenlal Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-ChiWren Acl of 1994
(Act), r^uires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any irtdoor flirty owned or leased or
contract^ fof by'sn entity and . r'oUinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care.-^ucation,
.or library .service to urider the'age'of 18. if the seryices are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, cohtraci. loan, or loan guarantee. The
law dp^' riot apply to children's seryices provided m private .residences, facilities furided. solely by

. Medicare or Medicaid funds, .and portions of facilities'used for inpalierit drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply With the provisions of taw'may resutt in the ImposiUon of a civil rnonetary perialty lof up'to
S1000 per day and/or the imposition of an admlnistralive compliance order on the responsible entity!

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the .Cpntr^or's
represen'tstive as identihed in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, toeirecute the fdllO'^g
ce'rtificatioh;!

1. By signing and subriillting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply wtlh
all applicable prpyislons of Public Law 103-^7, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Acl of 1994.

Date

Vendor Name:

vOQ5i

CovL/n{/\^'
Na fMM

C£0
Tta

H - C^rKvUoh Rega'dl'Vj Vendor.lnhiats
EnvironmentsI Tobacco Smoko

CuOH^io7t} Pago 1 of 1 Oatkf



New. Hampshire OefMrtmoht of Health an^ Human Services

ExhibK 1

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILfTY AND ACCOUNTABILrTY ACT
-  BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in'S.ection 1.3 of the General, Prpvisipns of the Agree'merilagriees to
comply with .th^;Hea'lth insurance Po'^'bility anii Accburiiability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
vvjth the Standards tprPriyacy arid.Security of 'Individually Identifiable Health Infprmadon, 45
CFR Parts; 160 and 164 a'ppiicable'to business associates; As defined herein, "Busiriess,
Associate' shali me'ari the .Contractor and subcontractors and ajgeriis of the Contractor that
rieoeive, use or have access to.protected health infprrnatioh under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the .Stale of Ne,w.Hampshire. Department of Health arid Huifian Services.

(T) Definitions.

a. .'Breach'-shaii have th'e'same meaning as the term "Breach" in.section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulalipris.

b. "Business Absbdate' has the meaning given such tenri in section ) 60.103 of Title 4.5,- Code,
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity" has the meanirio Given such term in section 160,103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Reg.yl.ati.bns'.

d. 'Desionated Record Set" shall have'the'.same' meaning as the term 'designated record set'
.in 45,CFR;.ge:diori 164:50

e. 'Data Aboreaation' sHali have the same.meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45..CFR
-.Sec.tibri 164,501..

'Health.Gare'Operations' shall have the same meaning as.the.term "health dare operations"
in 45 CFR Sedion.l 64.501.

v' . . .... .

.g. 'HITECH Act'mearislhe Health Inforrriatipn Technology for Ecoriorriic arid Clinical Health
Act, TltieXIII, Sublitle'D, Part i & 2 .of.the American Recovery arid Reinvestrhent Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA" means the.Health Insurance Portability and Accountability.Act of 1996. Rubiic Law
104-191 ;ah.d th'e Standards for Privacy and Security of .Individually Identifiable Heajth
liSfprmatidri, 45 'CFR Parts 160.162 arid 164 and amendments thereto.

-i.- "Individuar shall have the sarne mearilng as the term "Indivlduar m 45 CFR Sectipri'i 6pJ03
=and. shall inclyd.e.a person who qualifies as a personal rep'resentative.ln .accprdaric.e wlth.45
CFR Section '1,64,501{g)^

J., "Privacv 'Rule':sh'all 'mean th'e.Standards fp.r Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Infoymatioh jat 45 CFR.Pafti 160 and 164, prorTiulgaled under HIPAA by the United .States
.pepartmentpf Health and Hurna'ri'Sem^

k. 'P'rciteded Health Iriformatlon' shail have;ihe .same rneanihg as the tehm 'protect.ed'health
•informatibn"'Jn'4:$ C.Ff^.-Sectipn isOyiOS. limKbd to the.lnfprrhatlQn created .'.or receiv^ by
Business.'^sjspciateyrpnni pr'oh.bieha.lf 0 Ehlity.

3/2014. ... E^Wll . s • CtxilraciorIfiiyalv
Health jn»(*ancl? P6flaW%';^ -
easiness .^ioeh^hr

Pagci^fi" OoisL-



Nw Hampshir® Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

■Required bv Lav/shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law" In 45.CFR
Section 164.103.

. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Heatth and Human Services or
hi^er deslgnee.

n  -Spcurilv Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the ProtecUon of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 GFR Part 164. Subpart Q. and amendments thereto.

m

0. M inQPrnred Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unrbadable.' or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or
"a standards developing organization that is accredited by the Amencan National Standards
Institute.

n nthfir riefinltiohs - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall havp the meaning
established under.45 C.F.R. Parts 160.162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HitECH
Act.

(2)

a.

Ru^iness Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected HealthIriformation (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
^hibh A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limrted to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI In any rhanner that would constitute a violation of the Pnvacy and Security Rule.

b. .Business Associate may use or disclose PHI: .... « • a •
I  -For the proper management and.administration.of the Business.Associate.
11. As required by law. pursuant (o the terms setforth in paragraph d. below;.or
.III. For data aggregation"purposes for the health .care operations of Covered

Entity."

c  To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to d^close PHI to a
third party Business Associate" must obtain, prior to .rnaking any such disclosure, (i)reasbnable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as-required by law or for the purpose for ^ich it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to. notijV Bysiness
Associate, in accprdari'cb with the HIPAA Privacy, Security and B^fa^h Nolificalipn
Fiules of any breaches,.of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the eirtent it has, obtained
knowledge of such breach.

"d "The Business Associate" shall riot, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
reque'st for disclosure on the basis"that it Is required by law, without first notifying
Cdvered Eri'tity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
■to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, .the Bus^s.

.  . E^Mblll ContradOflnlUal
•  • l lcaillt lnsutance Portabilily Aa

Business ^owleAflrecmcm
Page 2 of 6



New Hampshire Depailment of Health and Human ̂ rvices

Exhibit!

Associate Shall refralh'from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the CoveredjEntity^notices the Busiriess Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be twund. by,addiU|anaj .restri those uses or disclosures or security .
^f6guards..9f .PHi pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
ishali t^'bouhd by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by, any additional.security saf^uards.

PI ObliQations and Actrvities of Business Associate.

si... The^ Business.Assodiate s,hall ribtlfy the povered Entity's Privacy Officer immediateiy
after thefBusiness Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health" [nforrnatioh riot provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecure.d
prbtected heaith"information and/or any security incident that rnay have an Impact on the
prbtected health informatlbn of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall Immediately perfprm .a ris.k ■assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations,. Thb..ri,sl<, assessrnent-Shall inciyde, but ribt be'
limited to: , " '

9. Th.e 'an'd.e^e.nt.'of.the; protected health inforniation Involved, including the
' types .of identrfiersahd the likelihood of fe-idenlifica^

6  ' The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure "wasmade;-

0 . Whether the protected health information was actually acguired of viewed,
0  the extent tb'wtiich the risk to the protected health information has'.beeh

mitigated..

the Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment vyithin 48 hdurs.of the
b'foSch brid immediate.ly report the findings of the risk assessment In writing to 'the
Covered. Entity". • ' '

c. THe'.Susiriess" AAsoclaie shall corh.ply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notificatio'ri Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of lis internal pblicies.and procedures;-
•and records relating .to the use, and disclosure'of PHI receiye.d from, of created ;br
recely.ed by .thd .Business Awociate ori behalf of Covered Entity .tb the Secretary for
purp6se_s:df determining Covered Entity's compliance ".with HIPAA and the Privacy arid

•■Security. Rule,*

e. Bysiries.s As.sociate^ require all ofJisbusiness assoclates that receive,-use or have
."bc^s'tb.RHI uriderthe"Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to'the" sam'e'
ra|tfibtibris and condrt'ions-on the use and disclosure of PHrddritdined hbreih,''includirig
trie^dyty-to return or^dpstr^y..the PHI .bs 'prbyided undbr%ctlbh'2[;,(iy^ ^
-shali be Qppsider.ed 'a^dird.ct .iH.ird party'.l:^ businessassbdaie
agreements yiridi Cbhtractd intended business"ass6biaies;.w.h wiii be.'fece^yin^HI

•^^0^ ^Wtl. Contfflciof W"lj
rjealih iwiran^;rioryj.W^
Bu&hvs&V

Page 3. or ,6 Oai'c
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Exhibit I

pursuant to this Agreoment.^with rights of enforcement and indemnification frbnfi such
business associates who shall be governed tiy standard Paragraph #13 of the.standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health inforrnatipn.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at Its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of f^HI to'the Covered Entity', for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
'Business Associate's compliance with the terrns of the Agreement. '

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall.provide.access to PHI in a.Designated Record Set to the
CbverPd Entity, or'as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to meet the
requirernehts under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designate fj^ecord
Set/the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment toiprtable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526,

1. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and Informatjon related to
such disclosures as would t>e required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
iridiyldual for an accounting of.disclosures of PHI in accordance wilh 45 CFR Section
164.528..

Within teri (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accoiiriting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall rtiake .available
to'Covered Entity sucVinformation as Covered Entity may requi.re to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

I;. In the event any individual requests access to, amendnient of, or accounting of PHI
.direbUy'from the'Busiriess .Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
respbrisibilily'.of rpsponding to forwarded requests. However. If forwarding "the
iridividuars request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead, respond to ihe lndividual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) bUsin.ess.days of lerminallori of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associata shall return or destroy, as spe.cified by Coyered Entity, all PHI
receiyed from, or.created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Adre'ern'enl.' ahd sKall ii'ot retain any copies or bbck-up tapes of such PHI. If.retum or
desUuclipn is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwse agreed to in
.'the Ag'ree'rrient. Business Associate shall continue to exten.d the protertioris 'bf Uia
Agreement.-to such F'HI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to thp^
purposes mat make the return or destruction Infeasible, for so long as Busirief

gxhibil I Conlmdor jnlUi3/2<n4
I'lcaJih hmira.nce PonaWnty^^
Butlnws rUiociate Agrccmcrtl

Page 4,0(6



Hampshire Doparlmont of Heal^ arid Human Services

Exhibit I

c.

^spciate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in Its.sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or ali PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to.
Covered Entity that thd PHI has been destroy^.

(4) Obligations of Covered Erititv

a. Covered.Entity shall notiiy Business Asspciate of any changes or limitatipn(s) In its
Pj Priyacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section

164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may effect Business Associate's
use Of disclosure, of .PHI.'

Id. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
orj^rmjss,ion provided to .Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may tDe used or
disclosed by'Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.5.06 of 45'GFR Section"l64.508.

Covered, entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the'use or.
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance swith 45 CFR i64!522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or discldsufe of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addiliph to Paragraph 16 of the standard lerrris and cdndiliohs (Pt37) of this
;Ag>i9emehl the\Covefed Entity may immediately terminate the Agfeernent upon Covered
Entit/.s kno^edge.of.a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate.
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity rnay either imniediately
tefrtiihate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business'Associate to Cure,the
alleged breach within a timefrarne specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Efitity
determines that .nelther termination nor cure Is .feasible. Covered Entity sha ll report the
violation to Oie Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. .Detinitions arid Reaulatdrv References. All terms used,'but not otherwise defined herein,
•shall have the saime meaning as those terms In the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to tifne. -A reference in the Agreement.'as amended to include this Exhibit I. to.
a Section in the.Prrvacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. 'Amendmerit. Covered .Entity arid Business Associate .agree.to take such action as'is
necessary to.anierid .the Agreement, fromtime'to time as is necessary for .Covered
.Entity Jo.'.ccrripty with, the.'changes, in the requirerhents of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, '^nd .applicable fe'deral and'state law.

c. . Data Owriefshrp. the Business Associate acknowledges that .it has no .ownership rights
with resfDect to the PHI provided by or creaited on behalf of'Gbvered Entity. ■

'd.- Interpretation.-; The parties agree that.any .ambiguity.in the Agfeemfeht shall b.e"
to pemjlt Qpvere.d .cornply with HIPAA, the Privacy.anb Security Ruie/

Sjrtpt* . ExWbl! I Contradw'iniili
Hcelih lraufwi« PorloWDly Aa.
Business /^sc^ato /^re'cn^nl

Pa^'SpfC.
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Seoreaatlbn. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person{s) or circumstance Is Held Inyaiid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
cohditioris wtiich can be given effect without the.lnvalid term or condition; to thls.end the
terms and corKlitiohs of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e arid Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms .and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreemeril.

IN WitNESS.WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of HeaUh arid Human Services

The State

592*.' ire
Narhe the C

CM I
16 bf the Contractor

Signati^re of Auttbri^d Representative "^vSj^lure of Alil/^orized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Represy talive

Title of Authorized Represenlalive

3bl2o?n

Pi/fS"
TiUe of Authorized Representative

Date

3/20U I

i-teAlih iA»urir)c« Pofiaiiitiiy Ad
Riistr^^s Auodate

Page 6 616 '
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABtUTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATAl COMPLIANCE

The Feder^ Funding Aocpuhtabillty and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awartees of indhndual
F^eral gr^s'equal $25,000 and awarded on or after October i , 2010, to report on
data relatf^ tb'exMutwe com aissbciated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial ai^rd Is telpw $25,(^ but^s^ grant rriodificatlons result in a iqtal award eqiial to or over
'$25.0Cp,.)he awa^ is.subjecl to the FPATA repprtirig'requirements, as of the date of the award.
In'ac^dariM Part 170 (Reportirig Suba^rd arid.Ex^tive Conipensatlon Information), the
b^prartmerit of Health/and Human^Servi^^fOHHS) must report die following information for ariy
subaward or contract award subject.to the FFATA reporting r^uirements:
1. 'Na'rrw Of entity
2. >^o'untofaiA^rd
3. Furling agency
4. N^CS .code.for coritracts / CFDA prograrn number for grants
5: Prbgrarifi source
6. Aw;^. .title, desi^ptiyie of the purpose Of the funding action
7. Lwatipri'oFthe entity
8. Pni^pie place of
.9. tJriiquc identifjer of die entity (DUNS #)
10. Total odmpehSatibn and.n^^ of top frve executives if:

10.1. . More than of annual grbis revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenue are greater ti^n $25M annually and

10.2. Compe'nsatlori infoirmatldn 'is not ̂ ready available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant r^pients must submit FFATA required data tiy the end of the'month. plus 30 days, in which
die .award erneridmeiit is rnadp.
The (^ntf^or'idehUfied iri Se^pn i .3'of the General Provisions agrees to comply wth the provisions of .
The Federar.Funding Abcburiliabir^ arid Transparency Act Public Law 10^282 and Public Law 110-252.
bnd 2 .CpR Part 17p.'(pepoftifig.Suba^^rd and Executive ̂ mpensalion Iriformatioh). arid further agrees
-to haye' the Cq.riti^ctpr's rep're'sehtati^ Identified In Sectibhs i.'il and 1.12 of the Genef^ Prbyislons
exe^ie the.fplipwlrig Certificatipri:
the belpW named C^rilra^ agrws to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department ̂  Health and Hurhari. ̂ f^ces and to (xxnply .with all appli^ provislpris.of the Fed.er'ej
FItiancial Accouritabiiity'ari.d Transparency Act

Contractor Name:

Dale

a

h. miSnircName:

ceo •

■ EjchMJ~Cenrn»tiohRcg«nring(^ Cohiractor Inili&b
• AcMun'labihy ̂ ^d Tninaparon'cy Ad"'(FFATAyCwhpU^ca'
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FORMA

.M the Contractor identified in Secliort i.3;of the General Rrovisidns. I certify thai the responses to the-
.b^lWlisted^qu^tiohs are triie and accurate.

1. The DlJNSnurhber forydiir eritity is:

2. In your business or .organization^ preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or.orgariizatioh
receive {1)86 percent qir more of.your annual gross revenue iri IJ.S.,federal cphlracls,subcontracts,
loahs. 'grahtis,-sub-grants, ahd/pr cooperative agrecrncnts; and (2) 525.000,000 or more in annual,
gross'revenues froni U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans;-grants, suligrants, and/6<
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the ansv^f .16 #2 above! Is NO, stop here

If .ttte'answer.to #2 above is YES, pte.ase answer the following;

-3, Does Ihe'pu.blic have acc^s to inforrnatipn about the compensation of the'executives in yo.ur
■ business or organization througl^ periodic repoAs filed ur^r sectton 13(a) or 15(d) pf.^e'.Sdcurities
Exchange Acfof-1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 7'8o(d)) or sectio.ri 6104 of the .intemal Revenue Code,of
1986?'"

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES. stop here. '

If the answer to #3.pboyc Is NO. please answer'the foltowhg:

•4. The riam'es and comperisalion'Of the five rriost highly compensaled otficeis in your business or
prgarilzalion are as'follows:.

Name:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Name:

Antounf.

Amount:

. Ajnount:

Amount:

Amount:

CUliKHe^ tC7'l3

Cxhib* J f.CertSwlion U.'F FunOlf^
: Acco,untaWityA/)d Act (FFATA) CompBanc'o

• Raje 2'of 2
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A.. Definitions

The following terms may t>e reiflecied and have the described meaning In this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisitipn,' unauthorized access, or any similar term referfihg to
sltuatioris .vvhere' persons other .than authorized users, and for an'other than
authorized pur^se have access , or potential access to personally idehtifidt^e
infoirmatibh, \^ether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Heafth
Information, ".Breach" shall hiave the same rneaning as the term "Breach" in section
l!64,402'qftrtlie 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" ,in section two (2) of NISI Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Departmerit'
of Commerce.

.3. "Confidential jrifprmaHpn' or "Confidential Data" means all confidential IhfprrTiallpn
disclosed by one party to. the other such .as .'all medical, health, fihandal, public
assistance benefits'and personal information including without limitation, Substahce'
Abusp. Treatment Recordsj .Case Records, Protected Health Infofrnatioh and
Persphally Identiftable Inforrhatioh..

Confidential Infprrnatipn also includes any and ail Information owned or managed by
the Stele of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Hurh'ari Services (DHHS;i or accessed in the course of performirig contacted;
services - of-which'collection, disclosure, proleclipn, and disppsitlon is governed by
State or;fed.eral. lavy or regulation. This'informatiori ̂ includes,-but is n'pt llmrted tp;
Protected Health informaiion (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Infofmation .(PFI), Federal Tax Infomriation (FTI). Social Security Nutiribdrs (SSN),
Payment Card industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" meaps.'ariy person or entity (e.g., contractor, corilfaclor's employee,
business ras'spciate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) thai receives
pHHS data pr derivative date In accordance with the terms of this Contract.

,5. "HlRAA." means the.Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act oM 996 and.the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. ^Incident" meanS:an act lhal potentially violates an explicit pr implied security ppli.cy,
which fndudes a,tternpls"(erther failed or successful) to gain unauthpflzed acceSs ib'a
syste.m pV'.its' data." u.riwanied disruption .pr denial of .Service, the unauthprized use'of
a'systerri'for-.thV,process or doiage^pf data; and changes to s'irsterh.hardvrara,
firrT)>^re. pr .software, characteristic^ without'the bwher'is k'riowledge, iristinLicdpn, or
cohs.eht.'Iri'dde.hts Include the l.oss of .data through theft .or device misplacemeni. ioss
pC'hiisp.lacementldf hardcopy .documents,•and misroutlng of physical or electronic

VS. LasitpdaloKyOS/ie K , CofUrabcwl/ikiail
OHHS.inJopmaDo'^

.Sea^ty Rcquirc'rncnts
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Exhibit K

DHHS information Security Requirements

mail, ail of which may have the potential to put -the data at risk of unauthoriz^
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any nehvof1< or segment of a network that Is
not designated by' the State of New Hampshire's Department of Infonmatlpn
Technology or .delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by mearis of the State, to transmit) will be consid.ered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confldehtial DHHS data.

8. "Personal InforTnation' (or 'PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
pr trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security riumber, personal
information as'defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or Identifying, information which,is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of .birth. mother's tnaiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the.Standards for Privacy of individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C;F.R. Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information' (or 'PHP) has the same meaning as provided in the
definitiori of "Protected Health Infcimatlon" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
■160^103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protecled Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpari 0. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Heallh Information" meahs Protecled Health Information that is
not secured tiy a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information'
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that'is accredited by
the American Natiorial Standards Institute. -

1. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Clontracior must not use, disclose, maintain pr transmit Confidential Infpnmatipn
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. G;pritract6r.
Including but not limited.to all its directors, officere. employees 'and agents, must not
use, .(jiscldse, mairitain or transmit PHI Iri any manner that would constitute a'violatidn
of the Privacy arid Security Rule.

2. The .'Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Iri'formation in Tesponse to a

V5. Last update ICOS/IS Exhibit K .Coinlfad6< Initiair^
DHHS Infwiraiiqn
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

requ^l for .disclosure on the Ijasis that it Is required by law, , in resppri^ to a
.sub^na, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an bppprtuhity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

■3. If DHHS pp^es the Contractor that DHHS has.pgreed to be bound by addrtipnal
restrictipns.over.and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant •-to the Privacy arid Security Rule, the Contractor rtiust be bourid by such
•additjpnal festricljpn.s and must not disclose PHI iri vidlation ©rsuch additional
restridipns an'd must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The'-Cpntracipr'.agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to ap ^nd
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Coritractof.agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
.any other purposes that are not indicated inlhisContract.

,6. The Contractor/.agrees to grant access to the data to the.authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose Pf inspecting to confirm .compliance with the 'terms of this
Cpniract.

M^OpS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application, Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data confining
C9nfi.dentlal Data "between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
be.eh ievalualed by ah expert knowledgeable in cyber security bnd that, s'aid
applicatloh's encryption capabilities ensure'secure transmission via the internet.

2: Computer Oisks'and. Porlable Storage Devices. End tJser may not use corriputef .disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as'a method of transmiilihg.DHHS
data.'

3. Ericrypled Email. E.rid User may only erhploy email to transmit Confidential Data If
eniail is encrvbted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web-Site-. .If End IJser is employing the Web to transmit Cphfidehtial
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be, used and the web site rriusl be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmltied via a Web site.

5. File. Hostipg Services, also Knowhas File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox of Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Maij Service." End User may .only transmit. Confidential Data via certiried gfp.und
maij within the cpnfinenlal U..S.;and when sent to a named individual. .

7. Laptops arid PDA. If End. User Is erhploying poiiable devices to transrriit
Gphfidenitiai pa^ said devices must be encrypt^ and password-protected.

•B. Open Wireless Networks. .End. User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

vs. Lesl.t(xlale.iQrt»18 .ExNWl.K, Contf«cl6f ihitj
-b^S infomwtibo
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

a. Rernpte Us.er.Cpm.mupicaljon. ..lf End User is ernploying remote conimunicatioh to
aw^s .or transrhit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN), must be
Installed bri the End User's mobile devlce(s) or laptop from which informallpn will be
transmitted or accessed.

id. SSH File Transfer Protpcor(SFTP). also.kriowh as .Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is'employing ah SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will

. structure' the Fp.lder and access privileges to preverit inappropriate disdbsure of
irifprmatioh. -SFTP folders and sut>folders used for transrhittlrig Corrfidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour autb-deletibn cyde (I.e. Confidential Data will be deiet^ 24
hours).

T1, V\fireless Devices". If End .User" is transmitting .Cpnfidehtial Data via wireless devices, all
data rriu^ be encrypted to'prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destrpy the data and any
derivative.in whatever, form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law'or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties rriust:

A. Retention

1. The. Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data, collected in
connecliph .yrith the'services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes ba^up
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proppr security monitoring capabilil.ies .are in
place to detect pbtenlial security events that.can impact State of NH systerns
and/or Department ponfiderillal iriformatioh for contractor provided systems,

3. The .Contractor agrees ..to provide security awareness "arid education ,for its Erid
Users in suppbrt of protecting Department confidential Information".'

-4. The'Contractor agrees to retain all electronic'arid hard copies of Confidential Data
Iri .a^^.cure locaiion and'ideritified In section IV. A.2

5. The" Cpritractp'r -agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud, rnust be in a
FedF^MP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable isiatutes and
r^ulatiohs'regarding the privacy and security. .All servers and devi(^"s;must have
currently-supported and hardened operating Systerns. ,the latest ■ahti:yirai. anti-
hacker, 'an,ti:Spam, ant.i-spyware. arid ariti-malware utilities'.The' environment, as a

vs. Lo&l updflic l(V09n6 . .;a)ihibiiK Conirwi.oHniii
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whoie, musthaye-aggressive IntrusiorKjelwlipn and firewall protection.

6. The Contrador agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the.hbsting
infrastructure.

6. Disposition

1. .If the Contractor will maintain any Cohfidenlial Infonnation on its systems (pr its
sub-contractor systerns), the Contractor will maihtajn a "documented, proems for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract terminatipn; arid wilt
obtain written ce^cation for any State of New Harhpshire data destroyed by the
Cohtrartor or any.subcontractors as a part.of, origoirig, emergency, arid or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in .use, electronic nhedia containing*.State of
New Hampshire ,d^ be rendered unrecoverable via a secure "wipe program
in 'accordance -with" industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sariftizatidn. of otherwise physically destroying the rnedia (for example,
degaussirig) as described in NIST Special Publication 80.0-88, Rev 1, .Guidelines
for Media Sanitii^tion. National InsUtute of Standards arid .Techriology, P. S.
department of Commerce. The .Contractor will docunrient arid certify ".in. WfHirig at
time of the data destruction, and will provide writterl^cerljficattdri .to the" P.epartmen.t
upon request." The' written .'certification, wiil include, all detaiis necessary to
..derrionslrale'data has'be'en property destroyed and. validated, .wridre.applicable,
regujatofy• and pfofe^iorial. standards.for r'eteri'tiqn feq'uifemehts svlH be jointly
evaluated by the .State and Coritractor prioMo destruction.

2. Unless .otherwise "'specified, within thirty (30) days of the terrnination of this
:-Coritra'ct, Cp'ntraclor.agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure rnethbd such as shredding.

.3. Unless otherwise specified, wilhin thirty (30) days of the termiriatidn of this
'Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electrphic,.Confidential Data
by rheans of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECIJRITY

A. Contractor .agrees to safeguard the OHHS Data rece.ived under this Cpnlracl.-rind .any
derivative "data or files.'^as follows:

1. The "Cpntractor '.wilj maintain proper security controls "to protect Depaflm'ehl
cp.rifi.de'niial Infprrribtibri'.cpllecied. proceissed.'managed, and/or stored in the deliver
of contracteb services.

.2, • The .'C.orilfact'br will fnalritain policies and procedures to, protect Department,
•■^cbrifideritlal .irifbffTiatjbh throughout the information lifecyde, where •appl.icaibre, (from'
:brealibn/trarisforiTiation, use; storage and secure/destructipri) regafdl.es.s' of-trie
media used to store..lhe data (i.e.. tape, disk, paperi etc.).

V5. Lwliipdalb 1.0/pS/ld . ExWUt K l.nhlaJiVr:
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3. The. Contractor Will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Oepanment cdnfidehtial information
where appliciable.

4. The: Conlracfor will ensure proper security monitoring capat>Iltties are"' in place, to^
.detect.-potential .-."security events that can impact State of -NH systems .arki/or
pepartrnerit confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

5.. The. Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education-for its End
Users'in support.of protecting Department confidential information.

.6. If ;the Gpntr.actor ;wiH be :sutH:oniractlng any core functions of the-engagernent
supporting ttid services for Slate of New Hampshire, the "Contractor will .maintain -a
'pf^ram ,of an.Internal process or processes that defines specific :securlty
expeciaiHons.-,and monitoring compliance, to security requirernents that'at 'a. mlnirnum
match'lhose forjhe Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor .will work with the,Department to sign arid" comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire .and Department system acce^ .arid .authorization .policies,
and procedures., systerns access forms, and computer use agreements ,as part of.
pblairiing and mainilaining access to. .any Department ,system(s). Agreements vyill Ije
completed .and signed by the Contractor'and any applicable sutKContractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If (he 0.epartment;determlnes the" Contractor is a Business Associate .pursuant to 45
CFR l'80.103.-',the Contractor vviil execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) wTlh "the Department arid is 'responsibie for maintaining compliance with the
agreerrient.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management :Surv.ey. The purpose of the survey is to •enable .the Departrnent-arid
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabil.rtj.es^.lhal niay

, occur over the life of .the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, .or an alter'nale time frame 31 the Departments discretion vyith agreement by
the .Corilractor, brlhe Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the""e.r>gagemenl between the Department arid the Conlractof .chafiges.

10. The Contractor will, hot store, knowingly or urikriowingly, ariy Stale of New Hampshire
Of .Department data offshore, or outside .the tx>undaries -of the United States-unless-

• prior, express ̂ written consent , is .obtained from the Information Security ^Office
- leadership member within the Department.

11.. Datdi'.Sec'urrty Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach "Corilraclor-shall
nfiak'e, efforts-tg investigate the causes of the. ..breach' prbrriptly'.take'measu^^^
prevent .future breach and minimize, any damage' or lo'^ resultirig 'from the.'bireach.

'The-Stat.e "Shall .recover from the cb.nlr'actonall costs of re'sppn'se and recovery'.frorh

vs. Last update 10/00/18 ExHibil K. ,Con|rB'ciixl.n'dt3ls
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the breach, ."including but not limited tp:'credrt monitoring services, rhailihg costs arid
costs-associated with vyebs.ite arid telephone call center seri/ices neces^iV-due'tb"
the breach...

12. .C^ontractor ifiust. .comply with all -appjicabje statutes and regulations regarding'the
privacy .bri^-'^security of Cprifidential Information, and must In all other respects
.maintain Ih'e'pricey "and of .Pi a'nd PHl'al'a level and'Scope that^seot'l.ess
.than■■ the. arid Scope; of requirernerits. applicable to federal agencies,, induding,
.biA npt limited to, prpvis^^ of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), dHHS
Pfiyacy Act Reguta^^ G.F;R. .§5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rples (45
c;if:R. Parts.i^ and 1^) that govern protections for indiyidually identiriabie health
irifbrmalion and as appiica'ble under State law.

13.;Contractor agrees-.to .establish and maintain appropriate administratiye.-l^hnical. shd
physical safeguards to protect'the" confidentiality -..of • the .CQrifidential 'Data 'arid .to
preyerit uriauthbrlzed use'.pr'.access to/rt. 'The sa.fegua.rds rnust pr6vide.,a.'.jev.er;arid
scope.,of s^urlty thal is ri'o.t less..than .the level iarid scope of security r^uirern'ents
eS.tablished-by the State pf..New'Hampsriire;'.bepartmerii of info'rmation' Techriblogy;.
Refer-to -Vendor R.esburce^.Procurem'ent .at.https;//wwv.nh.g6WdoltA'eridof/iridex.ht'm
.for'.the.'pepartment of Infonnaliori Technology policies, guidelines, standards;: and
prbcyrerinerit IrifoVmation relating to vendors.

14.Xort'tiracl9r a \documented breach nptificailon and Incident
response process. .The Contractor wlil notify . the .Stale's Privacy Officer arid the
State.'s-.'.Security Offlcer-of any security breach imririedlately, at the'email addr^ses
provided In-Section .Vl. This iripludes a confidential information" breach, cprrip.uter

■  secu'rity. Incident or "suspected-breach which affects' or includes any "Slate" 6f N'ew
Hampshire'.s^.tem's that .connect to the'aate;of New Hampshire rielWorlt.

15. Contractor must. ; restrict access to the. Confidenl.ial Data bljtained under this
Contract to, only those''.authoriEed End Users ^.b need .such DHHS'Data to
perform their bfficial 'duties in conhe'ctibri with' purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The" Coritra'ctdr'rnust ensure that'all Eri.d Users;
a. 'comply .;.\i^th .such-safeguards as referenced in Section :.IV A. al>ove.

implemented'to protect .Corifidential Information that is furnished by DHH^-
under this '.Cbritract from loss, .theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this Irifofmatlon at all times.
c. ensure that-iaplops and other .electronic-device.^fhe.dia .containing PHI, PI. .or

PFI.are encrypted and.passWord-protecled.
d. send ernails-containing .Confideritial. Informatiori only-If encrvpted and. being

sdnt ' tp irid ' beiri^ receiyed by erh'ail ".addresses, of" persbris authorized to
'receive suchiriforrriatio'ri.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitt^ by law,

f. Confidential Inforrnatipn received under this Contract and indiyiduaDy
Identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored In an iafea that is
physically 'and technologjcaliy secure -from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as, well as norv-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
t^ipmethc.ldehtiners.etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, Including any
derivative files containing personally Identrfiatile information, and |n all cases,
such data must be ericrypted at all times when in transit, at re^. or when
stored on portable media as required in section iV above.

h. in all other instances Ck)nfidentia} Data must be malntairied, used ..ar^d
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as. determined by a -risk-based
assessmerit of the cimumstances involved.

I. understand that their user credentials (user narrie and password) must not be
shared with anyone. Et>d Users will keep .their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party appiication.

•Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onslie inspections to m.onltor compliance with this
.'Coritract. including the •privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA,
.and other-applicable laws and Federal reguiatioris unlll such tinie.th'e Confidential Data
Is disposed of Iri accordance'with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The ConlfBCtor must notify the Stale's Privacy .Officer and Security Officer of any
.S^urity .Incidents 'and Breaches Immediately, at the email addresses, provided in
Section VI.

The. Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches invoiving PHI in
accordan.ce'v/ilh the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Npttfication
procedures and in accordance svith 42 C.F.R. §§ 431,300 • 306. In addition to, and

' notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all'applicable obligations,and procedures,
Con'lraclpr's procedures must also address how the Co'ritractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Dete,rminejf personally Idenllfiable inforrnatipn ilinvolved in Incidents;

3. Reppft. suspected'or confirmed Incidents .as required iri this Exhibit or R-37:

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine (he risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine ̂ e^er Breach notification Is-required. and, jf so, identify appropriate
Breach notjficaWon. rnethods. timirig, source, and contents frdrh among .dtffeferit
pp.tipns, and tear costs associate with the Breach notice'as well as, any mltigatibn
rheasures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must "be addressed and reported, as
.applicable, In'apwfdarice with NH RSA 3590:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. OHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivac^fficer@dhhs.nh.gov
B. DHHS Security Officer

pHHSlnformatlonSecurilyOffice@dhhs.rih.'9ov
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